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In shape for sustained growth

Protherics is building a leading biopharmaceutical
company focused on critical care and cancer.

Our goal is to bring products to market which deliver
better outcomes for patients and better returns to
shareholders. Our plan is to use revenues from our
marketed products, and licensing income, to help
fund the development of a robust and high value
pipeline of products.
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H |g h I | g h tS Product Application

CroFab™ Crotaiid (pit viper) anu-venom

Digifab™ Digoxir: antidote

TSE Testing Rovalty from BSE post-mortem diagnostic test
ViperaTAb™ Common adder anti-venam

Voraxaze™ Methotrexate metabolis ng enzyrmre
CytoFab™ Severa sepsis

Prolarix™ Primary liver tumours

Angiotensin Vaccine Management af ligh blood pressure

Operating Highlights

CytoFab™ (for sepsis from uncontrolled infection)

« Major licensing deal with AstraZeneca worth up to £195 million {approximately $340 million) in upfront and
milestone payments

» AstraZeneca made an upfront payment of £16.3 million and a £7.5 million equity investment in Protherics
 Protherics to receive a 20% royalty on global net sales of CytoFab™
« Protherics 1o receive additional manufacturing supply related payments

Voraxaze™ (for control of high dose methotrexate therapy in cancer)
» Marketing Authorisation Application (MAA) submitted in the EU

»  Positive outcome from pre-BLA meeting with the FDA in the US, with submission of Biological License Application (BLA)
expected in second half of 2006

* Clinical programme initiated to support the planned repeated use of Voraxaze™ as an adjunct to high dose
methotrexate therapy

Protarix™ (targeted therapy for liver cancer and certain other solid tumours)
» Activation of prodrug in patients receiving combination therapy indicated
+ Extension of phase 1 study to assess efficacy at maximum tolerated dose

Angiotensin Vaccine (for high blood pressure)
= Novel adjuvant acquired from CoVaccine BV, for use in new formulation, found to be safe and well-tolerated in
preclinical testing

» Manufacturing scale-up underway ahead of planned phase 2 study in second half of 2007
CroFab™ (crotalid anti-venom) and DigiFab™ (digaxin antidote)

= Fougera, a division of Altana Ing., extended its US distribution agreement for CroFab™ and DigiFab™ until Getober 2010
« FDA qualification of Protherics’ manufacturing plant in Wales following expansion pregramme

+ Qutstanding data requirements agreed with the Medicines and Healthcare Products Regulatory Agency (MHRA)
for DigiFab™ approval in the UK
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Preclinical Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 3 Pre-registration Marketed

Us

us, U, Japan

Intiated

New formulation

Financial Highlights

= Revenues £17.7 million (2005: £18.8 million) with higher CroFab™ revenues offset by
reduced DigiFab™ shipments to Fougera

«  First revenues recognised (£0.7 million) under FRS from CytoFab™ upfront payment of
£16.3 million

» R&D increased to £6.7 million (2005: £4.6 million) with increased investrent in Cytofab™ and Voraxaze™

= G&A expenses increased to £9.2 million (£2005: £7.2 million) as investment in sales and marketing continued, together
with increased charges from share-based payments and currency effects

+ Loss befare tax £9.6 million (2005: £2.1 million} as expected following programmed manufacturing shutdown and
planned increases in expenditure

+ Strong cash position at end of period of £25.4 million (2005: £7.3 millior), following CytoFab™ upfront payment and
equity contribution from AstraZeneca
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Directors’ Statements

“This has been a transforming year for Protherics, a year in which our development into a
leading biopharmaceutical company has accelerated. Our landmark licensing deal with
AstraZeneca for CytoFab™ has provided uplift for the company and increased the momentum
behind our development programme in sepsis. We continue to implement our strategy of
building a well balanced, robust business that has the potential to deliver enhanced shareholder
returns in the coming years.”

Stuart Wallis, Chairman

“The licensing deal with AstraZeneca should not only be seen as a strong endorsement of
CytoFab™, but also for our polyclonal antibody platform, people and operations. Extensive
due diligence was conducted by AstraZeneca during the licensing process, and this resulted in
one of the biggest ever biotech licensing deals in the UK. We are extremely pleased with the
progress made on the project by both parties to date and the commitment AstraZeneca is
showing to CytoFab™.”

Andrew Heath, CEO

“In the past, Protherics’ principal source of revenue was derived from its main marketed
products, CroFab™ and DigiFab™. While these will continue to be primary drivers in the
near-term, we anticipate that Voraxaze™ will contribute more significantly once marketing
approval has been granted in the US and EU in 2007. We also expect further milestone
payments from AstraZeneca should CytoFab™ progress through late-stage development.”
Barry Riley, Finance Director
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(left to right) Andrew Heath, Barry Riley, Stuart Wallis
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Protherics — Building a Leading Biopharmaceutical Company

Prothicdic s s an inteqrated b epharmaceut.ca’
coripany focused un the development,
marulacture and marketing of products
for ent:cal care and cancer. With
headquarters n Londe™, the Company inas
approximately 190 employecs across its
operations in the UK, LS and Austrana.

At the time of its formation in September
1999, Protherics’ strategy was twolold.
Firstly, to develop its niche products in-
house to provide the Company with a
stable revenue stream 1o underpin its
development pipeline. Crofab™, for the
treatment of mild-moderate rattlesnake
bites, was Jaunched in 2001, and DigiFab™,
for the treatment of life-threatening
digoxin toxicity, was launched in 2002,
Secondly, to develop its two potential
blockbuster products, CyteFab™ and
Angiotensin Vaccine to the point of
oul-licensing to larger pharmaceutical
partners.

Six years on, thousands of patients have
heen treated safely with our Crofab™ and
DigiFab™ products following their approval
by the Food and Drug Administration
(FDAJ. Both products have enjoyed rapid
market penetration and have provided
Protherics with a stable revenue stream.
Protherics is the commercial manutacturer

The ast financial year saw Protherics start
to deliver on the second part of its strategy
with the out-licensing of CytoFab™ to
AstraZeneca after a majer out-licensing
initiative. The next goal is to out-license a
new formulation of Angiotensin Vaccine
containing the CoVaccine adjuvant,
assuming its abikity to reduce blood
pressure in hypertensive patients is

shown in the planned phase 2 study.

As CroFab™ and Digifab™ started generating
revenues, Protherics recognised a need to
broaden and diversify its development
pipeline. In June 2003, Protherics acquired
Enact Pharma PLC (Enact) to access two
promising cancer programimes: Voraxaze™,
for the treatment of patients at risk or
experiencing methotrexate (MTX) toxicity
from its delayed elimination, and Prolarix™,
2 targeted prodrug based chemotherapy
for the treatment of certain solid cell
cancers,

Key Company Milestones

Event Date

Considerable progress has been made on
both of the development programmes
acquired with Enact. Prothencs has
completed the development wo:k on
Voraxaze™ for intervention use in the
management of patients with delayed
methotrexate elimination, and we are now
seeking marketing approvals in

the 1S and FL.. Protherics 1s huilding

a niche sales and marketing team to launch
Voraxaze™ and capitalise on an ideal
opportunity ta establish a commercial
presence m the cancer market.

Protherics has 1aken Prolanx * into the clinic
in a phase 1 study being conducted under
the auspices of Cancer Research UK, and
the safety and pharmacokinetics data look
encouraging to date. We are planning to
pursue an initial indication of pnmary liver
cancer {hepatocellular carciroma) and aim
to start a proof of concept, phase 2 study
in 2007. Protherics intends 1o fully develop
and undertake the sales and marketing of
Prolarix ¥ in the US and ELL

Mrestone Achieved

of these products.

September 1999 Prothencs PLC was formed from the merger of Proteus

Internationat Pic and Therapeutic Antibodies inc.

US launch of CroFab™, the first new rattlesnake antvenom
on the US market in 50 years.

Spring 2001

February 2002 Us launch of DigiFab ¥, a treatment for the toxic effects of

overdosage with the heart drug digoxin,

lune 2003 Acquisition of Enact Pharma PLC (Enact) and completion of
a £3m fundraising.

June 2004 Maiden profits announced for the financial year vinch
ended on 31 March 2004,

luly 2004 £9.3m (net of expenses) Placing and Open Otfer.

September 2004 Transfer of the Porton Down research faciiity and
out-licensing of early stage research acquired with fnect

1o two UK start-up companies,

July 20065 Voraxaze™ Marketing Authorisation Applicaticn (MAA)

submitted to EU regulatory agencies.

December 2005

AstraZeneca licensing deal for Cytotab’ ",
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Products and Pipeline

Product

Critical Care

CroFab'

Crotalidae Polyvalent
Immune Fab (Ovine) for
the treatment of minimal
to moderate Crotalid
(rattlesnake) envenomation

Status

Launched in US (Q1 2C01};
Sold on named patient basis
within EY

Partner (region)

Fougera (US);
Swedish Orphan International AB
(Scandinavia & Baltic countries)

Market size*

US market potential estimated at
$80m

DigiFab™

Digoxin Immune Fab (Ovine)
for the treatment of life
threatening digoxin

toxicity or overdose

Launched in US (Q1 2002);
EU approval expected
in H1 2007

Fougera (US);
Beacon Pharmaceuticals
(Europe excluding Scandinavia);

Mayne Pharma {Australia & SE Asia)

Current global market size
estimated at $30-35m

ViperaTAb™

Viperadae Polyvalent
Immune Fab {Ovine} for
the treatment of Vipera
berus {Common European
adder) envenomation

Seld on named patient basis
in EU

Swedish Orphan International
AB (Scandinavia & Baltic
countries);

Protherics {rest of EU)

Market size estimated up to
<4m

CytoFab™

Anti-TNF zlpha Polyvalent
Immune Fab (Ovine) for the
treatment of severe sepsis

Manufacturing scale up and
preparation for phase 3
in 2007

AstraZeneca {globaly

Muttibillion dollar market
polential

Cancer

Voraxaze™

Recombinant enzyme based
product for the treatment of
patients experiencing toxicity,
or at risk of toxicity. from
methotrexate

Marketing application submitted
in EU in July 2005 and planned
in US in K2 2006:

Available on named patient and
compassionate use basis in EU
and US respectively

In-house marketing and
distributors in US and EU

post approval,

IDIS {Named patient sales)
NCI {compassionate use in US)

Intervention market estimated
at up ¢ $50m. Planned use
madrket is estimated to be
worth up to $200m

Prolarix™

Targeted prodrug based
cancer therapy for the
treatment of primary liver
cancer and other selected
solid tumaurs

Phase 1 study

Cancer Research UK undertaking
phase 1 study

Target markets are estmated
to be worth more than
$1bn

Other programmes
Angiotensin Vaccine
Conjugated peptide vaccine
for the treatment of
hypertension {(high blood
pressure}

Preparing new formulation
for phase 2a study in 2007

Partner to be determined

Current global hypertension
market >$30bn

“Saurce: Protherics estimates
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Looking to the future
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“We look forward to what we hope will be a very busy period, with the ptanned launches of
Voraxaze™ in the US and EU, the start of the CytoFab™ phase 3 trial in severe sepsis and
the progression of Prolarix™ and our Angiotensin Vaccine into phase 2 development, all
anticipated in 2007. Achieving these key events will ensure another rewarding couple of
years for Protherics and its shareholders.”

Andrew ] Heath
Chief Executive Officer




Business Review

Chairman’s Report

Highlights

Protherics made great progress, both
financially and cperationally during the year
ended 37 March 2006. The highlight of the
year was our licensing deal with
AstraZeneca for CytoFab™, worth
potentially up to £195 million in upfront
and milestone payments alone. Qur
pipetine progressed according to plan for
Voraxaze™, Prolarix™ and our Angiotensin
Vaccine, while Fougera (a division of Altana
Inc.}, our sales and rmarketing partner for
CroFab™ and DigiFab™ in the US extended
its distribution agreerment until 210,
Financially, we finished the year with a
strong cash pasition as cash and cash
equivalents were £25.4 million, up from
£7.3 million a year earlier. Revenues in

the year ended 31 March 2006 were

£17.7 million, down £1.7 million from

the previous year, but ahead of our
expectations as set out in our April
pre-close statement. Loss before tax

for the year was £9.6 million, compared

to £2.1 million the previous year, as

we continue to increase our R&D effort
and build our sales and marketing
capabilities.

Strategic Overview; Diversifying Risk
and Reward

The CytoFab™ out-licensing deal has led to
an internal review of our business, as we
focus people, capital and manufacturing

capacity on the scale up and supply of
CytoFab™ to AstraZeneca. Our grawth
strategy remains the same - building a
well-batanced business in terms of sk and
reward, and increasing our investrments in
R&D and sales and marketing in line with
a growing fevenue stream,

Within our primary business segment of
the sale, manufacture and development
of pharmaceutical products, there are

two areas which we are looking to develop
over the long term: a critical care business
based on our ovine polyclonal antibody
technology platform, and 2 cancer
business. We also have a third area,

our vaccines franchise, where we will

look to extract value in the medium term.

Critical Care Products

Sepsis has proven a difficult area in the
past, and despite our encouraging phase
2b data, we must ensure that we balance
the risks and rewards in the business. While
CytoFab™ may become a blockbuster
product in the future, we remain focused
on improving the performance of our
niche critical care products, Crofab™

and DigiFab™.

The manufacturing changes we are
implementing for CroFab™ should
reduce the number of batches required
to supply the market and allow us to
dramatically reduce the cost of goods

Stuarl, Wallis, Chairman

for this product. As important, the CroFab™
manufacturing changes, will provide the
additional manufacturing capacity

required for the production of CytoFab™.
We anticipate receiving FOA approval for
these CroFab™ process changes in the first
half of 2008.

In October 2005, Fougera, our marketing
partner in the US for CroFab™ and
DigiFab™ exercised its nil-cost option to
extend their distribution agreement, for a
further five years. At the end of this period,
the marketing rights for these products
return to Protherics, providing us with a
valuabte opportunity to either re-license
these products or sell them oursetves in
the US.

Cancer Products

As Protherics looks at strengthening its
business beyond Cytofab™ ang the
polyclenal antibody platform, we see an
opportunity, with the anticipated launch
of Voraxaze™ in the US and Europe in
2007, to build a commercially-driven,
focused cancer business.

We believe Lhat the cancer market holds
excellent commercial opportunities for
Protherics. Cancer consists of many
different diseases, and this has resulted in
a very fragmented global market place.
Despite the considerable unmet medical
needs that remain in the treatment of
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Overview of Protherics

FRANCHISE
Pipeline Niche Products
Products CroFab™

DigiFab™

Biomanufacturing

Sales and Marketing

Actions & Qutlooks

& Improve margins

¢ Diversify portfolio

CRITICAL CARE

QOvine polyclonal Fabs

Fougera (Altana)

® Crow revenues

Blockbuster

CytoFab ™"

AstraZeneca”

®Scale-up new
manufacturing

CANCER

Prolarix ™

Voraxaze ™

Protherics/
distributors

®Launch
Voraxaze™

i A O N
Angiotensin =
Vaccine

CoVaccine
adjuvant

& Demonstrate
proof of concept
before out-licensing

process ¢ Add additional
®Manage product and
alliance with pipeline
AstraZeneca

"AstraZeneca is responsible for the globat development & commercialisation

cancer, the restricted sizes of many of
the market opportunities limit their
attractiveness to larger pharmaceuticat
companies, leaving an opportunity for
hiotechnology companies to develop and
sell their own cancer products. Such
products may benefit from the protection
of orphan drug status, and sometimes
gain market approval with faster and less
expensive development programimes.
Many of these products, like Voraxaze™,
can be marketed successfully by a small
targeted sales and marketing team.
Protherics' commercial and scientific teams
have considerable cancer experience and
we ate looking to add carefully selecled
products ta expand cur offering in

this area.

vaccine Products

Within our vaccines franchise, after
several years of development of
Angiotensin Vaccine, we believe that

we now have a formulation that could
produce 3 positive benefit in the
management of high blood pressure.

This formulation contains a novel adjuvant
to boost the effects of the vaccine, and
we announced in June the acquisition of
this adjuvant from CoVaccine 8V.
Hypertension is & large, compctitive

and complex market, which is outside
Protherics’ core tocus. Consequently,

and assuming we can show a meaningful
reduction in blood pressure in a phase 2
proof-of-cancept study scheduled to start
in 2007, cur strategy remains Lo out-license
Angiotensin Vaccine to a larger partner
with a franchise in this area.

Board Changes

David Gration stepped down from the
Board in July 2005. David provided
excellent support as Deputy Chairman, and
| thank him for his major coniribution over

many years. { was pleased to welcome
Bryan Morton to the Board as a Non-
executive Director in August 2005. Bryan
brings many years of sales and marketing,
business development and general
management experience at senior level
in major pharmaceutical companies.

Strategic View

Protherics is making excellent progress
inits aim to become a leading
biopharmaceutical company. With a high-
value, late-stage development pipeline.
supported by a growing revenue stream
from our critical care and cancer franchises,
Protherics is upbeat about its prospects.
We thank our shareholders for their
suppart and look forward to an exdting
2007

Stuart M Wallis,
Chairman
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Chief Executive’s Review

Overview

Protherics’ major objectives in the financial
year ended 31 March 2006 were to
conclude the out-licensing of CytoFab™
and mave Voraxaze™ closer to the market.

The CytoFab®™ licensing deat with
AstraZeneca was one of the largest
out-licensing deals in anti-infectives in the
last 10 years. Extensive due diligence was
conducted by AstraZeneca during the
licensing process and the deal should be
seen as both a strong endorsement ot
CytoFab™ and our polyclonal antibody
platform. We are extremely pleased with
the progress made on the project by both
parties to date and the commitment
AstraZeneca is showing to CytoFab™,

Looking ahead, the CytoFab™ licensing deal
with AstraZeneca will continue to transform
Protherics. CytoFab™ is a major opportunity
to deliver enhanced value for our
shareholders as Protherics could receive a
further £171m in milestone payments from
AstraZeneca and, assuming requlatory
approvals, royalty payments on net
CytoFab™ sales in the future. We are
focused on delivering on our commitments
0 AstraZeneca to ensure a timely start to
the phase 3 study which is anticipated in
2007. We will continue to invest in the
scale up of the CytoFab™ manufacturing
process and enlarge our existing
manufacturing facilities in a prudently
phased investment process.

We have also made good progress with

the development of Vioraxaze™ throughout
the year, having submitted our marketing
application for intervention use in the EU

in luly, and having gained FDA acceptance
at a recent pre-BLA meeting to the
submission of a similar application in the
US. We expect to launch Voraxaze™ in

both rarkets in 2007 for intervention use
and will be accelerating our in-house
commercialisation activities accordingly.
Meanwhile, we have started developing
Voraxaze™ to be used in a planned way to
control patient exposure to methotrexate,
with the goal of reducing or preventing
mary of the problems currently
experienced by cancer patients receiving
high dose methotrexate therapy.

A key priority for Protherics is the addition
of products to complement Voraxaze™ in
our sates mix, together with the acquisition
or in-licensing of late stage development
programmes to broaden our development
pipeline.

We continue to sée underlying volume
growth in CroFab™ and DigiFab™ sales

in the US. This has stemmed from price
increases and volume growth in the
CroFab™ market, and we have continued to
establish DigiFab™ in the digitalis antidote
market. DigiFab™ sales to Fougera have
reduced however, as our distributer
continues to reduce its inventory levels.

Protherics re-branding: becoming a
sales and marketing organisation

As Protherics starts to build its sales and
marketing organisation, 3 key success
factor is to create a strong brand identity
in the cancer arena. Our new corporate
identity was launched in time for

this year's Annual Report and will be the
banner under which Voraxaze™ is sold to
oncelogists in the US and EU, The benetits
of the improved branding will also be felt
in other areas of the business, and should
help to build on the momentum gained
from the CytoFab™ deal in presenting
Pratherics globally as a leading
biopharmaceutical company.

R&D Pipeline Update

CytoFab™ - for sepsis from severe
infections

On 7 December 2005, we arnounced the
signing of a major licensing agreement
with AstraZeneca tor the global
development and commercialisation of
Cytofab™, our anti-sepsis product. The
agreement has a potential total deal

value to Protherics, based on upiront

and milestone payments alone, of
approximately £195 million (US$340
million}. Protherics will also receive royalties
on global product sales of 20% of net sales
in addition to payments in return {or the
commercial supply of bulk drug substance.
On signing, AstraZeneca made an initial
payment of £16.3 million to Protherics
along with a £7.5 million equity investment
in Protherics.

Under the terms of the agreement,
AstraZeneca Is responsible for developing
CytoFab™, an anti-TNF-alpha polyctonal
antibody fragment (Fab) product, as a
treatment for TNF-alpha mediated discases
in man, with an initial target indication of
severe sepsis. AstraZeneca will undertzke
all clinical development work for CytoFab™
and Protherics will be primanly responsible
for bulk drug manufacturing, induding the
supply of clinical trial material.

AstraZeneca plans to start the pivotal
phase 3 study for CytoFab™ in the US

and EU in 2007 following completion of
the scale-up of the manufacturing process.
Protherics expects to receive a further two
milestone payments from AstraZeneca

in 2007.

Sepsis is a life-threatening condition
resulting from uncontrolled severe
infections which affects an estimated
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three miilion people worldwide each year.
Patients typically require mechanical
ventilation (assisted breathing) and
intensive care, and approximately one third
of patients with sepsis dic as a result of
major organ failure. A more detailed
overview of CytoFab™ and sepsis is
provided on pages 18 and 19.

Voraxaze™ - for the control of high
dose methotrexate therapy in cancer
Voraxaze™ (glucarpidase) contains an
enpzyme that rapidly breaks down
miethotrexate (MTX]). It has been developed
Lo prevent or reduce the serious toxicity
that can result when patients receiving
high doses of MTX {HDMTX) for the
treatment of cancer have difficulty
eliminating methotrexate from the body.

A marketing authorisation application
(MAA) for the use of Voraxaze™ as an
intervention {reatment for patients
experiencing or at risk of MTX toxicily from
its delayed elimination was sutmitted in
the EU in July 2005. Final responses to
questions raised during a review by the
rapporteur countries will be submitted to
the Eurcpean Medicines Agency (EMEA) by
Lhe end of the year and we hope to receive
marketing approval in the first half of 20G7.

Following discussions with the Food and
Crug Administration (FDA} in the latter
half of 2005, further clinical data was
collected to support the Biclogical
License Application (BLA) in the US, All
outstanding issues that needed to be
resolved prior to submitting the BLA were
agreed with the FDA at a pre-BLA meeting
in April 2006 and the application is now
scheduled for submission in the second
half of 2006.

business review — chief executive's review

Once approval is received for intervention
use, Protherics will seek to expand
indications for Voraxaze™ into the
potentially much larger planned use
market. Protherics estimates that there are
16,00¢ cancer patients per annum in the
majcr markets who receive up to 12 cycles
of HDMTX during their treatment, We
believe that there is an opportunity for
Voraxaze™ to become part of the standard
treatment protocals, as a routine adjunct
to HDMTX therapy, to reduce rapidly MTX
levels in the blood once MTX has had its
cancer killing etfect. This may allow
patients to be treated on an out-patient
basis, as they should suffer fewer of the
side effects of HOMTX therapy and require
less monitaring t ensure they are
adequately eliminating methotrexate
following treatment.

The firsL of a series of small studies o
investigate the planned repeated use 6f
Voraxaze™ in patients with delayed
elimination of MTX has been initiated in
the US. MTX is efiminated by the body
through the kidneys, and cancer patients
with known kidney damage typically
either do not receive MTX therapy, or

will receive a less effective dose, because
of concerns that sericus toxicity may
develop if MTX elimination is delayed.
Voraxaze™ can be used to control the
time that such patients are exposed to
MTX, enabling oncalogists to treat these
patients with an optimal dose. Should
these studies be successtul, a pivotal study
will be undertaken to support an extension
of the initial label for Voraxaze™.

Voraxaze™ continues to be available

in both the US and Europe on a
compassionate use basis. In Europe,
where it is possible to charge for its
supply, tevenues increased te £0.8 million
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Andrew Heath. Chief Executive

for the year endad 31 March 2006 from
£0.5 million in the previous year.

Prolarix™ - targeted therapy for liver
cancer and certain other solid tumours
Prolarixi™ is comnprised of a small molecule
prodrug, {retazicar, which is converted to
a highly cytetoxic agent by an endogenous
enzyme, NQOZ2, when administered with

a cosubstrate, caricotamide. The activity
of NQO2 is higher in certzin solid tumours,
including primary liver cancer. than in
normal tissue, so the cytotoxic agent
should be predaminantly produced at

the site of the tumour rather than
elsewhere in the bedy, reducing the
likelihood of serious side efiects.

A phase ¥ study of Prolarix™ is being run
under the auspices of Cancer Research UK
{CRUK} and thirteen patients have been
recruited to date. The dose of caricotamide
that is required to facilitate the conversion
of tretazicar to the cytotoxic agent by
NQO2 has been determined. The dose

of tretazicar is being escalated to
determine the maximum tolerated dose
(MTD]. One patient has received all six
Cycles of treatment to date, with disease
stabilisation achieved at a relatively low
dose of Protarix™.

Further patient recruitment into the trial
is anticipated fram mid-2006, once CRUK
has received Medicines and Heallhcare
Products Regulatory Agency {MHRA}
approval to use an improved formuiation
of caricotamide. Once the MTD has been
determined, an additional cohort of six
patients will be treated to evatuate the
efficacy of Prolarix™. Further data from
the phase 1 study should be available
betore the end of 2006, and the study

is expected to report farmaily in the first
half of 2007,
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Protherics is undertaking the GMP
manufacture of Prolarix™, and the
necessary supporting non-clinical studies,
ahead of a planned phase 2 study in
primary liver cancer in 2007. We are also
investigating epportunities to initiate
additional Protarix™ studies, possibly in
ovarian cancer,

Angiotensin Vaccine - management of
high blood pressure

Protherics’ Angiotensin Vaccine produces
antibodies to angiotensin, one of the key
hormaones involved in the regulation of
blood pressure, We believe that blocking
angiotensin should result in a reduction in
blood pressure and evidence of this has
already been seen by Protherics in a study
conducted in healthy subjects who were
given a salt-reduced diet. A positive effect
on the renin-angiotensin systenm has also
been cbserved in hypertensive patierits,
although blood pressure was not reduced
in this small stucly. These encouraging
findings suggest that with maore effective
neutralisalion of angiotensin, it may be
possible to obtain a clinically significant
reduction in blood pressure in hypertensive
patients.

A number of difterent Angiotensin Vaccine
formutations have been evaluated to
identify one that produces a greater
antibody response than the formulations
first tested in the clinic, One of the
farmulations, containing a novel adjuvant
developed by CoVaccine BV {CoVaccine),
produced up to a 10-fold improvement in
antibody response in preclinical studies.

It has consequently been selected for
further development.

Protherics has now completed the non-
clinical safety testing of the CoVaccine
adjuvant, and will shortly initiate GMP

manufacture of a formulation of
Angiotensin Vaccine containing this
adjuvant, ahead of a planned phase 2a
praot of concept study in second half of
2007. The goal of this study will be to
investigate whether increased levels of
anti-angiotensin antibadies are produced in
hypertensive patients and as a result cause
a reduction in blood pressure.

&n 7 June 2006 we announced that we
had acquired the CoVaccine adjuvant.
Protherics will pay CoVaccine BV up to
€1,050,000 which is satisfied by the right
to receive 295,413 Protherics’ shares
following the signing of the deal.
CoVaccine will alsc be entitled to receive
up to a further 590,826 Protherics shares
upon the satistaction of two development
related milestones, and a low single digit
royally on net sales of products containing
the CoVaccine adjuvant.

The market for the treatment of high biood
pressure is estimated to be in excess of

$30 billion per annum, and with positive
phase 2a data, our Angiotensin Vacdine
could provide another major out-licensing
opportunity for Protherics.

Marketed Products and Business
Environment

CroFab™ - crotalid {pit viper)
envenomations

CroFab™ is a polyclonal antibody fragment
for the management of crotalid
envenomations and it is currently the only
product marketed for these bites in the LS.
The 1otal annual market of about 8000
patients has the potential to be worth in
excess of $80 million and we believe that
the product currently has captured around
half of this potential market. Net revenues
from CroFab™ sales in the US are shared
equally with our distributor Fougesa.

CroFab™ sales were £11.5 million against
£11.4 million in the previous year, with
continued underlying volume growth
offset by a lower dollar translation rate.
In U3 dollar terms, the corresponding
figures were $20.4 million against
$19.3 million. Fougera has increased

its CroFab™ orders for the current year,
and we are working together to expand
market penetration, pasticutarly into
milder, currently untreated bites.

Protherics has undertaken work to improve
the CroFab™ manufacturing process o
reduce the cost of its manufactuse. We
hope to receive FDA approval for the
revised process in 20G8.

DigiFab™ - treatment for digoxin
overdose

DigiFab™ sales declined te £3.8 miliion in
the year, from £5.9 million in the previous
year ($6.7 million in the year compared

to $10.1 millicn in the previous year). Sales
by our distributor, Fougera, were ahead

of the prior year, although, as indicated in
our last Annual Report, Fougera is reducing
its average inventory levels, thus reducing
our shipments and revenues overall. We
expect this situation to continue over the
next two years.

We estimate that the US digoxin overdose
market is worth approximately $25 million
per annum and that the market is
currently shared about equally with
GlaxeSmithKline's product, Digibind®.

We continue to support our application for
FU market approvat of DigiFab™, having
recently met with the MHRA to discuss the
data package. Clinical data from a small
number of patients who have already been
treated with DigiFab™ in the US is required
to support the apphcation. Protherics
currently anticipates receiving approval in
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the UK in the second half of 2006, with
subsequent approvals in Europe over the
foliowing six to twelve months. We believe
the European market can previde a further
opportunity to grow DigiFab™ sales.

Other revenues

Under our revenue recognition policy,
which is set out in the accounting palicies
note to the Financial Statements on

page 54, we have recognised £0.7 million
of CytoFaby™ revenues from the upfront
payment of £16.3 million received in
lanuary 2006.

Named patient sales of Voraxaze™ were
£0.8 million in the year, up from £0.5
millior in 1the previous year, as product
awareness continues to buiid in Europe

and the rest of the world. ViperaTAb™ sales
were down slightly on the correspanding
year, at £0.1 million. We expect sales

to improve modestly as a new batch of
inventory has been released for sale.

Prion recognition (TSE testing) licensing
revenues from Enfer were reduced to
£0.5 million from £8.7 million in the
previous year, as a result of increased
competition in the TSE testing market,
Enfer has launched an updated test kit,
incorporating our intellectual property,
which may help to sustain this no-cost
royalty stream to Protherics.

Operations

The expansion of our manufacturing
capability at our Welsh plant was
compieted on schedule, allowing us

to integrate new clean rooms with our
existing facilities and commence the
scale-up of the CytoFab™ manufacturing
process. We have now reduced CroFab™
and Digifab™ inventory to more normal

tevels, having previously built stock ahead
of this schedtled close down of the
manufacturing plant,

After concentrating our recent efforts

on CytoFab™ process development, we
are also fast-tracking the imptementation
of the new CroFab™ manufacturing
process, as previously discussed. This
process is designed to improve yields and
censiderably enhance plant throughput,
providing capacity for the manufacture of
CytoFab™. In Australia, we are working hard
to obtain the highest possible titre levels in
our CytoFab™ sheep to ensure an optimal
process befare targe voiume scale up.

Business Outlook

To succeed in building a leading
biopharmaceutical business, we must stay
focused in those areas we know best:
critical care and cancer. We must add
praducts and development programmes
to build-out cur cancer business, deliver on
our agreement with AstraZeneca for

the supply of CytoFab™, and maximise
our returns from our niche critical care
preducts. We lock forward to what we
hope will be a very busy period, with the
planned launches of Voraxaze™ in the US
and EU, the start of the CytoFab™ phase 3
trial in severe sepsis and the progression
of Prolarix™ and cur Angiotensin Vaccine
into phase 2 develepment, all anticipated
in 2007, Achieving these key events will
ensure another rewarding couple of years
for Protherics and its shareholders.

Andrew | Heath,
Chief Executive Officer




CytoFab™: New Hope in the Treatment of Sepsis

What is sepsis?

Severe sepsis is one of the most difficult
chatlenges in ¢ritical care. Sepsisis a
complex illness caused when the body
‘over-reacts’ to an infection. Normally the
hody's immune response is directed to

the site of the infection and is able to
resolve the infection. In sepsis, the immune
system sets off an inflammatory chain
reaction to fight the infection but instead
of being locatised to the site of infection,

a severe immune response develops
throughout the body (a systemic response).
Symptoms are varied, with fever, fast
breathing, dizziness, confusion and a fast
heart rate being common.

In some patients, the systemic response
or ‘over-reaction’ to an infection leads

to severe sepsis, where the inflammatory
chain reaction damages one or more vital
organs {lungs, heart, kidneys, or liver).
Sepsis can progress into severe sepsis very
quickly, sometimes in a matter of hours.

A patient can continue 1o deteriorate
inte septic shock, where the blood pressure
falls dangerously low and many organs
matfunction because of inadequate blood
flow. As a result of these cornplications of

sepsis, up to one third of sepsis patients die
despite the resources of a modern intensive

care unit {ICU).

Professor Gordon R. Bernard, M.D.
Director, Division of Allergy, Pulmonary and
Critical Care, Vanderbilt University,

Sepsis facts and figures

. 3 million patients suffer from sepsis globally each year.

. 40% of sepsis patients progress Lo severe sepsis.

. 30% of sepsis patients die.

. The lungs are typically the first organ to fail.

. 1in 10 of all patient admissions to the ICU involves severe sepsis.

. Treating patients with severe sepsis costs US hospitais appraximately $17 billion
each year,

Sunice, Company esamares, Ast iene . 1 3at loniter

Current and future therapy

The current goal of sepsis treatment is

to resolve the underlying infection and
offer best suppoertive care to manage the
symptoms of the condition. Patients with
severe sepsis are treated in the ICU ~
where they may remain for several weeks,
until their recovery ar death. As a resuit,
the treatment of patients with sepsis is
very expensive.

The only preduct on the market which
specifically addresses the sepsis syndrome,
Lilly’s Xigris®, has had a restricted market
uptake because it can cause serious sice
effects in some patients. Despite the
considerable unmet need for new sepsis
treatments, there are only a few products
in late-stage development.

“Each year, severe sepsis afflicts more than 700,000 people in
the US alone and approximately one-third of those affected
will die. This mortality rate remains unacceptable. The best
current hope for these patients is the development of new
pharmaceutical agents that arrest the systemic inflammatory
process. CytaoFab™ holds strong promise for being a major
advance in the armamentarium against severe sepsis.”
Professor Gordan R. Bernard
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CytoFab™

CytaFab™ is an anti-TNF-alpha polyclonal
antibody fragment {Fab) product, which
is being developed for the treatment of
severe sepsis. In an 81 patient phase 2b
severe sepsis study conducted in the US,
CytoFab™ has demonstrated effective
neutralisation of TNF-alpha in the blood
stream, but as importantly, in the lung
tissue of patients with sepsis. This, we
believe, translated into the clinical
observation that patients treated with
CytaFab™ required on average 5 days less
on a mechanical ventilator, and showed
a trend towards improved survival.

CytoFab™ is based on the same technology

platform, ovine polyclonal Fabs, as
Pratherics’ CroFab™ {crotalid antivenomy}
and DigiFab™ (digoxin anlidole) which
have been approved by the FDA and are
currently marketed in the US. Protherics is
the commercial manufacturer of these
products. In dinical studies of CytoFab™ in
sepsis, there have been no adverse events
that were considered definitely, possibly
or probably related to treatment with
CytoFab™_ However, out of 110 sepsis

patients who received CytoFab™, 7 patients

experienced events of uncertain causality
that are consistent with adverse events
expenenced by patients receiving ather
ovine Fab products, inchiding 1 episode
of pruritis, 2 episodes of wheezing, and
4 episodes of rash.

Why should Cytofab™, an anti-TNF
alpha therapy succeed in the
treatment of sepsis?

A large nurnber of sepsis products have
failed in development. Several of these
attempted to neutralise an inflammatory
mediater called TNF-alpha, strongly
implicated in sepsis. Despite signiticant
technologicat advances, such as the
development of monoclonal antibodies
and recombinant proteins, these products
were not proven to demanstrate a
pronounced reduction in TNF-alpha in the
blood of patients with sepsis. One such
monoclonal antibedy based product,
Abbott’s afelimomab, did show a partial
neutralisation of TNF-alpha, and also

showed improved survival in some patients,

although the development of this product
was not completed.

In contrast CytoFab™ is made up of
Polyclonal antibody fragments. These
tfragments are well suited to the in situ
neutralisation of TNF-alpha. Firstly,
polyclonal antibadies are polyvalent,
allowing multiple antibody fragments to
bind TNF-alpha and thus achieve greater
neutralisation of TNF-alpha compared to
monoclonal antibadies. Secondly, antibody
fragments (Fabs) are much smaller than
whole antibody immunogiobuln G
malecules (1gG). As a result, they have a
much greater volume of distribution in the
body, with mare rapd tissue penetration
and clearance of TNF-alpha from the body,
desirable traits for an anti-sepsis therapy.
Thus CytoFab™ may be able to succeed
where other anti-TNF-alpha therapies have
failed in the past,
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Key Performance Indicators

The Board of Directors evaluates the performance of the Company by measuring a number of key performance indicators.

US Derived Revenues

US derived revenues show the underlying sales performance in US dollars and the effects of translating these inte Sterling.

Year to 31 March 2006 2005
usSm £m Ussm fm
CroFab™ 204 s 193 1.4
DigiFab™ 6.7 38 10,7 59
ViperaTAb™ 02 0.1 03 0.2
2713 15.4 29.7 175

Average exchange rate (§/£) 1.77 1.70

Income from CraFab™ and DigiFab™

Our income from CroFab™ and DigiFab™ is recognised in two stages: as we ship product to our distributor (Fougera) and as a royalty on
their product sales.

2006 2005
CroFab™
Cartons shipped 19,201 22,033
Revenue on shipment £7.9m £8.8m
Royalty on Fougera's sales £3.4m £2.4m
Other sales £0.2m £0.2m
DigiFab™
Cartons shipped 27,923 49549
Revenue on shipment £2.6m £4.9m
Royalty on Fougera's sales El.1m £1.0m

Cther sales £0.1m -
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Other Revenues

Other revenues show the build-up of the balance of our revenues.

2006 2005
£m £m
Voraxaze™ 0.8 0.5
CytoFab™ 0.7 -
BSE 05 0.7
Other 0.3 0.1
23 13
US Derived 15.4 175
Total Revenues 17.7 18.8
Margin on Manufactured Products
Margin on manufactured products shows the effects of yield changes and product mix on Gross Profit.
2006 2005
£m fm
Revenues® 16.2 18.0
Cost of Sales {excluding exceptional closedown costs™} 9.9 8.7
Gross Profit (before exceptional closedown costs) 6.3 93
Gross Margin (before exceptional closedown costs) 38.9% 51.7%

“Revenues include sales of CroFab™, DigiFab™, ViperaTAb™ and voraxaze™.

**Cost of sales in 2006 is stated before £1.4 million of exceptional costs associated with the major shutdown incurred te qualify our

expanded manufacturing facility in Wales.
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Financial Review

This is the first full year of reporting under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). Figures for the year ta 31 March 2005 have
been restated to allow 2 year on year comparison of the results, £xplanation of the transition to IFRS is given in note 34 to the Financial
Statements on pages 85 ta 97.

Revenues

In the past, Protherics’ main source of revenue has derived from its two marketed products, CroFab™ and DigiFab™. While these will
continue to be the primary drivers in the shorter term, we anticipate that Voraxaze™ will contribute more significantly, assuming a
successful outcome to the marketing applications under review in the EU and planned for the US. We also expect further milestones from
AstraZeneca, should CytoFab™ continue to progress in developrment. Under our IFRS revenue recognition policy, the initiai CytoFab™
receipt aof £16.3 million will be allocated on a straight line basis over the estimatad time to first marketing approval and £0.7m has been
recognised in the year. The components of the E17.7 million of revenue for the year ended 31 March 2006 and the £18.8 million in the
previous year are shown in the Key Performance Indicators (KPI) table on page 20 and are discussed in the Chief Executive’s Review.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales for the year was £11.3 million compared to £8.7 million in the previous year. There were several factors driving the increase.
During the planned shutdown, undertaken to commission and test the expanded manufacturing facilities, overheads of £1.4 million were
incurred. These are shown as an exceptional cost. Net of these unabsorbed overheads, the cost of sales was £9.9 million. In addition to
this, there was a change in the ratic of products shipped, with a higher proportion of CroFab™, and, as discussed in the Chief Executive's
Review, a lower proporticn of DigiFab™ (a significantly higher margin product) than in the previous year. There were also two batches of
CroFab™ lost due to contamination at our third party filling and freeze drying contractors. The overall effect was a reduction in margins on
manufactured products {excluding the exceptional costs) from 51.7% to 38.9%, as shown in the KPIs. Margins are anticipated to increase
substantially assuming the new CroFab™ manufacturing process is approved by the FDA in 2008.

Administrative Expenses
Research and development expenditure increased to £6.7 million fram £4.6 million as we committed resources to CytoFab™ and
undertook further work on Voraxaze™ in support of regulatery filings. No research and development expenditure has been capitalised.

General and administrative spending also increased to £9.2 million from £7.2 million. We have increased our investments in sales and
marketing, charges for share-based payments under IFRS 2 are £0.4 million higher than the prior year, and the change in treatment of
foreign exchange contracts under IAS 39 has resulted in a cost of £0.5 million against a credit of £0.7 million in the prior year.

Finance Income and Costs

Finance income has increased from £0.2 million in the prior year, to £0.4 million due to the increased levels of cash and cash equivalents
on deposit following receipt of funds from AstraZeneca. Finance costs have shown a decrease to £6.4 million from £0.7 million, largely
as a result of the decreasing balance of convertible loan notes which were issued to finance the Enact acquisition.
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Barry M Riley, Finance Director

Results Before and After Tax

Loss betore tax for the year was £9.6 million compared to a loss before tax of £2.1 million in the previous year, A tax credit, arising
from credits on research and development expenditure has been offset by the release of a small deferred tax asset in respect of our
US operations, resulting in a net credit of £0.1 million in the year, against a credit of £0.3 million in the prior year. Loss for the year
after tax was £9.5 million compared te £1.8 million in the previous year.

Balance Sheet

Continued investment in property, plant and equipment has increased non-current assets to £18.6 million from £17.7 million at the

end of the prior year. Current assets show a significant increase to £41.6 million from £23.6 million. Inventory levels have decreased

by £1.8 million to £10.9 million as inventory built up ahead of the major shutdown has been sold. Cash and cash equivatents are

£25.4 miflion, up from £7.3 millicn as a result of funds received under the AstraZeneca agreement, We plan to make further investrents
in CytoFab™ manufacturing and supporting our other pipeline products.

Total liabilities have increased to £33.8 million from £15.4 million and include £15.6 million of deferred income reiating to the funds
received from the AstraZeneca transaction, £3.3 million of which are included as current liabilities. Current lizbilities have also increased
due to CytoFab™ related spending, whilst non-current kabilities show the effects of conversion of loan notes, with £2.5 million outstanding
at the year end, down from £3.8 million.

Loan note conversions, the equity investment by AstraZeneca, and the exercise of share options have increased share capital and share
premium by a total of £9.2 million over the pricr year, resulting in total equity of £26.4 million at the year end.

Liquidity and Cash Flow

In addition Lo Protherics’ main sources of revenue explained above, we have raised further funds from shareholders as investment
opportunities have arisen, and mare recently received a £7.5 million equity investment from AstraZeneca. We use lease financing to
fund capital equipment where appropriate, with total obligations of £1.8 million at 31 March 20C6.

The acquisition of Enact in 2003 was accomplished largely by the issue of 2 £7.2 million convertible loan note which, it unconverted,
would be repayable in 2010. Much of this has already been converted into ordinary shares, and £2.5 million remained cutstanding at
31 March 2006. Other borrowings remain modest at £0.3 million.

Cash inflow from operating activities was £12.6 million compared to an outflow of £2.8 million in the prior year. Altheugh the operating
loss for the year was £6.5 million, only £0.7 million of the initiai £16.3 million non refundable receipt from AstraZeneca was recognised
as income in the period, and this is reflected in the increased cash inflow from operations.

Cash invested in property, plant and equipment increased to £2.0 million from £1.0 million in the previous year, as we prepared to
scale up the CytoFab™ manufacturing process. Issue of shares, mostly to AstraZeneca, was £8.0 million, down from £9.2 million in the
corresponding year.

Cash and cash equivalents were £25.4 million at the end of the year, up from £7.2 million. We invest our cash resources in short term
deposits with banks with the highest credit ratings, putting security before absolute levels of return.
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Financial Review continued

Currency Effects

CroFab™ and DigiFab™ revenues arise substantially in US dollars, while manufacturing and administrative costs are largely in Sterling and
Australian dollars. We continue to manage currency exposures by covering on a rolling tbwelve month basis. Under IAS 39, we no longer
apply hedge accounting, and the difference between the fair value of these contracts at each year end, plus any exchange gains or losses
are reflected in administrative expenses for the year. Although the foreign exchange contracts therefare lock in expected cash receipts,
they do not determine the rate used to translate these revenues in the (ncome Statement, which depends on the average actual rate over
the year. The efiective overall translation rate applied to these revenues in the year was $/£ 1.77 against $/£ 1.70 in the previous year.

Financial Outlook

Orders remain streng for Crafab™, while we expect a similar year to the one just ended for DigiFab™. Deferred income released from
the AstraZeneca initial payment is expected 1o be in the order of £3 million while, depending on progress, olher milestones may resull,
Voraxaze™ sales in the near term will continue to be derived from named patient sales, with sales increasing following the anticipated
Eurcpean and US marketing approvals in 2007.

We expect research & development expenditure to increase significantly over the next year, as we scale-up the CyloFab™ manufacturing
process, improve the CroFab™ manufacturing process, progress the development of Projarix™ and Angiotensin Vaccine and commence
planned use studies of Voraxaze™,

Barry M Riley,
Finance Director
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Competitive Environment

Some of Protherics' revenue streams have direct competitors {such as Digibind®, GlaxoSmithKline's competitor to DigiFab™), and increasing
competition {in the TSE testing market). In other cases, alternative technologies may be developed which could compete or prove superior
to our ather products or product candidates. We also face competition for possible product acquisitions.

i

Intellectual Property
We may not be able to secure the necessary intellectuzl property rights in relation to products in development. Other companies may
have patents which limit our ability to expioit our R&D efforts, and there are risks of challenge to cur existing patent portfalio.

Regulatory Envirpnment

The pharmaceutical industry is heavily regulated. New products will generally need several phases of preclinical and dlinical studies befare
marketing approval and may require approvals in several jurisdictions. IUis often difficult. 1o anticipate the requirements of the various
requlatery authorities, which can evolve with time, frequently making the approval process mare costly and lengthier than initially
estimaied. The manufacturing of pharmaceutical products is also closely regutated, with frequent inspections from the agencies.

R&D Risk

There is always a risk that drugs under development wilt fail. Patential products may show unacceptable levels of toxicity or may not prove
effective in clinical trials. In addition, it may not prove possible to attract a suttable out-licensing partner for some of our potentially larger
market opportunities, which generally need a higher tevel of investrent in phase 3 clinical studies than we may be able to commit from
our own resources.

Manufacturing Risk

There are ongoing and rigorous regulatory and quality requirements assodiated with the manufacture of pharmaceutical products. We also
rely on certain key suppliers for materials and processes, such as filling and freeze drying the end product. The filling and freeze drying
pracess in particular carries wilh it risks of failure and loss of product. Our polyclonal antibody products rely on serum produced from our
sheep flocks in Australia, which coutd be subject to disease outbreaks and we rely on our single site in Wales to undertake the majority of
the manufacturing process.
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Directors

(ieft to right) James Christie, Bryan Morton, Barry Riley, John Brown, Carry Watts, Andrew Heath and Stuart Wallis

Executive Directors

Andrew John Heath, MD, PhD, (Chief Executive Officer} (S8)

Andrew Heath holds a M.D. and PhD frorm Sweden's Gothenburg Liniversity.
After 2 career in research and clinical medicine at Vanderbilt University, he
joined the pharmaceutical industry in 1989, Or Heath has held both R&D
and commercial positions with Claxo and Astra, in Europe and the US.

He served as Chief Executive Officer at AeroGCen Inc, from 1996, joining
Therapeutic Antibadies Inc. as Chiel Executive Cificer in March 1998,

He continued as CEQ upon the formation of Protherics in 1999 following
the merger of Therapeutic Antibodies the. and Proteus Internationat plc.
Andrew Heath is a Non-executive Director of XL TechGroup Inc, and the
Biolndustry Association.

Barrington Marshall Riley, BA, FCA, {Finance Director) (57}

After qualifying as a Chartered Accountant, Barry Riley joined the Bowater
Qrganisation, where he had respensibility for the finance function at
several operations. From there he moved to FMC Corporation, the US
conglemerate where he had general management responsibilitias for a
speciality chemical operation, and also oversaw the head office finance
function for all UK operations. He joined Proleus Internaticnal plcin 1995 as
Finance Director and was closely involved in the merger with Therapeutic
Antibodies Inc, in 1999, More recently, he played a major part in the
negotiations with AstraZeneca, leading to the licencing agreement in
December 2005. He s a trustee of the Protherics pension scheme,

James Campbelt Christie, BSc, MBA, (Operations Director) (48)
James Christie joined the biopharmaceutical industry in 1980 and has
worked with GSK, Celltech and Centocer BV, befare joining Therapeutic
Antibodies Inc, in 1998. He was appointed to the Protherics Board in
September 1999, He has management responsibility for manufacturing,
quality, process development and technical support operations both in
Australia and in the UK, He is also & trustee of the Protherics pension
scheme and maore recently, he played a major part in the negotiations
with AstraZeneca, leading to the licencing agreement in December 2005,

Non-executive Directors

Stuart Michael Wallis, FCA, CTA {Chairman) {60)

Stuart Wallis was previously the Chief Executive Officer of Fisons pic and
Chairman of Communisis plc and is currently Chairman of Plethora Solution
Holdings PLC, The Simpiy Smart Group Ltd., TSL Education Ltc. and BCS
Global Networks Ltd. He became Chairman of Therapeutic Antibodies Inc.
in Septernber 1398.

Garry Watts, FCA (49)

Carry Walts is currently the Chief Executive Giticer of SSL International PLC
having previously held the position of Finance Director and Managing
Director tor Europe. He is also a Non-executive Direclor of the Medicines and
Healthcare Products Regulatory Agency (MHRA), where he chairs the Audil
and Risk Committee. Previcusly, he hefd exacutive directorships al Celltech
Group plc and Medeva plc. He is a Chartered Accountant and was praviously
a partner with KPMG, leading the UK heaithcare and life science practice.

tohn Robert Brown, PhD, MBA (31}

John Brown was previously the Chief Executive Officer of Acambis PLC having
previously held the position of Finance Director. He is currently the Chairman
of the Roslin Institute and Scottish Biomedical Ltd. He is a Non-executive
Director of Vectura PLC, Ardana plc and Cambridge Antibody PLC. He is a
member of the DTI Technology Strategy Boara.

Bryan Morton, BSc, MBA {50)

Bryan Morton has a BS¢ in Pharmacology from Aberdeen University and
an MBA from Durham University, He began his pharmaceutical career

in sales and has held pesitions in medical information. marketing, sales
management, business development and general management during a
29 year career in the healthcare industry largely with Merck and Co. Inc.
and Bristol Myers Squibb. He has lived and worked in UK, USA, Australia
and Belgium and in 2003 founded Zeneus Pharma through the acqusition
of Elan's European sales and marketing business. Backad by Apax, this
venture resulted in the sate of Zeneus to Cephalon in fate 2005 after
wwo highly successful years of prefitable operation. He is a Non-executive
Director of Aircraft Medical Ltd, a medical device company and is a
member of the Pilgrim Software globa!l advisory board.




Annual Report 2006  directors and advisers

Advisers

Advisers

Company Secretary and Registered Office

Julie Vickers, ACIS, MBA

The Heath Business & Technical Park
Runcorm

Cheshire WAT 40X

Registered in England No. 2459087

Financial Advisers

and Joint Brokers

Nomura Code Securities Limited
1 Carey Lane

London EC2V SAE

Jaint Brokers
Piper lattray

First Floor
Phoenix House

13 King Williarm St
London ECAN 7US

Legal Advisers, UK
Ashursl

Broadwalk House

S Appold Stieet
London EC2A 2HA

Legal Advisers, USA

Waller Lansden Dortch & Davis, LLP
511 Union Street, Suite 2700
Nashville, Tennessee 37219, USA

Independent Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
101 Barbirolli Squsare

Lower Mosley Street
Manchester M2 3PW

Bankers

Barclays Bark Plc
1 Churchiil Piace
London £14 SHP

Registrars and Transfer Office
Neville Registrars Limited

Newille House

18 Laurel Lane

Halesowen

West Midlands B63 3DA

Patent Agents

Frank B Dehn & Co.
Chartered Patent Agents
178 Queen Victoria Streel
London ECAV 4EL

Financial PR, UK
Financiat Dynamics
Halborn Cate

26 Southampton Buildings
London WC2A 1PB

Financial PR, USA
Financial Dynamics

Wall Street Plaza

88 Pine Street, 32nd Floor
New York, NY 10005, USA

27




28

Directors’ Report

The Directors present their annual report an the affairs of the Group together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2006.

Activities
The Company is the parent company of the Protherics Group. The principal activity of the Group is the research, development,
manufacture and sale of pharmaceutical products and potential drugs for use in the treatment of human diseases.

The subsidiary and associated undertakings principally affecting the profits or net assets of the group in the year are listed in note 15
to the financial statements.

Business review

A review of the business of the Group, including a list of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, is set out in the Business
Review on pages 12 to 25. The Business Review also includes details of expected future developments in the business of the Group and
an indication of its activities in the field of research and development. Key financizl performance indicalors are contained on pages 20
and 21 of the Business Review. Information on social, ethicaf and environmental matters are included in the Corporate and Social
Responsibility Statement on page 48.

Certain statements in the Chairman’s Statement and the Business Review are forward looking statements. By their nature, forward-looking
statements invelve a number of risks, uncertainties or assumptions; actual results or events may differ materially from those expressed or
implied by the forward-looking statenients and could adversely affect the outcome and financial effects of the plans and events described
in the Business Review. Forward-looking statements contained in this review based on past trends or activities should not be taken as a
representation that such trends or activities will continue in the future. Undue reliance shouid not, therefore, be placed on the forward-
looking statements included in the Business Review.

Research and development

The Group continues to carry out research and development as detailed in the Business Review. Total research and development
expenditure for the Group and Company during the year was £6,747,000 and £33,000 respectively (2005: £4,575,000 and £17,000
respectively}.

Dividends
The Directars do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year ended 31 March 2006 (2005: £nil).
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Directors
The Directors of the Company who held office throughout the year, unless otherwise stated, and subsequent changes are as follows:

Executive Directors Non-executive Directors

A 1 Heath (Chief Executive Officer)i® S M Wallis (Chairman)i' &

B M Riley (Finance Director) G Watlst2H3) )

1 C Christie (Operations Director) IR Brown (Senior Independent Director)@® &) 5

B G Morton {appointed 1 August 2005)1 (1)
A Atkinson (resigned 18 April 2005)
D W Gration (resigned 20 Juty 2005) )

1} Chairman of Nomination Committee

12 Member of Nomination Committee

3 Chairman of Audit Commitiee

M Member of Audit Committee

=} Chainnan of Remuneration Committee

© Member of Remuneration Commitiee

Messers Heath, Riley, Christie and Waliis retire by rotation at the next Annual Genera! Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election. Mr. Morton will also stand for election at the next Annual General Meeting having been appointed since the previous meeting.

Biographical details of the Directors are given on page 26.

Directors’ interests
The Directors who held office at 31 March 2006 had the following interests in the shares and 6% convertible unsecured loan notes issued

by the Company.
6% Convertible
Qrdinary Shares Loan Notes

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2006 2005 2006 2005
Number Number £ £
S M Wallis 503,424 503,424 60,606 60,606
A ] Heath 346,498 346,498 24,242 24,242
B M Riley 30,019 30,019 15,151 15,151
1 C Christie 28,343 1,343 - -
G Watts - - - -
IR Brown 20,000 20,000 - -
B G Morton® - _ - -
928,284 901,284 99,999 39,999

*from date of appointment
All Directors’ interests in ardinary shares are beneficial.

As at 6 June 2006, being the latest practicable date before the signing of these accounts, there have been no changes to the Directors’
interests in the ordinary shares ar convertible loan notes of the Company.

Details of Directors’ emoluments and share aptions are provided in the Directors' Remuneration Repoert on pages 32 to 41.
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Creditor payment policy

It is the Group's pelicy to agree payment terms with suppliers at the commencement of trading relaticnships and to abide by those terms.

Details of the average trade terms during the year are outlined in Nete 19 to the acceunts.

Substantial shareholdings

So far as is known to the Company, the only persons who, directly or indirectly, were interested in 3 per cent or more of the Company’s

share capital (including heldings notified under section 198 to 208 of the Companies Act 1985) were a5 follows:

Percentage of

Number of shares Issued capital
AXA Framiington Investment Management Limited 26,131,551 11.19%
Morley Fund Management 27,793,624 10.68%
nsight Investment Management 16,955,135 6.51%
Invesco Perpetual 14,321,086 5.50%
Fidelity Investment Services Limited 11,515,217 4.42%
AstraZeneca lreland Operations 10,990,621 4.22%
M&G Investrient Management 10,477,724 4.03%
Artemis Investment Management 9,398,840 361%
tegal & General Investment Management 8,794,444 3.38%

Share capital
Details of shares issued during the year and cutstanding options are given in note 24 to the financial statements.

Policy on employee involvemnent

Briefing and consultative procedures exist throughout the Craup to keep employees informed of general business issues and other matters
of concern. All UK employees with a minimurm of six months service are given the opportunity to join the Company’s Savings Related Share

Option Scheme.

Policy on disabled employees

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the applicant concerned.

Every effort is made to provide the same opportunities to disabled persons as to others and for those employees becoiming disabled
during their employment,

Charitable and political donations
Charitable donations of £160 were made during the year (2005; £150),
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Auditors and disclosure of information to Auditars
So far as the Directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information (that is information needed by the Company’s Auditors in
connection with preparing their report) of which the Campany's Auditors are unaware.

The Directars have taken all steps they aught to have taken as Directors in order to make thernselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company’s Auditors are aware of that information.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have expressed their willingness to continue in otfice as Auditors and a resolution to reappoint therm will
be proposed at the Annuat General Meeting.

Annual General Meeting

The 2006 Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at the offices of Ashurst, Broadwalk House, 5 Appold Street,

London EC2A 2HA on Tuesday 18 July 2006 al 12 ncon. The Notice of Annual Ceneral Meeling, together with a detailed explanation
of Lhe business to be transacted at the meeting, is contained on pages 100 te 105.

By Order of the Board

J A Vickers
Secretary

7 lune 2006

Registered Office:

The Heath Business & Techinical Park
Runcorn

Cheshire WA7 40X

Reqgistered in Engtand No. 2459087

EX
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Introduction

This report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Schedule 7A to the Comganies Act 1985 (the “Schedule™ and also
meets the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority and describes how the Board has applied the
Principles of Good Governance relating to Directors’ remuneration. In accordance with Section 241A of the Companies Act 1985 (the
“Act”™), 2 resolution to approve the report will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting of the Company at which the financial
staternents are to be approved.

Section 235 of the Act requires the Auditors to report to the Company’s members on the “auditable part” of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report and to state whether, in their apinion, that part of the report has been properly prepared in accordance with Part 3 of the
Schedule. The report has therefore been divided into separate sections for audited and unaudited information.

Unaudited Information

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee which is constituted in accordance with the recommendations of the Combined
Code. The members of the Committee comprised J R Brown, G Watts, S M wallis and B G Morton {appointed 1 August 2005). The
Committee was chaired by J R Brown.

None of the Committee had any personal financial interest (other than as shareholders and convertible toan nete holders as disclosed in
the Directors’ Report), conltlicts of interest arising fram cross-directorships or day-to-day involvernent in the running of the business. The
Committee makes recommendations to the Board. No Director plays a part in any discussion about his or her own remuneration.

Using the services of Deiaitte & Touche LLP, at the beginning of 2006, the Committee undertcok a review of the Company’s existing
Cirectors' remuneration arrangements, including surveying a peer group of small biotechnology companies. The Committee also consulted
A | Heath (Chief Executive Officer) in delermining Lhe remuneration of the other Execulive Directors and senior employees.

The Committee has reviewed the Company's share incentive schemes and believes that grant levels and performance criteria remain
appropriate to the Company's current circumstances and prospects.

Remuneration policy

Executive remuneration packages are prudently designed to attract, motivate and retain Directors of the necessary calibre and tc reward
them for enhancing value to shareholders. The performance measurement of the Executive Directors and key members of senior
management and the deterrmination of their annual remuneration package is undertaken by the Remuneration Committee. The
remuneration of the Non-executive Directors is determined by the Board within limits set out in the Articles of Association.

There are five main elements of the remuneration package for Executive Directors and senior management:

Basic salaries and benefits in kind

Share option plans

Long Term Incentive Plan {the LTiP)

Annual incentive and Deferred Bonus Flan (the DBP)
Pensions
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The Company’s policy is that a substantial proportion of the remuneration of the Executive Directors should be performance related. As
described below, Executive Directors may earn annual incentive payments to be paid under the Company’s DBP, the maximum of which is
between 30% and $0% of their basic salary. in the year ended 31 March 2000, Directors and senior executives were given the opportunity
to waive all rights ta receive an annual bonus under the DBP and, at the sole discretion of the Remuneration Committee, the Company
would make additional contributions to the Company's Pension Plan on behalf of those Directors and senior executives. In addition, the
Directars benefit from participation in share-based compensation plans.

Exaecutive Directars are entitled to accept appointments outside the Cornpany praviding that the Chairman’s permission is sought.
A | Heath {Chief Executive Officer) is currently a Non-executive Director of XL TechGroup Inc. from which he received remuneration
of £35,000 per annum.

(i) Basic salaries and benefits in kind

Basic salaries are determined by the Remuneration Committee prior to the beginning of each year and when an individual changes
position or responsibility. In deciding appropriate levels, the Committee considers the Croup as a whale and takes into account the
performance of the individual and the rates for similar positions in comparable companies. Basic salaries are reviewed annually.

Benefits in kind include permanent health insurance and private medical insurance. Benefits in kind are not pensionable.

(i} Share option plans

An Executive Share Option Plan (the ESOP) was adopted following the Extraordinary General Meeting on 27 January 2605, The ESOP is
believed to be consistent with current best practice guidelines. It consists of an unapproved section with a UK Inland Revenue approved
addendum. The option price is the greater of the market value of the shares on the date of grant {or the average market values on the
three days immediately preceding the date of grant if the Committee so determines} and the nominal value of the shares. In any year,
options will not be granted over shares with a value greater than twice the individual's annual remuneration (excluding bonuses,
commissions and benetits in kind). This limit may be exceeded in exceptional circumstances at the discretion of the Commitlee,

Subject to satisfying performance conditions which are imposed at grant, options will be exercisable from the end of the vesting pericd,
normally three years from the date of grant, to ten years from grant. The Committee may waive the performance conditions in certain
circumstances subject to their replacement with equaily stretching conditions. The Committee retains discrelion not to set perfermance
conditions for awards made to employees who are not Executive Directors.

With the exception of the Savings Related Share Options Scherne, the Committee’s current policy is not to use the ESOP or previous option
plans for Executive Directors, but to use the LTIP as the primary incentive mechanism. To date, no options have been granted to Directors
under the ESOP.

The Company has previously operated an Approved Share Option Plan, an Unapproved Share Option Plan and an Approved Savings Related
Share Qption Plan for Executive Directors and employees to motivate those individuals through equity participation in the Company. The
Committee has respansibility for supervising the plans and the grant of options 10 Executive Directors under the terms of the plans.

Under both the Approved and Unapproved Share Option Plans, which have been used widely across the Group, the exercise price of the
options granted is equal to the market value of the Company’s shares at the time the options are granted. Options issued prior to March
2004 may then be exercised on any date between three and ten vears from the date of grant of the option subject to the Company's
share price outperforming the average price of shares in the FTSE All Share Pharmaceutical and Biotech Index in any three year period
commencing on or after the date of grant of the option. The Unapproved Plan requires that, for options granted to holders with an
aggregate value (at the date of grant) tor all options between four and eight times annual salary, those options may be exercised between
five and ten years from the date of grant, subject to meeting the required performance criteria. Prior t¢ December 1999, the Approved
Plan required real growth in earnings per share over three years, Initially, the Unapproved Plan, adopted by Proteus International plc in 1996
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prior to the merger with Therapeutic Antibodies Inc., had performance criteria intended for an early stage biotechnology company,
refating principally to the successful completion of agreements with milestone payments generating turnover. The Board considered that
the cnteria was not appropriate to the more mature business of Protherics PLC, and, under the Plan rules, adopted the pertormance criteria
approved in December 1999 as likely to be a fairer and more effective incentive.

The options granted on 1 March 2004 are subject to revised performance criteria intended to improve compliance with best practice
guidelines. Performance will be measured once only after three years from grant. If the Total Shareholder Return (TSR} of the Company
reaches the median of the FTSE All Share Pharmaceutical and Biotech Index, one third of the shares under option become exercisable,
rising on a sliding scale such that all the shares under option become exercisable if the Company’s performance is at or above the upper
quartile, For options granted to holders with an aggregate value (at the date of grant) for all executive schermne options of between four
and eight times annuat salary, performance wilf be measured after five years. No options are exercisable if the TSR of the Company is at
the median of the FTSE All Share Pharmaceutical and Biotech Index. Options may then be exercised on a shiding scate beyond this point,
with the maximum number of shares being exercisable if the Company’s performance is at or above the upper quartile, The Commiltee
must also be satisfied that there has been an improvement in the Company’s underlying financial performance aver the period. These
performance criteria were selected to incentivise Directors 1o enhance shareholder value above the Company’s peer group.

In addition, A | Heath was granted an option te subscribe for 600,000 ordinary shares at 39p on 22 December 1999, The agreement

was structured as an individual option agreement to facilitate the retention of A J Heath as the Chief Executive Otficer of the Company.
The existing options held by A | Heath had exercise prices significantly in excess of the then current market price and in order 1o provide
A ) Heath with sufficient incentive, it was thought appropriate to enter into the option agreement. The terms of the agreement are similar
1o those of the Unapproved Share Option Plan. In particular, the option may generally be exercised only between the third and tenth
anniversaries of the date of grant, and on the date of exercise, the share price must have outperformed the average of the FTSE Alf Share
Pharmaceutical and Biotech Index in any preceding three year pericd. An adjustment may be made to the number of shares under option
or the exercise price in the case of a variation in share capital, subjecl to confirmation by the Auditors that it is in their opinion {air and
reasonable. The option lapses if A | Healh leaves the Company voluntarily, and must be exercised within Lhree months if his employment
ceases by reason of injury, disability, sickness or redundancy. The agreement confers no pensionable benefits. No amendment may be
made to the benefit of A ) Heath except with the prior approval of the Company in General Meeting except for minor amendments

to benefit the administration of the agreement or to obtain or maintain favourable tax, exchange controt or regulatory treatrment for

A ] Heath or any Group Member. No such options have been exercised to date.

The Company also operates an Approved Savings Related Share Option Pian, which is open to all emiployees with a minimum of six months
service. Options may be granted under this Plan at a discount of up to 20% of market value on the date immediately preceding the date
of the invitation made to employees to subscribe for options. All options granted under this plan during the year and outstanding at

31 March 2006, have been made at 20% discount. Options miay be exercised during the period of six manths following maturity of the
savings contract. Under the rules of the Plan, participants may choose either a three-year or a five-year savings contract. There are no
performance ¢riteria under the Savings Related Share COption Plan.

As at 31 March 2006, awards over 10,520,520 ordinary shares were outstanding under the Company's discretionary plans which amounted
ta 4.1% of the Company’s issued share capital.

(iii) Long Term Incentive Plan (the "LTIP"}

The LTIP is used as the primary incentive mechanism for executive Directors. Other key employees are also invited to participate. Awards
are made in the form of share options over new issue shares with an award price equal to the aggregate nominal value of the number of
shares under option. Current policy is to grant awards twice yearly. Awards will not be granted in any year with a value greater than the
individual's annuat remuneration {excluding bonuses and benefits in kind), This limit may be exceeded in exceptional circumstances at the
discretion of the Committee.
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Awards are exarcisable at the end of the vesting period, subject te the achievement of performance conditions determined at the time
of grant. The Committee may waive the performance cenditions in certain circumstances, subject 1o their replacement with equally
stretching conditions, Any change in conditions would be disclosed to shareholders in the Director’s Remuneration Report. The vesting
period will normally be three years from the date of grant, and awards may be exercised up to ten years from the date of grant. Benefits
under the LTIP are not pensionable.

Provided the Remuneration Committee is satisfied that the Company has achieved sound underlying performance, awards will vest based
on the Comipany's TSR. Performance will be measured after three years from grant by measuring the TSR of the Cempany against a
comparator group consisting of the primary listed compoenents of the FTSE All Share Pharmaceutical and Biotech Index but excluding those
companies in the FTSE 100 {currently Alliance Unichem Plg, AstraZeneca PLC, GlaxaSmithKline PLC and Shire pfc). TSR will normally be
averaged acrass a period of three months before the date of the reward and three months before the date on which the performance
pericd ends, although the Committee may determine that & different averaging period is appropriate and properly seflective of
management performance. In any event this will not be more than six months or less than one month. This is in keeping with normal
market practice and is a practical adjustment to smooth cut the impact of short-term market influences and to provige a more robust
measure of the performance of the Group. Awards will vest, on a sliding scale between each step, as follows:

Protherics PLC TSR relative to comparator group % of total award vesting
Upper decite 100%
Upper quartile 30%
Median 30%
Below median il

Measuring the Company's performance against these comparators recegnises the importance for shareholders that the Company
outperforms its sector and reflects the impertance of the Company’s 2im af sustainable share price growth,

The awards made to Directors under this plan are illustsated in the table on page 32 of this report.

(iv} Annual incentive and Deferred Bonus Plan (the “DBP"}

From 1 April 2005 the D8P, approved by shareholders on 27 january 2005, was introduced. Current policy is to grant awards annually to
Executive Directors and sentor employees. Participation is at the discretion of the Committee, The maximum award is set at 50% of basic
salary, but may be exceeded in exceptional circumstances. Performance is measured against annual targets, which are set for each
individual director and are determined with reference to the requisite performance for achieving the overall strategic objectives of the
business, These targets may be amended should the Remuneration Committee consider this to be in the interests of the Company, subject
to their replacernent with equally stretching conditions. The Cemmittee will determine the extent to which the award will be delivered as
cash or, as an option over the Company's shares.

Where the award is delivered as an option, the number of shares under the award is calculated by dividing the amount of the bonus by
the market value of the shases on the date on which the award vests, or such other day as the Committee determines, Options will
normaily be granted at a nominal, or nil, exercise price and will normally be exercisable between two and ten years after grant. If the
individual leaves within the two year deterral period, under normal circumstances the aption is forfeited. The Committee retains the
discretion to allow the individual to retain the shares if appropriate.

Benefits arising under the DBP are not pensicnatle.

(v} Pensions

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme for the benefit of Executive Directors and employees. Their dependants are
eligible for a lurmp sum in the event of death in service. The assets of the pension scheme ate held separately from those of the Group.
The Committee may make payments to the pension scheme in lieu of bonuses or salary increases, at its discretion.

s
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Performance graph

The following graph shows the Company’s performance, measured by TSR, compared with the performance of the FTSE All Share
Pharmaceutical and Biotech Index also measured by TSR, TSR is defined as share price growth and reinvested dividend. The FTSE All Share
Pharmaceutical and Biotech Index has been selected for this comparison because it is the index used as the performance criterion for
the Company’s Approved and Unapproved Share Option Plans. An additional graph showing the Company's TSR against the FTSE Alt Share
Pharmaceutical and Biotech Index (excluding FTSE 100 companies). TSR has also been included in this report as it is the index used for
performance measurement under the LT
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Executive Directors’ Contracts
It is the Company’s policy that Executive Directors should have contracts with an indefinite term providing for a maximum of one year's

notice by the Company.

The details of the Executive Directors’ contracts are summarised in the table below:

Notice Notice

period period

Date of Contract {Director}  (Company)

1 C Christie 21 September 2000 & months 12 months
A J Heath 6 November 2001 12 months 12 months
B M Riley 13 July 1995 6 months 12 months

In the event of early termination, the Directors’ contracts provide for compensation up to a maximum of basic salary for the notice period.

Non-executive Directors’ terms of engagement

The Non-exacutive Directors have specific terms of engagement, Their remuneration is determined by the Board within limits set by the
Articles of Association and based upon 8card surveys of fees paid to Non-executive Directors of similar companies with similar
responsibilities. G Watts, ) R Brown and B G Morton receive payments under letters of appointment which are terminable by three months
notice by either party, S M Wallis receives payment under both a consultancy agreement and a letter of appointment, both of which are
terminable with twelve months notice from either party. A Atkinson received payments under a letter of appeintment, terminable by three
months notice by either party. In addition, Chimeron Limited, a company in which A Atkinson has an interest, received £40,583 in respect
of consultancy services over the period from 1 April 2005 to 30 Novermber 2005, When setting the remuneration ot Non-executive
Directors, the Board considers the amount of time required to discharge Committee responsibilities. Excluding the Chairman cf the
Company, the Non-executive Directors receive fees of £25,000 per annum. The Chairmen of the Remuneration and Audit Committeas
receive an additional amount of £5,000 per annum.
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Non-executive Directors cannot participate in the Company's share opticn and share award plans, although any existing options held upon
appointment can be retzined.

The Non-executive Directors are not eligible to join the Company’s pension scheme.
Audited Information

Aggregate Directors’ Remuneration
The total amounts for Directors’ remuneration were as follows:

2006 2005
£000 £'000
Emoluments 942 865
Compensation for loss of office 50 7
Cains on exarcise of share options 3 -
Money purchase pensicn contributions 202 149
1,197 021

Gains made by A Atkinson and D Gration occurred following their resignation as Directors and are not included in the above table.

Directors’ Emoluments

Compensation
Feesfbasic fordoss of  Benefits Annual 2006 2005
salary office inkind  bonuses Total Total
Narme of Director £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Executive
1 C Christie 140 - 1 69 210 160
A J Heath 179 - 2 153 334 251
B M Riley 130 - 1 70 201 175
Non-executive
A Atkinson 8 39 - - 47 103
I R Brown 30 - - - 30 21
M S Brown - - - - - 7
D W Gration 9 il - - 20 28
8 G Morton 17 - - - 17 -
M Peagram - - - - - -
S M wallis 70 - 33 - 103 103
G Walts 30 - - - 30 24
613 50 37 292 992 872

A Alkinson ang D W Gration resigned as Non-executive Directors on 19 April 2005 and 20 July 2005 respectively. M § Brown and
M Peagram resigned as Non-executive Directors on 16 Aprit 2004,
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The fees and termination payments in respect of A Atkinson include £41,000 (2005: £83,000) paid to a company controlled by him. The
feesin respect of S M Wallis include £35,000 paid to his management campany (2005: £35,000).

Benefits in kind reflect the provision of private healthcare with the exception of S M Wallis for whom a fully expensed car is provided.

The feesfbasic salary exclude entitlernents waived by A | Heath and B M Riley of £100,000 and £30,000 respectively (2005: £70,000 and
£15,000 respectively). The Remuneration Committee determined that these sums be paid into their respective pension funds and they are
included in the Directors” Pension Entitlerment table below,

A J Heath, B M Riley and J € Christie waived their right to receive a bonus under the DBP for the year ended 31 March 2006, and the
Remuneration Committee has determined that an amount to be classified as a bonus be paid into the Company pension fund on their
behalf. The amount paid was equal to Lthe amount which would otherwise have been receivable under the DBP plus 10% thereof, being
a portion of the saving 1o the Company as a result of the method af benus payment. The annual bonus disclosure above includes the
additional 10%. These amounts are not included in the Directors’ Pension Entitlement table below,

Executive Directors are entitled to accept appointments outside of the Company providing that the Board's permission is given. A ] Heath
(Chief Executive Officer} is currently a Non-executive Director of Xt TechGroup Inc. from which he received remuneration of £35,000 in
the year ended 31 March 2006.

Directors Pension Entitlements
Three Directors were members of money purchase schemes during the year (2005: three). Contributions made by the Company in respect
of such Directors were as follows:

2006 2005

£'000 £000

1 C Christie 14 12
A ) Heath 142 107
B M Riley 46 30

202 149
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Directors’ Share Options
Aggregate emaluments do not include any amounts for the value of options to acquire ordinary shares in the Company granted o or held
by the Directors, None of the Directors exercised any options during the cuirent year.
Details of the options for Directors who served during the year are as follows:
At At
1 April Cancelled 31 March Exercise Exercisable

2005 Cranted Exercised or expired 2006 price (p) frem to
Approved options
B M Riley 52,855 - - 52,955 - 68.83 25 Jul 19938 24 July 2005
Unapproved options
D W Cration 90,000 - 90,0008 - - 46.00 22 lun 200 21 Jun 2008
B M Riley ©5,000 - - - 65,000 46.00 22 lun 2001 21 Jun 2008
B M Riley 50,00C - - - 50,000 3900 22 Dec 2002 21 Dec 2009
B M Riley 120,000 - - - 120,000 4350 22 Feb 2004 21 Feb 20M
B M Riley 350,000 - - ~ 350,000 39.50 15 Jan 2005 15 lan 2012
B M Riley 200,000 - - - 200,000 2325 20 Jun 2006 19 Jun 2013
B M Riley 225,000 - - - 225,000 5850 1 Mar 2007 28 Feb 2014
B M Riley*t) 132,420 - - - 132,420 2.00 28 Feb 2008 27 Feb 2015
B M Riley*} - 92,357 - - 92,357 2.00 21 Dec 2008 20 Dec 2015
A Atkinson 100,000 - 100,000™3 - - 2325 20 Jun 2006 19 Jun 2013
A Atkinson 135,000 - 135,000™1 - - 5850 1 Mar 2007 28 Feh 2014
1 C Christie 250,000 - - - 250,000 39.00 22 Dec 2002 21 Dec 2009
1 C Christie 80,000 - - - 80,000 43.50 22 Feb 2004 21 Feb 201
1 C Christie 250,000 - - - 250,000 3950 16 Jan 2005 15 Jan 2012
J C Christie 100,000 - - - 100,000 2325 20 Jun 2006 19 lun 2013
1 C Christie 150,000 - - - 150,000 S850 1 Mar 20G7 28 Feb 2014
1 C Christie*(l 1M1.416 - - - 111,416 2.00 28 Feb 2008 27 Feb 2015
1 C Christie™? - 77707 - - 77,707 2.00 21 Dec 2008 20 Dec 2015
A | Heath 116,300 - - - 116,300  175.00 27 Jan 2000 29 Jun 2008
A | Heath 500,000 - - - 500,000 43.50 22 Feb 2004 21 Feb 201
Al Heath 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 3950 16 Jan 2005 15 fan 2012
A ] Heath 300,000 - - - 300,000 2325 20 Jun 2006 19 Jun 2013
A I Heath 325,000 - - - 325,000 5850 1 Mar 2009 28 Feb 2014
A ) Heath* 221,233 - - - 221,233 2.00 28 Feb 2008 27 Feb 2015
A J Heath*@ - 157556 - - 157,556 2.00 21 Dec 2008 20 Oec 2015
Savings-related options
} C Christie 27,000 - 27,0009 - - 3750 1 Apr 2005 31 Oct 2005
1 C Christie - 14,384 - - 14,384  65.00 1 Feb 2009 31l 2009
Individual
Al Heath 600,000 - - - 600,000 3900 22 Dec 2002 21 Dec 2009

5,551,324 342,004 352000 52,955 5,488373

*Options issued under the LTIP appioved by the shareholders on 27 January 2005, The arkel price of a share at the date of grant was

1 57.00p and & 78.50p.

**Following the resignation of A Atkinson from the Board on 19 April 2005, under the rules of the Unapproved Share Option Plan, the
Remuneration Committee determined that his options would be exercisable during the period to 31 December 2005.

The market price ot a share on the date of exercise was & 81.00p and © 49,50,
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Cains on exarcise were as follows:

D W Cratien £31,500
A Atkinson £88,125
1 C Christie £3,240

The market price of the Company’s ordinary shares to which the options relate was 89.0p at 31 March 2006 and fluctuated between
45.0p and 99.75p during the year,

Options issued on 1 March 20G4 under the Unapproved Plan are subject to performance criteria which measure TSR on a sliding scale
against the FTSE All Share Pharmaceutical and Biotech Index. Options issued to existing holders with a tetal aggregate value {at the date
of grant) of up to four times annual salary may be exercised after three years. If the Company is at the median, one third of the shares
under option becorme exercisable, rising on a sliding scale such that all the shares under option become exercisable it the Company’s
performance is at or above the upper quartile. For options granted to existing holders with a total aggregate value (at the date of grant}
between four and eight times annual salary, performance will be measured after five years. No options are exercisable if the TSR of the
Company is at the median of the FTSE All Share Pharmaceutica! and Biotech index. Options may then be exercised on a sliding scale
beyond this peint, with the maximum number of shares being exercisable if the Company’s performance is at or above the upper
quarlile. The Committee must also be satisfied that there has been an improvement in the Company's underlying {inancial performance
over the period.

Options were granted on 28 February 2005 and 21 December 2005 under the LTIP which was adopted by shareholders on 27 January
2005, Performance will be measured after three years from grant by measuring the total shareholder return of the Company against a
comparator group consisting of the primary listed components of the FTSE All Share Pharmaceutical and Biclech Index but excluding
those companies in the FTSE 100. TSR will normally be averaged across a period of three months before the date of the reward and

three months tefore the date on which the performance period ends, although the Committee may determine that a different averaging
period is apprapriate and properly reflective of management performance but in any event this will not be more than six months or tess
than ene month. This is in keeping with normal market practice and is a practical adjustment to smooth cut the impact of short-term
market influences and to provide @ more robust measure of the performance of the Group. Awards will vest, on a sliding scale between
each step, as follows:

Protherics PLC TSR relative to comparator group % of total award vesting
Upper decile 100%
Upper quartile 80%
Median 30%
Below median Nil

Measuring the Company’s perfermance against these comparators recognises the importance for sharehalders that the Company
cutperforms its sector and reflects the importance of the Company's aim of sustainable share price growth.

Options issued prior to 1 March 2004 under both the Approved and Unapproved Share Option Plans, may be exercised on any date
between three and ten years from the date of the grant of the option subject to the Company’s share price outperforming the average
price of shares in the FTSE Pharmaceutical Index in any three year period commencing on or after the date of grant of the option. There
are no performance criterfa under the approved savings related option plan.
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The performance criteria for A J Heath's individual option is similar to those of the Unapproved Share Option Plan. In particular, the aption
imay generally be exercised only between the third and tenth arniversaries of the date of grant, and on the date of exercise, the share
price must have outperformed the average of the FTSE Pharmaceuticals index in any preceding three year period. An adjustment may be
made to the number of shares under option or the exercise price in the case of a variation in share capital, subject to confirmation by the
Auditors that it is in their opinion fair and reasonable. The option lapses if A J Heath leaves the Company voluntarily, and must be exercised
within three months if his employment ceases by reason of injury, disability, sickness or redundancy. The agreement confers no
pensionable benefits. No amendment may be made to the benefit of A | Heath without the prior approval of the Company in General
Meeting except for minor amendments to benefit the administration of the agreement or to obtain or maintain favourable tax, exchange
control or regulatory treatment for A J Heath or any Group Meinber.

A ) Heath holds options over 116,300 shares under the Protherics PLC Plan for ex Therapeutic Antibodies employees. There are no
performance criteria under this Plan, which mirrers Lhe terins af the Therapeutic Antibodies 1990 Plan, from which the aplions

were transferred.

The market price of the Company’s ordinary shares to which the options relate was 83.0p at 31 March 2005 and fiuctuated between
45 0p and 99.75p during the year.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 7 june 2006 and signed on its behalf by:

1 R Brown
Chairman, Remuneration Committee
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Corporate Governance

PRINCIPLES STATEMENT

The Board are committed to high standards of Corporate Governance. In accordance with the Listing Rules, the Company is required to
comply with the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) Combined Code on Corporate Governance issued in July 2003 {the Combined Code).
Set cut below is a statement of how the principles of the Combined Code were applied. The Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in
preparing the accounts is set out on page 99 and the statement from the Auditors on their reparting responsibilitics is set out on page 98,

The Board of Directors

The Croup is contrelled through its Board of Directors of the Company. The Board's main roles are to create value for shareholders, to
provide leadership to the Group and approve its strategic objectives and to ensure that the necessary financial and other resources are
made available to enable it to meet those objectives. The Board, which meets at least nine times a year, has a defined schedule of matters
reserved for decision by It.

The specific responsibilities reserved to the Board include: setting overall Group strategy, approving major capital expenditure or other
cormmitments, including any substantial Lransactions, consideration of major financing matters of the Group, overseeing the system of

risk management and approving annual and interim financial statements. Il also approves the annual budgets and menitors performance
against this budget and considers key appaintments within the Group. Control of research and development, business development, sales
and marketing and corporate afiairs is delegated through the Chief Executive to senior executives who submit monthly reports to the
Board. | C Christie has overall responsibility for operations, and control of operational matters is delegated through him to senior managers
at each of the Company's sites in Wales and Australia.

As at 31 March 2006, the Board comprised four Non-executive Directors, induding the Chairman, and three Executive Directors. Non-
executive Directors A Atkinsen and D W Gration resigned on 19 Aprit 2005 and 20 July 2005 respectively. The names of the current
Directors together with their biographical details are set out on page 26 of this report. With the exception of B G Morton who was
appointed as Non-execulive Director on 1 August 2005, all the Directors at the date of this report served throughout the period
under review.

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman of the Board, S M Wallis, and the Chief Executive, A | Heath, is clearly defined and has
been approved by the Board.

The Chairman leads the Board in the determination of its strategy and in the achievement of its objectives. The Chairman is responsible for
organising the business of the Board, ensuring its effectiveness and setting its agenda. The Chairman has ne involvernent in the day to day
business of the Group. The Chairman facilitates the effective contribution of Non-executive Directors and constructive relations between
Executive and Non-executive Directors, ensuring Directors receive accurate, timely and clear information. The Chairman gives feedback to
the Board on issues raised by major shareholders.

The Chief Executive has direct charge of the Group on a day to day basis and is accountable to the Board for the financial and operational
performance of the Group.

The Company regards S M Wallis, | R Brown, G Watts and B G Morten as independent Non-executive Directors and these Directors
constructively challenge and help develop proposals on strategy. and bring strong independent judgement, knowledge, and experience to
the Board's deliberations. The Independent Directors are of sufficient calibre and number that their views carry significant weight in the
Board's decision making. | R Brown is the Senior Independent Director. As Senicr Independent Director, he is available 10 shareholders if
they have concerns where contact through the normal channels of Chairman, Chief Executive or Finance Director has failed to resolve
matters or for which such contact would be inappropriate. A Atkinson and © W Graticn who served as Non-executive Directors untif

19 April 2005 and 20 July 2005 respectively were nat considered independent due to share options held by them, which were granted
whilst the individuals hetd executive positions within the Company.
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The Board ensures that all Directars receive appropriate training on appointiment and that there is an agreed procedure whereby any of the
Directors may take independent professional advice, at the Company's expense, in the furtherance of their duties. Continuing training is
provided as and when necessary. Training requirements are identified as part of the annual appraisal process. All Directors also have access
to the advice and services of the Company Secretary,

The Carmpany held nine Board meetings during the year ended 31 March 2006. All members of the Board are supplied in advance with
appropriate information covering matters which are to be considered, including monthly management accounts and regular managernent

reports, which enables themn to scrutinise the Group's and management’s performance against agreed cbjectives,

The record of Board attendance during the year ended 31 March 2006 was:

Number of Total
meetings number of
attended meetings

A Atkinson {n m
1R Brown (8) (9
J € Christie @ (9
0 W Gration {4 (4
Al Heath (9) (9)
B M Riley =) (9)
S M Wallis (@ (%)
G Watts ) (@)
B G Martan {5) (5)

The Board has established a formal process, led by the Chairman, for the annuai evaluation of the performance of the Board, its principal
Committees and its individual Directors using a detailed evaluation checkiist based on the Higgs evaluation guidance. The performance of
the Chairman was reviewed by the Senior Independent Non-executive Director. The Directors are made aware that their performance will
be subject to an evaluation on appoirtment.

The Company's Articles of Association require Directors to stand for election by shareholders at the first practical opportunity after their
appointment and for re-election every three years.

Executive Directors A J Heath, B M Riley and J C Christie who are proposed for re-election at the aext Annual General Meeting have service
contracts which provide notice periods by the Company of one year. Non-executive Directors S M Wallis and B G Merton are also proposed
for re-efection. S M Walfis receives payments under a consultancy agreement which is terminable by twelve months’ notice from either
party, and a letter of agreement as Chairman which is terminable by twelve months’ notice from either party. 8 G Morton receives
payments under an appointment letter which is terminable by three months' notice from either party.

Nomination Committee

A Nomination Committee has been established to recommend the appointment of new Directors to the Board and to make recommendations
on Board compaosition and balance. In appainting Non-executive Directors, the Board's practice is to use an external recruitment agent. This
procedure was followed in respect of the recruitment of 8 € Morton as a Non-executive Director, During the year, the Committee comprised
A ) Heath (appointed 26 May 2005}, B G Morton (appointed 1 August 2005}, G Watts, D Gration {resigned 20 July 20C5) and J R Brown and
was chaired by S M Wallis and the contribution of all members of the Committee was in fine with expoctations.,
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The terms of reference of the Committee have been documented and agreed by the main Board. The full text of the terms of reference are
available in the investor relations section of the Company website, www.pratherics.com. The key terms are as tollows:

® to review and evaluate the Board structure, size, balance of skills and compesition and make recommencdlations to the Board with
regard to adjustments Lhat are deermed necessary;

® consider succession planning for Directors and other senior executives, and

® prepare 3 description of the roles and capabilities required for a particular appointment, be respansible for identifying and nominating
candidates for approval of the Board to fill Board vacancies as and when they arise as well as put in place plans for succession, in
particular, of the Chairman and the Chief Executive,

The record of attendance during the year ended 31 March 2006 was:

Number of Total
meetings number of
attended meetings

J R Brown (3) (3)
A} Heath (3 (3
B G Morton () ()
S M Wallis (3) (3
G Watts {3 (3)

Belore selecting new appointees, the Nomination Committee considers the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board to
ensure that a suitable balance is maintained. All job specifications prepared include details of the time commitments expected in the role.

S M Wallis has other commitments outside the Company as documented on page 26. The Board does not consider that these
commitments represent an impediment to proper performance of his role as Chairman of the Company.

Details of Directors’ service contracts are given in the Remuneration Report on page 36. The terms and conditions of appointment of Lhe
Direclors are available for inspection by any person at the Company's registered office during normal business hours and at the AGM
(for 15 minutes prior to the meeting and during the meeting).

Directors’ Remuneration Committee

The Company’s Rermuneration Commiltee comprises S M Wallis, G Watts and B G Morton (appeinted T August 2005) and is chaired by

JR Brown. The Commitiee meets at least once a year to review the Group's policy on Directors’ remuneration and advise the Board on the

salaries and benefits of Executive Directors. The full terms of reference of this Committee have been docurmented and are available in the

investor relations section of the Company website, www.protherics.com. The key terms are as follows:

e determine the policy for the remuneration of the Fxecutive Directors and the executive team and review the ongoing appropriateness
and relevance of such remuneration palicy:

o determine total individual remuneration of the Exacutive Directors and executive team, inchiding, benuses, incentive payments,
pension and ather benefits;

e determine the annual bonus arrangements for the Executive Directors and executive team and review bonus arrangements
recommended by the Chiet Executive Officer for senior management within the business;

® review the design of afl share incentive plans for approval by the Board and shareholders. For any such plans, determine each year
whether awards will be made, and if so, the overall amount of such awards, the individual awards to Executive Directors and other
senior executives and the performance targets to be used; and

® eview any major changes to pension schemes, prior to submission to, and approval by, the appropriate Boards of Trustees.
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The record of attendance during the year ended 31 March 2006 was:

Number of Total
meetings number of
attended meetings

J R Brown (2) {2)
B G Morton (2) (2)
$ M Wallis (2) (2)
G Watts {1) {2)
By Invitation

A ) Heath {2) (2)

The Board has discussed the composition of the Remuneration Committee and is satisfied that the Directors who are members of this
Cormnmittee are those who are best able to contribute to the Committee's objectives.

The Remuneration Report, which includes details of the Group's remuneration policy is set out on pages 32 to 41 of the Annual Report.

Audit Committee

During the year the Audit Committee comprised ot Non-executive Directors B G Morten (appointed 1 August 2005), G Watts and

J R Brown. On 26 May 2005, S M Wallis resigned from membership of the Committee. D W Gration resigned from the Commitiee upon
his resignation as a Non-executive Director on 2C July 2005. G Watts acted as Chairman of the Committee. Al the current members are
considered independent Non-executive Directors.

The Committee has at least one member possessing recent and relevant financial experience. G Watts, a chartered accountant, was Group
Finance Director of SSL plc between 2001 and 2004 and prior to that, a partner at Chartered Accountants XPMG, it can be seen trom the
Directors’ biographical details, appearing an page 26, that the other members of the Committee bring to it a wide range of experience
from positions at the highest ievel.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee have been documented and agreed by the main Board. The full text of the terms of
reference are available in the investor relations section of the Company website, www.orotherics.com, The Committee's duties include:

® monitoring the integrity of the Group's financial statements and any formal announcement relating to the Group's performance;
e reviewing significant accounting judgements contained within the Group's financial statements;

& monitoring the effectiveness of the external audit process and making recommendations to the Beard in relation to the appointment,
re-appointment and remuneration of the external auditor,

® ensuring that an appropriate relationship between the Group and the External Auditors is maintained, including reviewing non-audit
services and fees;

® reviewing annually the Group's system of internal contral and the process for monitoring and evaluating risks tacing the Group;
reviewing, from time to time, the need for an internal audit function; and

e reviewing and monitoring External Auditors’ independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process taking into
consideration relevant UK prolessional and regulatory requirements.
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The Audit Committee has approved a whistleblower procedure at a meeting held on 26 May 2005 and issued to all employees on
31 May 2005.

The Comimittee meets with Executive Directors and management, as well as privately with the External Auditors.

In order to preserve auditor independence, the Board seeks alternative advisors in the provision of consultancy services unless use of the
auditor is in the best interests of the Group. The Auditors are asked on a regular basis to articulate the steps they have taken to ensure
their independence. Prior approval of the Audit Committee is required for any non-audit services provided by the External Auditors. Details

of the amounts paid to the External Auditers during the year for audit and other services are set out an page 61 of the finzncial statements.

The record of attendance during the year ended 31 March 2006 was:

Number of Total
meetings number of
attended meetings

I R Brown {4 (4)
D W Gration 2) (2)
B Morton {2) ()
G Waltts (4) (4)
By invitation

) C Chrisite (2) (4
Al Heath (4) (1)
B M Riley 1) (4)
S M Wallis {4} )

Shareholders

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are the principal spokesmen for the Group with both institutional and private investors. Tha Chief
Executive Officer and Group Finance Director attend meetings with major institutional shareholders at least bi-annually and communicate
the views of majerity shareholders to the Board. The Company Secretary ensures that any matters of concern raised by institutional
shareholders are communicated to the Board and its Committees as appropriate.

The Annual General Meeting is used as an opportunity to communicate with private investors, as is the Company’s website which includes
announcements and corporate documents. All shareholders are entitled to attend the Annual General Meeting where the Chairmen of the
Audit, Remuneration and Nemination Committees are available for any questions that may aise. It is the Company's intention that the
notice of the forthcoming AGM and related papers will be sent to shareholders at least 20 working days before that meeting.

tnternal Control

The Directors have overall responsibility for ensuring that the Group maintains a system of internat control to provide them with reasonable
assurance that the assets of the Group are safeguarded and that the shareholders’ investments ate protected. The system includes internal
contrels covering financial, operational and compliance areas, and risk management. There are limitaticns in any system of internal control,
which are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives. Such internal control systems provide
reascnable but not absolute assurance with respect to the preparation of financial information, the safeguarding of assets and the possibility
of material misstatement or loss. In the year to 31 March 2006, an Enterprise Risk Management programme was undertaken and a detailed
assessment was made of the major risk areas tor the business and methods used to monitor and control them. In addition to financial risk,
this covered operational, commercial, marketing and research and development risks.
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The Board confirms that there is an engoing process for identifying, evaluating and mianaging the significant risks that the Group faces.
The Board regutarly reviews the risk management process, which has been in place from the start of the year to the date of approval of
this report and which is in accordance with the Turnbull guidance.

The key procedures designed to provide an effective systern of internal control are that:
® there is an organisational structure with clearly defined lines of respensibility and delegation of authority;
e annual budgets are preparcd and updated as necessary;

® management accounts are prepared on a monthly basis and compared to budgets and forecasts to identify any significant variances;
and

e the Group appoints staff of the required calibre to fulfil their allotted responsibilities.

Internal Audit

The Board has considered it inappropriate to establish an internal audit function, given the size of the Group, hawever, this decisicn

will be reviewed as the operations of the Group develop. In future vears, the Company and its Auditors will be required to report on

internal cantrols as part of the Sarbanes-Oxley regulations to support its SEC iegistration and resource has been allocated to prepare
for this requirement.

Going Concern
After making enquiries, the Directors have a reascnable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operaticnal

existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adept the going concern hasis in preparing the financial statements.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
Throughout the year ended 31 March 2006, the Company complied with the provisions of the Combined Code except for:

e the Chairman of the Company, S M Wallis, and D W Gration, who was not considered to be an independant non-executive due to
options held which were granted whilst he held an executive rote in the Company, were both members of the Audit Committee at
the start of the year. In accordance with the Smith guidance, § M Wallis resigned as a member of the Committee on 26 May 2005
whilst D W Gration resigned from the Board and its committees on 20 july 2005; and

e the terms of reference of the Remuneration Commitlee and the Nomination Committee were not adopted until 26 May 2005, and
have since become available on the Company's website.
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Social, Ethical and Environmental Policies

Corporate and Social Responsibility
The Board of Directors has adopted a corporate respensibility programme which incorporates social, ethical and environmental palicies (SEE).

Social and Ethical Policies
Protherics policy is to establish and preserve a reputation for ethical and {air dealing with its stakeholders.

Protherics has implemented policies on health and safety, human resources policies including the issuance of a Company handbook
detailing a code of conduct, which is supported by cther policies such as equal opportunities, palicies against harassment, disciplinary
rules, grievance procedures, maternity and parental leave policies.

The Campany has appointed Health and Safety Cfficers who undertake regular audits and maintain a health and safety culture within
the Group.

The Company has published on its website a code of ethics applicable to the Chief Executive Officer, Finance Directar and Group Financial
Controller, as required by the US Sarbanes - Oxley legistation, and has also distributed a whistleblowing policy to all emplayees.

The ethical behaviour of the Company is reliant on the way employees conduct business with external organisations. Employees are
required when acting on hehaf of Group companies to uphold best ethicat practice with respect to customers and suppliers.

Protherics promotes interaction with the local community, including schools and has hosted a number of open days at its UK
manufacturing facility.

Environmentai Palicy

The Company regards the protection of the environment as a mutual objective for management, employees and others engaged in
Company activities. It is Company policy to adopt the “best available techniques not entailing excessive costs” (BATNEEC) and “best
practicable environmental option™ (BPEQ) approach at all times to prevent pollution of the air, land and water, and to protect everyone
from ali foreseeable hazards connected with Company activities.

In particular, the Company has a responsibility to:

provide and maintain a safe and healthy environment;

adopt a systern of integrated pollution control of all Company activities,

realise its duty of care for the management of all waste;

provide adequate information, instruction, trainfng and supervision to prevent the pollution of the environment;
take account of all relevant statutory requirements;

assess all risks to everyone affected by Company activities; and

continually monitor environmental control measures applicable to the Comnpany's activities and wherever necessary, consult with the
Environmental Agency, ocal enforcing authorities and external advisers.

All employees and athers engaged on Company business have a duty to co-operate in the enactment of this Policy by:

e working safely and efficiently at all times;

e reporting any incidents that have led, or may lead to possible pollution of the environment; and

& adhering to Company Rules and procedures for secuting a safe and healthy environment.

The Company’s UK manuiacturing eperation has been independently assessed to the Green Dragon Environmental Management Standard
level two. A Gap Analysis has been completed in respect of seeking assessment at the higher fevel three standard.
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Income Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2006
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
Notes £'000 £'¢00 £'000 £00C
Revenue 4 17,709 18,83% 1,302 1,017
Cost of sales
Cost of sales excluding exceptional dosedown costs {9,930) (8,744) - -
Exceptional closedown costs 6 (1.362) - - -
Total cast of sales {11,292} {8,744) - -
Gross profit 6,417 10,095 1,302 1,017
Administrative expenses:
Research and development 6,747} (4.575) {33} (17
General & administrative {9,203} (7178) {4557}  (2,865)
Total administrative expenses (15,850} (11,753) {4,590} (2.882)
Operating loss 6 {9.533} (1,658) (3,288} {1,365)
Finance income 8 401 236 226 188
Finance costs 9 (431} (655) {253) {468)
Loss before tax (9.563) {2.077) (3,315) {2,145}
Tax 10 75 296 - -
Loss for the year 26 {9.488) (1.781) (3,315} {2,145)
Pence Pence
Basic and diluled loss per share n (3.8) (0.8)
The results relate to continuing operations.
Statements of Recognised Income & Expense
for the year ended 31 March 2006
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
Notes £000 £'000 £000 £'000
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations {158) {33} - -
Net expense recognised directly in equity (158) {33) - -
Loss for the year {9.488) (1,781}  (3.315) {2.145)
Total recognised expense for the year (9.648) {1.814)  (3.315} (2,145)
Adjustments arising on first time adoption of 1AS 32 and 1AS 39 26 21 - 285 -
Total losses recognised since last financial statements {9.435) (1.814) {3,030} {2.145)

All recognised income and expense is attributable to equity shareholders.

The notes on pages 52 to 97 form part of these financial statements.
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Balance Sheets

at 31 March 2006

Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
Notes £000 £000 £'000 £000

Non-current assets

Goodwilf i2 9,199 8,199 - -
Intangible assets 13 1,060 1,681 - -
Property, plant and equipment 14 8,109 6.999 280 242
Investrnent in subsidiaries 15 - - 62,357 62,357
Deferred tax asset 10 206 432 - -

18,574 17711 62,637 62,599

Current assets

Inventories 16 10,887 12,752 - -
Financial assets 23 - 75 - -
Tax receivabies 717 344 - -
Trade and other receivables 17 4,520 3,200 17,198 13,224
Cash and cash equivalents 1§ 25,438 7.270 8.517 6,852

41,562 23,641 25,715 20,076

Total assets 60,136 41,352 88,352 82,675
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 19 15,722 8,551 6,172 5,832
Current tax liabilities 278 209 - 164
Financial liabilitics

Obligations under finance leases 22 623 534 1 28
Bank overdrafts and loans 20 37 el - -
Derivative instruments 23 136 - 136 -

16,796 9487 6,308 6,124

MNon-current liabilities

Trade and other payables 19 13,081 638 - -
Financial liabilities

Borrawings 20 222 250 - -
Convertible loan notes 21 2,469 3,762 2,469 3762
Obligations under finance leases 22 1,216 1,246 - 3

16,988 5,896 2,469 3,765

Total liabilities 33,784 15,383 8,778 9,889
Net assets 26,352 25969 79,574 72,786
Shareholders’ equity

Share capital 24 5,186 4,844 5,186 4844
Share premium account 25 86,770 77868 86,770 77.868
Merger reserve 26 51,163 51,163 - -
Equity reserve 26 263 - 263 -
Cumulative translation reserve 26 (191} (33) - -
Retained earnings 26 (116,839) (107.873) (12,645) (9.926)
Total equity 26,352 25969 79,574 72,786
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directers and avthorised for issie on 7 June 2006, They were signed on its

behalf by:

B M Riley

Director

The notes on pages 52 to 97 form part of these financial statements,
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Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005

Notes £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash inflow/{outflow) from operations 31 12,609 {2,054) (6,278} (2.045)
Income tax paid {50) (79) - -
Income lax receivad 5 332 - -
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from operating activities 12,564 (2,801) (6,278} (2,045)
Investing activities
Interest received 40 236 226 188
Proceeds on dispesai of property, plant and equipment 52 35 45 1
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (1,989) (1,001) (142) (22)
Purchases of other intangible non-current assets - (191) - -
Capital grants received 250 10 - -
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities (1.286) {911} 125 167
Financing activities
Interest paid (257) (494) {204) (393)
Interest paid on finance leases (133) {131) (1) (4)
Repayment of borrowings (171) (336) - -
Repayments of finance leases (582) (490} (30} (25)
tssue of shares 8,049 9,161 8.049 9,161
Net cash from financing activities 6,906 7,710 7.814 8,739
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 18,184 3,998 1,665 6,861
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 7,242 3,253 6,852 {9)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 12 {9 - -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 18 25438 7.242 8,517 6,852

The notes on pages 52 to 97 form part of these financial statements.
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1

General Information

Pratherics PLC is a company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 1985, The address of the registered office
is given on page 27. The nature ¢f the Croup’s operations ang its principal activities are set out in note 5 and in the Business Review
on pages 12 to 25.

These financial statements are presented in Sterling because that is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Group operates. Foreign operations are included in accordance with the policies set out in nate 2.

These financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 7 June 2006. Al the date of authorisation of these
financial statements, the foliowing Standards and Interpretations, which have not yet been applied ir these financial statements, were
in issue but not yet effective;

@ [IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, and the related amendment to IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements on
Capital Disclosures,

& [FRIC 4, Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease.

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations in future years will have no material impact on the
financial statements of the Group except for additional disclosures on capital and financial instruments when the relevant Standards
come into effect for periods commencing on or after 1 April 2007,

Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial staternents are set out below. These policies have
heen consistently applied to all years presented unless otherwise stated.

Adaption of International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS)
This is the first set of financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS adopted for use in the European Union.

The Group financial statements were prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice

(UK GAAP) until 31 March 2005. In preparing the financial statements for 31 March 2006, management has amended certain
accounting, valuation and consolidation methods applied in the UK GAAP financial statements to comply with the recegnition and
measurement criteria of IFRS. The comparative figures in respect of 31 March 2005 are restated to reflect these adjustments.

The Group has adopted Standards and interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board {IASB) and the
Internaticnal Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee {IFRIC) of the 1ASB that are relevant to its operation and effective
for accounting periods beginning on 1 April 2005.

First-time adoption of IFRS
For the year ended 31 March 2006, the Croup has applied the principles set out in IFRS 1, First-time Adoption of International
Reporting Standards, which has been applied in preparing these financial statements,

IFRS 1 sets out the procedures to be followed when adopting IFRS for the first time as the basis for preparing the Group's financial
statemnents. The Group is required to establish its IFRS accounting policies as at 31 March 2006, and, in general, apply these
retrospectively to determine the iFRS opening balance sheet at the date of transition. (FRS 1 provides a number of optional exemptions
lo this general principle. The most significant of these are set oul below, together with a desciiption, in each case, of the exempticn
adopted by the Group:

# Business Combinations - IFRS 3, Business Combinations
The Group has elected not to restate business combinations recognised befare the dale of transition.

® Financial Instruments ~ IAS 32, Financial Instruments; Disclosure and Presentation and IAS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement
The Group has elected to adopt I1AS 32 and I1AS 39 from 1 April 2005, Therefore the comparative finandial information in respect
of financial instruments is presented in accordance with UK GAAP.
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® Share-Based Payments - IFRS 2, Share-Based Payments
The Group has elected to apply IFRS 2 to all share-based awards and options granted post 7 November 2002 that had not vested
by 1 January 2005,

® Previously accumulated translation differences have been set to zero as at 1 April 2004.
The disclosures required by IFRS 1 concerning the transition from UK GAAP to IFRS are given in note 34,

Basis of accounting

These financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with IFRS and IFRIC interpretations adopted for use in the European
Union and with those requirements of the Companies Act 1985 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. The financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of certain financial assets and
liabilities. A summary of the more impartant policies are set out below, logether with an explanation of where changes have been
made o previous policies in the adoption of new standards in the year.

The preparation of financial staterments in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires the use of estimates
and assumptians that aftect the reported amounts of assets and Habilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on management’s best
knowtedge of the amount, events or actions, actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of Protherics PLC incorporate the financial statements of the Company and all entities aver
which it can exercise control {its “subsidiaries”). Control is achieved by the power to govern the finandal and operating policies of the
subsidiary generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currenlly exercisable or convartible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity,
Subsidiaries are fully consofidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consclidated from the date
an which control ceases.

The purchase method is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assurned at the date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed are measured initially at
their fair values on the date of acquisition, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest, The excess of the cast of acquisition over
the fair value of the Group’s share of identifiable net assets, including intangible assels acguired, is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of
acquisition is less than the fair value of the Group's share of net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly
in the income statement.

Where necessary, adjustments are made te the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring accounting policies used into fine with
those used by the Group.

On consolidation, all intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenditure are eliminated.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets, liabilities and operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject to risks
and returns that are different from those of other parts of the business. A geographical business segment is engaged In providing
products or services within a particular economic environment that is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
segments operating in other economic environments.

Foreign currency translation

ltems included in the financial staterents of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the functional currency of the primary
econcmic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Sterling, which is the Company's functional and presentational currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
dencminated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at that date. Gains and
tosses arising on translation are included in the income statement.
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On consolidation, the results of operations that have a functional currency different from the presentational currency are translated at
the average rate of exchange during the year and their balance sheets at the rates ruling at the date of the balance sheet. Exchange
differences arising on translation from 1 April 2004 are taken directly to a separate compenent of equity, the cumulative translation
reserve.

Revenue recognition
Revenue represents amounts receivable in respect of the sale of goods and services, licence agreements and intellectual property 1o
customers during the year, net of trade discounts given and value added tax,

A description of the various elements of turnover and their accounting policies is given below:

& Products
Revenue is partly recognised upon the shipment of praducts to the distributor, the significant risks and rewards having been
transferred to the distributor, with further amounts being recognised in accordance with the contractual terms upaon shipment
Lo the end user,

e Upfront payments
Non-refundable upfront payments are deferred and recognised over the penod of the earnings process (see note 3),

® Outlicensed product royalties
koyalty income is generated by sales of products incorparating the Group's proprietary technology. Royalty tevenues are secognised
once the amounts due can be reliably estimated based on the sale of underlying products and collectibility is assured. Where there
is insufficient historical data on sales and returns to fulfil these requirements, for example in the case of a new product, the royaity
revenue will not be recognised until the Group can reliably estimate the underlying sales,

Research and development expenditure

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as incurred. Expenditure incurred on development projects {relating to the design
and testing of new or improved products}) is recognised as intangible assets when it is probable that the project will be a success,
considering factors including its commercial and technological feasibility, status of regulatory approval, and the ability to measure costs
reliably. Other development expenditures are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development expenditure previously recognised as
an expense is Not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period. Development expenditure that has a finite useful life and which has
been capitalised is amortised from the commencement of the commercial production of the product on a straight line basis over the
period of its expected benefit,

No development expenditure has been capitatised in either Lthe current or prior year.

Exceptional items
The Group defines exceptional items as those items which are nct expected to occur frequently and by their nature or size, would
distort the comparability of results from year to year.

Intangible fixed assets - Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable assets,
including intangible assets, of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in
intangible assets. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or when events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value
may be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumutated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an subsidiary include
the carrying amount of goadwill refating to the subsidiary sold.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions before the date of transition to IFRS has been retained at the previous UK GAAP amount. Goodwill
arising on acquisitions in the year ended 31 March 1998 and earlier periods has been written off to reserves, has nol been reinstated
in the balance sheet and is not included in determining any subsequent profit or loss on disposal.

Intangible fixed assets ~ Other

Purchased trademarks, licenses and customer lists are recognised at cost an acquisition and are subject to amortisation over their useful
lite from the point at which Lhe asset is available for use. The amaertisation charge is calculated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives {currently a maximum of 8 years).
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Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly factories and offices. All property, plant and equipment is shown at cost less subsequent
depreciation and impairment, except for land, which is shown at cost less impairment. Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the itemns.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of each asset less its residual value over its
estimated useful life as follows:

Buildings and improvements 5% to 10% per year

Plant and machinery 10% to 15% per year
Computer equiprment and software 20% to 33% per year
Fixtures, fittings and motor vehicles 20% to 25% per year

The assels residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted as appropriate at each balance sheet date.

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the asset may
not be recoverable. An assets carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the carrying amount exceeds
the higher of the assets fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Any impairment charge is recorded in the income statement.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These are included in the income
statement. Borrowing costs incurred during the construction of assets are expensed as incurred.

Investments
Investments are stated at cost less any provision for impairment.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its langible assets and intangible assets with finite lives when events or circumstances
indicate the carrying value may be impaired whilst goodw#l with an indefinite ife is reviewed for impairment on an annual basis. In
performing such reviews, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss
(if any), Where the assel does not generate cash flows that are independent frem other assets, the Group eslimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. An intangible asset with an indefinite life is tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

It the recaverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset {cash-generating unit) s reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately,

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying value of the asset {cash-generating unit} is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, provided that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss baen recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises materials, direct labour and a share of production
overheads appropriate to the relevant stage of production, Provision is made for obsolete, slow-moving or defective items where
appropriate. Net realisable value is determined at the balance sheet date an commercially saleable products based on estimated selling
price less all further costs to completion and all relevant marketing, selling and distribution costs. Research and development inventories
are fully provided for in the income statement for the year, and are reinstated as appropriate if the related products are brought into
commeicial use.
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Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year, Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income
staternent because it excludes itemns of income and expense that are taxable or deductible in other periods and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates which have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the linancial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabililies are not recognised i the temporary difference arises frem goodwill or the initial recognition
(other than a business combination} of other assets and fiabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temnporary ditferences arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates, and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the lemporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probabtle that sufficient taxable profits will be available 1o allow the asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax is caleulated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the liability is settled or the asset Is realised.
Deterred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Leases
Leases are classitied as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of cwnership to the
lessee. All other leases are classitied as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. The corresponding liability to the lessar is included in the
balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly
against income. Such assets are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the length of the lease. Assets purchased
under hire purchase agreements are accounted for similarly, except that these assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives,

Rentals under operating leases are charged to income on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Grants
Grants towards staff re-training costs are recognised as income aver the periods in which the related costs are incurred and are
deducted in reporting the related expense.

Grants relating to property, plant and equipment are treated as deferred income and released to the income statement over the useful
lives of the assets concerned.

Pensions

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme for all members of staff who wish to participate. The funds of the scheme
are administered by trustees and are independent of the Group's finances. The Group's contributicns are charged in the income
staternent as they falt due.
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Share-based payments
The Group has applied the requirernents of IFRS 2, Share-Based Payments. In accordance with the transitional provisions, IFRS 2 has
been applied to all grants of equity instruments after 7 November 2002 that were unvested at 1 January 2005.

The Group grants share options to Directors and employees. Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair value at the
date of grant and expensed on a straight-line basis over the expected life of the option, based on the estimate of the number of
options that will eventually vest.

The share options granted have varying performance criteria required for the option to vest and these are considered in the method of
measuring the fair value. Where it is considered appropriate, the {air value is measured using the Black-Scholes model. Where complex
market performance criteria exist, a simulation model has been used, based on the same underlying methodology as the Black-Scholes
model, to establish the {air value on grant.

Convertible loan notes

Following adoption of IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, by the Group on 1 April 2005, convertible loan
notes are regarded as compound financial instruments, consisting of a liability carnponent and an equity component. At the date of
issue, the tair value of the liability component is established by using an estimate for a similar nen-convertible debt. The difference
between the proceeds of issue of the convertible loan notes and the fair value assigned to the liability component, representing the
embedded option to convert the liability into equity of the Group, is included in equity.

Issue costs are apportionied between Lhe liability and equity components of the convertible loan notes hased on their relative carrying
armounts at the date of issue. The porticn relating to the equity compeonent is charged directly against equity.

The interest expense on the liability component consists of the coupon rate and the element of the equity component proportionate
to the liability component outstanding. This latter part is added to the carrying amount of the convertible loan notes.

Prior to 1 Apiil 2005, the convertible loan notes were recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction ¢osts incurred with the
difference between the proceeds {net of transaction costs) and the redemption value being recognisad in the income statement over
the period of the borrowings.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their face value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts.

Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their face value.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group's aclivities exposes it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The Group uses foreign
exchange forward contracts and options to hedge these exposures. The Group does not use derivative financial instruments for
speculative purposes. The use of financial derivatives is in accordance with the Group’s policies approved by the Board of Directors,
which is to hedge the foreign currency exposure from the expected LIS dollar sales on a roling 12 month basis.

Prior to the adoption of 1AS 32, Finandial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation, and IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, on 1 April 2005, where a derivative instrument was used to hedge an asset denominated in a foreign currency, the
effect of the instrument, being the difference between the closing and hedged rate of exchange for these assets, was carried
separately on the balance sheet as a financial asset.

Following the adoption of IAS 32 and IAS 39 on 1 April 2005, these derivatives do not gualily for hedge accounting in accordance with
IFRS since the exposure is primarily on intra-group transactions between subsidiary cornpanies which are eliminated on consolidation.
As a consequence, these derivatives are initially recognised and measured at fair value on the date the derivative contracts are entered
into and subsequently measured al fair value. The changes in fair value of these derivative financial instruments are recognised in the
incoime statement as they arise.
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Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, ather
short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Financial guarantees
The Company has not adopted amendments to 1AS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurerment, and IFRS 4. Insurance
Contracts, in relation to financial guarantee contracts which will apply for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2006.

Where the Company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within its group, the
Company considers these to be insurance arrangements, and accounts for them as such. In this respect, the Company treats the
guarantee contract as a contingent liability until such time as it becomes probable that the Company will be required 1o make a
payment under Lthe guarantee,

The Company does not expect the amendiments to have any impact on the financial statements for the year commencing 1 April 2006.

Financial risk management

The Group's muktinational operations expose it ta a variety of financial risks that include the effects of changes in foreign exchange
rates, credit risks and liquidity risks. The Group undertakes procedures which aim to reduce uncertainty in the financial performance
of the Group which are discussed below:

e Foreign exchange risk
A significant element of the Group’s revenue is denominated in US dollars whilst much of its cost base in the provision of these
products is denominated in Sterling, The Group enters into cash {low hedges in the form of toreign exchange contracts and similar
derivatives which typically extend for 12 months and cover 70 to 100% of anticipated requiremenis.

e Creditrisk
A significant element of the Group's revenue is generated from sales to one customner in the US. Management are constantly
in communication with this customer and monitor both sales to and payments frem this customer to minimise the credit
risk exposure.

¢ Liquidity risk
The Group maintains a mixture of shart and medium term depasits that are designed to ensuie the Group has sufficient avalable
funds for operations and planned expansions.

3 Critical Accounting Judgement

As described in note 2, it is the Group's policy te recognise non-refundable upfront payments over the period of the earnings process.
During the year, the Group received £16,300,000 from AstraZeneca UK Ltd in a Patent and License Know How agreement. These monies
are non-refundable and are being recognised as revenue as the varying obligations within the contract are being satisfied, estimated to
be over a period of 5 years. In determining the revenue recognition period, management considered the detailed criteria for the
recognition of revenue per IAS 18, Revenue, and is satisfied that all requirements have been met by the Group.
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4 Revenue

An analysis of the CGroup’s revenue is as follows:

Group

2006 2005

£'000 £°000

Sale of products 16,221 17,945
Revenue in respect of product development 976 -
Other 72 182
17,269 18,127

Qutlicensed product royalties 440 712

17,709 18,839
Finance income 401 236

18,110 19075

The Company’s revenue comprises of charges for the provision of services to Group companies.

5 Segmental Reporting

For management purpases, the Group is organised into two operating segments, the sale, manufacture and development of
pharmaceutical products and rovalties arising from outlicensed technology. These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports
its primary segment information.

The revenue and costs of each segment are clearly identifiable and allocated to each segment accordingly. There are no
inter-segmental revenues. The exceptional itern shown within cost of sales is included within the sale, manufacture and

development of pharmaceutical products operating segment.

Business segments

2006 2005
Sale, manufacture Sale, manufacture
and development Outlicensed and development  Qutlicensed
of pharmaceutical product of pharmaceutical product
products royalties Group products rayalties Group
Continuing operations £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000
Revenue 17,269 440 17,709 18,127 712 18,839
Segment result (9,961) 428 {9.533) (2,345} 6387 (1,658)
Finance income 401 236
Finance costs (431) {655}
Loss before tax {9.563) (2,077
Tax 75 296
Loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders " {9,488) (1,781}
Segment assets 34,566 132 34,698 33,878 204 34,082
Unallocated assets 25,438 7270
60,136 41,352

Segment liabilities (33,709) (75) (33,784 (15.121) (262)  (1%.383)
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2006 2005
Sale manufacture Sale manufacture

and development Outlicensed and development Outlicensed

of pharmaceutical product of pharmaceutical product
products royalties Group products royalties Croup
£000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000

Other segment items:

Capital expenditure 2,629 - 2.629 1,837 - 1.937
Depreciation (note 14) 1,391 - 1,391 1,464 - 1,464
Amartisation of intangible assets (note 13) 114 - 114 m - 1

Other non-cash expenses - -

Geographical segments

The Croup’s operations are located in the UK, North America and Australia. The UK is the home country of the parent.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group's sales by geographical market, irrespective of the origin of the goodsfservices, along
with the carrying amount of segment assets and capital expenditure (on both property, plant and equipment and intangible assets):

Revenue Segment assets Capital expenditure
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Continuing operations: £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
United Xingdom 1,562 1,322 27905 24998 2,194 973
United States 16,087 17,466 (5,015) {3,158} 17 652
Australia 60 51 3,462 4169 418 2
17,709 18,839 26,352 25,969 2,629 1,837
Operating Loss
Operating loss has been arrived at after charging f{credited):
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
£000 £:000 £:000 £000
Net foreign exchange lossesf{gains) 454 {128} 602 {96)
Research and development expenditure 6,747 4575 33 17
Inventories:
Cost of inventories recognised as expense 11,193 8,732 - -
Depreciation ot property, plant and equipment:
Owned assets 1,154 1,294 35 32
Assets ownad under finance leases 237 170 14 16
Amortisaticn of purchased intangible fixed assets 114 111 - -
staff costs (note 7} 8,127 7454 2.002 1,501
Auditors’ remuneration:
Audit 77 71 21 19
Other services 177 192 70 152
Operating leases — rentals payable:
Plant & equipment 25 24 i 3
Other 463 547 30 32
Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets 108 162 9 -
Repairs and maintenance expenditure on property, plant & equipment 595 406 - -
Amortisation of government grants (78} (48) - -
Covernment grants towards training costs (11} (3) - -
Exceptional closedown costs (within cost of sales)it 1,362 - - -

()During the ycar ended 31 March 2006, the Group completed a major upgrade and expansion of its manufacturing facility in Wales,
Guring this phase of the work, the facility was shutdown for a substantial part of the year incurring £1,362,000 of expenditure which,
under normal circumstances would have been absorbed into stock manufactured during the year, These casts had no effect on the

tax credit for the period.
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A more detailed analysis of Auditors” remuneration on a worldwide basis is provided below:

Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
£'000 % £°000 % £000 % £°000 %
Services as Auditors:
Statutery accounts 77 303 71 270 21 231 19 1.1
US regulatory 24 9.5 30 1.4 24 26.3 30 175
101 39.8 iel 384 45 49.4 49 28.6
Further assurance services:
Tax compliance 56 22.0 42 16.0 G 6.6 34 19.9
Other 15 5.2 10 3.8 13 14.3 8 4.7
7 27.9 52 19.8 19 20.9 42 24.6
Tax advisory services 61 24.0 10 38 6 6.6 - -
Other non-audit services:
Accounting advisory services 21 83 20 76 21 231 - -
Accounting and taxation reviews - - 80 3C.4 - - 80 46.8
21 8.3 100 38.0 21 231 80 46.8
254 100.0 263 100.0 H 100.0 17 100.0

The audit of the Group’s defined contribution pension scheme is performed by the Group's Auditors, the fee for which is borne by the
Group and represents £2,000 {2005: £1,000] of the amount shown above.

A description of the work of the Audit Committee is set out in the Corporate Governance Statement on pages 45 and 46 and includes
an explanation of how auditor objectivity and independence is safeguarded when non-audit services are provided by the Auditors.

7 Staff Costs

The average number of persons, including Directors, employed by the Group and Company during the year was:

Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
Number Number Number Number

Management. 35 34 n N

Administration 27 25

Research and production 135 153 - -
197 212 19 17

Their total remunearation was:
£000 E'000 E£'000 £'000

Salaries 6.849 6,298 1,621 1,169
Social security costs 649 553 172 123
Pension costs 629 603 209 209

8,127 7454 2,002 1,501
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The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme for the benefit of all quatifying executive Directors and emplovees.
The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of the trustees. Where there
are employees who leave the scheme prior to the contributions fully vesting in the scheme, the contributions paid by the Group
are refunded.

Pension contributions of £74,00G (2005: £66,000) were included in accruals at the year end for the Graup. No accruals were included
in the Company for the current and prior years.

In addition to the wages and salaries analysis above are the effects of the share-based compensation charge to the Group during the
year of £311,000 (2005; £237000). The charge in respect of the Company net of amounts recharged to Gioup companies was
£217,000 (2005: £122,000).

Key management compensation

Group
2006 2005
£7000 £'000
Salaries and short-term employee benefits 1,577 1,375
Post employment benefits 256 196
Compensation for loss of office 50 7

1,883 1,578

In addition to the above, the charge te income in respect of share options for key management personnel was £232,000
(2005: £123.000).

The key management figures given abeve include Directors,

Directors emoluments
Croup
2006 2005
£'000 £000

Salaries and short-term employee benefits 942 865
Post employment benefits 202 149
Compensation for foss of office 50 7

1,194 1,021

The remuneration of the Executive Directors is decided by the Remuneration Committee. Full details of the Directors’ remuneration
and details of the Directors' options, including gains made on the exercise of share options, are contained in the Directors’
Remuneration Report an pages 32 to 41.

Transactions with Directors

The Company rented office accommodation from, and had administration services provided by Chimaeron Limited, a company in which
A Atkinson has a controlling interest. This arrangement was terminated upon his resignation as an Executive Director of the Company

in April 2004. Rent charged and other services provided in the year to 21 Maich 2006 amounted to ENil (2005: £7,125) and £Nil

(2005; £1,457) respectively. At 31 March 2006, the Comipany owed Chimaeron Limited ENil {2005: £7,655).

Cn 22 September 2004, the Company assigned intellectual property and transferred certain Company assets and staff members to
Morvus Technology Limited, a company in which A Atkinson is a director and in a position to exercise signiticant influence. The Company
received a small equity stake in Morvus Technology Limited, valued at the time of transfer at £150,000. £40,000 related to the value of
the assets transferred whilst £110,000 related to certain expenses incurred by the Company in relation to the facilities and staff being
transferred. The Company has retained a right of first refusal to license certain products that may be developed by Morvus Technology
Limited. The Directors of Protherics PLC had assigned no value to these technologies. During the year ended 31 March 2006, Morvus
Technology Limited has recharged the Company £40,000 {2005: £46,000) for cansultancy services provided whilst the Company has
charged Morvus Technology Limited £26,000 (2005: £62,000) for reimbursement of costs incurred on their behalf. At 31 March 2006,
the Company owed Moanwus Technelogy Limited £3,000 (2005: £4.000). The Directors consider all transactions with Morvus Technology
Limited to be at an arms length valuation.
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8 Finance Income
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
£000 £00C £°000 £'000
Bank interest and interest on deposits 40 236 226 188
9 Ffinance Costs
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
£000 £000 £'000 £'000
Interest payable on finance lease and hire purchase borrowings 133 Ik 1 4
Interest payatle an bank borrowings 22 24 - -
Interest payable an 6% convertible unsecured foan notes 193 a3 193 381
Amorlisation of 6% convertible unsecured loan notes 57 &1 57 81
Note payable to the South Australian Minister for Primary Industries 7 17 - -
Other 19 21 2 2
431 655 253 468
10 Tax
An analysis of credit for the vear. all relating to continuing aperations, is set out below:
Group Company
2006 200% 2006 2005
£'000 E000 E£'000 E£'000
Current tax
UK Corporation tax credit for the current year 325 290 - -
Adjustment in respect of prior years UK Corporation tax - 15 - -
325 305 - -
Foreign tax (3) {9 - -
Total current taxation 322 296 - -
Deferred tax
Reduction in estimate of recaverable deferred tax asset (247) - - -
75 296 - -

Corporation tax in the UK is calculated at 30% (2005: 30%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxas for other juriscictions

are calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The UK tax cradits arising in the current and prior years were as a fesult of research and development expenditure claimed under the

Finance Act 2000.
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The tax for the year is lower {2005: lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK {30%)}. The differences are explained
below:
Croup Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
£°000 £000 £'000 £C00

Loss before tax (9,563) (2077)  (3,315) (2,145)
Profit on ardinary activities multiplied by rate of corporation tax in the UK

of 30% (2005: 30%) {2.869) (623) (995) (644}
Adjustments in respect of foreign Lax rates 386 - - -
Timing differences between capital allowances and depreciation 509 254 23 14
Other timing differences 4,041 - - 6
Other expenditure not deductible for tax purposes (302) 193 322 45
Additional tax credit for research and development expenditure incurred (349) (333} - -
Lower rate of tax on research and development credits surrendered 284 263 -
{Utilisation of)/addition to losses carried forward (1.775) {35} -
Adjustments to tax in respect of prior years - {15) -
Losses surrendered to Group companies - - 650 574
Total tax (75) {296) - -

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temperary differences under the liability method using a tax rate of 30% (2005: 30%). The
movement on the deferred tax account is as shown below:

Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
£°000 £'000 £000 £000

Deferred tax asset recognised at 1 Aprit 432 444 - -
Income statement charge {247) - - -
Excharge differences 21 (i2) - -
Deferred tax asset recognised at 31 March 206 432 - -

The deferred tax asset, which relates to trading losses incurred in Australia, has been recognised in the financial statements following
the development of the Group's preducts in prior years and the Directers are of the opinion, based on recent and forecast trading,
that the level of profits in Australia in the forthcoming years will lead to the realisation of this asset.

In addition to the losses on which the deferred tax asset has been recognised, the Group has additional 1axable losses and other timing
differences in the United Kingdom, Auslralia and Lhe United States which arose as a result of the research and development incurred
during the start-up of the Group's activities. These losses are available for offset against future taxable profits in these territories.

A deferred tax asset has not been recognised in respect of these losses and cther temporary differences since the Group does not
anticipate generating sufficient taxable profits to utilise these losses within the immediate future and consequently the recoverability
of the deferred tax asset is uncertain. The total amount of deferred tax asset not recognised, measured at 30%, the rate of
corporation tax in the United Kingdom (2005: 30%) is approximately £27 million of which £4 million related to temporary differences
and £23 million was in respect of tosses {2005: approximately £24 million, all of which was in respect of losses).

The movements in the deferred tax asset and liabilities (pricr to the offsetting of balances within the same jurisdiction as permitted by
IAS 12, Income Taxes) during the year are as shown below. The deferred tax asset and liabilities are only offset where there is a legally
enforceable right of offset and there is an intention tc settle the balance net.
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L

12

Deferred tax asset

Tax losses Total

£'000 £000

At 1 April 2005 432 432

Credited to the income statement (247) (247
Exchange differences 21 21
At 31 March 2006 206 206

There were no recegnised deferred tax liabilities at 31 March 2006 or 31 March 2005.

At 31 March 2006 the Group had t2x losses, subject to the agreement of the Taxation Authorities, of approximately £72 million
{(2005: £73 million) available for offset against future taxable profits of the same trade. Included within these total losses,
approximately £18.6 million {2005: £20 million) relates to Protherics Inc., and of these, the use of £11.5 million is restricted to
US$1.5 million per year.

At the balance sheet date, the aggregate amount of termporary differences associated with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries for
which deferred tax liabilities had not been recaognised was ENIl (2005 £Ni). No liabifity has been recognised in respect of these
differences because the Group is in a position to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Loss per Share

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss attributable to ardinary shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year. For diluted loss per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue woufd be
adjusted to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company would have three categories of dilutive potential
ordinary shares: share options, warrants and the 6% convertible unsecured loan notes,

The Company has been loss making in both the current and prior year and as such, should the Company be called upon 1o issue
shares, the effect would be anti-dilutive.

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is based on the loss of £9,488,000 (2005: £1,781,000) and on 246,854,698
ordinary shares (2005: 224,145,177 being the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue.

Goodwill

Group £'000
Cost

At 1 April 2004, 1 April 2005 and 31 March 2006 9,199

Accumulated impairment losses
At 1 April 2004, 1 April 2005 and 31 March 2006 -

Carrying amount
31 March 2006 9,199

31 March 2005 9,199

The goodwill arose on the acquisition of Enact Pharma PLC in June 2003. The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more
frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired. At 31 March 2006 there were no accurnulated impairment losses.

The recoverable amaount of the cash-generating unit is determined from a value in use calculation. The key assurnptions for the value
in use calculation are those regarding the launch dates of products, principally Voraxaze™, the expected unit sales, and expected
changes to selling prices and direct costs during the year. Changes are based on expectations of future changes in the market.

A discount rate cf 14% has been apptied. The calculations are based upen the most recent cash flow forecasts covering the next

10 years which have been approved by management.

The Company had no goodwili.
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13 Other Intangible Assats

Patents & Other

trademarks  intangibles Total
Group £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 April 2004 879 - 879
Acquisitions - 580 580
Exchange differences (21} {15) (36)
At 1 April 2005 858 565 1423
Acquisitions - - -
Exchange differences 76 50 126
At 31 March 2006 934 615 1,549
Amortisation
At 1 April 2004 240 - 240
Charge for the year m - 111
Exchange differences (9 - (9}
At 1 April 2005 342 - 342
Charge for the year 4 - 14
Exchange differences 33 - 33
At 31 March 2006 489 - 489
Net book value
31 March 2006 445 615 1,060
31 March 2005 516 565 1,081

Patents and trademarks are amortised over their estimated usefud lives, which is on average 8 years. The other intangibles have yet to
commence thelr useful lives, There are no self-generated intangibles.

The Company had no other intangible assets.
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14 Property, Plant and Equipment
Furniture,
Land & Plant & fixtures &
buildings ~ machinery  equipment Total
CGroup £'000 £°000 £000 £'G00
Cost
ALY April 2004 4,825 7503 2.343 14,671
Additions 522 543 292 1,357
Disposals - (161) (178) (339}
Exchange differences (16} (24) (22) (62)
At 1 Aprit 2005 5,331 7,661 2,435 15,627
Reclassification - 21 (21} -
Additions m 2,218 300 2,629
Disposals (a4) (328) (484} (856}
Exchange differences 1 8 28 47
At 31 March 2006 5,409 9,780 2,258 17,447
Depreciation
AL 1 Aprii 2004 2,653 3,551 1.075 7,279
Charge for the year 359 777 328 1,464
Disposals - {14} (88) (102)
Exchange differences {4 2) (7) (13)
AL 1 April 2005 3,008 4312 1,308 8628
Reclassification - 92 (92) -
Charge for the year 390 852 349 1,391
Disposals (44) (251) (391) (696)
Exchange differences - 5 10 15
At 31 March 2006 3,354 4,800 1,184 9,338
Net book value
31 March 2006 2,055 4,980 1,074 8,109
31 March 2005 2,323 3,549 1127 6,999
2006 2005
Land & buildings comprise: £'000 £'000
Freehold 1,318 1,521
Short leasehold 737 802
2,055 2323

Plant and machinery includes cost of £1,638,000 {2005: £2,167.000) in respect of assets in the course of construction.

The net book value of pfant and machinery and turniture, fixtures and equipment includes £2,752,000 {2005: £2,370,000) in respect
of assets held under finance lease and hire purchase agreements. Depraciation for the year on those assets was £237,000

(2005: £170.000).
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tand & Plant &

buildings  machinery Total
Company E£000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 April 2004 42 303 345
Additions - 22 22
Disposals - {2} {2
At 1 April 2005 42 323 365
Additions - 141 1N
Disposals {(42) (108) (148)
At 31 March 2006 - 358 358
Depreciation
At 1 April 2004 42 34 76
Charge for the year - 48 18
Dispasals - {n {n
At 1 April 2005 42 81 123
Charge for the year - 49 49
Disposals (42) (52} (94}
At 31 March 2006 - 78 78
Net book value
31 March 2006 - 280 280
31 March 2005 - 242 242

Plant and machinery includes cost of £132,000 {2005: £Nil} in respect of assets in the course of construction,

The net book value of plant and machinery includes £2,000 {2005: £47,000) in respect of assets held under finance lease and hire
purchase agreements. Depreciation for the year on those assets was £14,000 (2005: £16,000).

15 Investments

Long term

Fixed asset investments Shares loans Tetal
Company £'000 £7000 £'000
Cost

At 1 April 2004, 1 April 2005 and 31 March 2006 9,929 52676 62605
Provision al 1 April 2004, 1 April 2005 and 31 March 2006 {119) (129) (248)
Carrying amount

31 March 2006 and 31 March 2005 9,810 52,547 62,357
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Details of subsidiary undertakings, all of which are consolidated and registered in England and Wales, unless noted, are as follows:

Direct holdings

Protherics Medicines Development Limited
(formerly Protherics Molecufar Design Limited}
Protherics Inc. {formerly Therapeutic Antibodies Inc.)
Proteus Biotechnology Limited

Eract Pharma PLC

Genethics Limited

indirect holdings

Protherics UK Limited
Protherics Australasia Pty Limited
Protherics Utah Inc.

Enzacta R&D Limited

Enzacta Limited

kymed GB Limited

De Montfort Biopharma Limited
TAEL (Wales) Limited

TADb (London) timited
Polyclonal Antibodies Limited
Prot herics Services Pty Limited

% of ordinary
shares held

100

100
100
100

76

100
100
100

98.8
98.8

100
00
106
100
100
100

Status
trading

trading (incorporated in Delaware USA)
dormant

trading

dormant

trading

trading (incorporated in Australia)
trading {(incorporated in Delawate USA)
dormant

dormant

dormant

dormant

dormant

dormant

dormant

dormant (incorporated in Australia)

All of the trading subsidiaries are engaged in the research, development, manufacture and sale of pharmaceutical products and

potential drugs for use in the reaiment of human diseases.

16 Inventories

Group
2006 2005
£000 £000
Raw materials and consumables 1,455 1488
Work in progress 9,382 11,152
Finished goods 50 N2

10,887 12,752

Included in work in progress in the above inventory balance at 31 March 2006 are two batches of CroFab™ with an approximate value
of £1,210,000, which, subsequent to the year end, produced anomalies on final testing after the filling and freeze drying stage of
production. All testing carried out up to 31 March 2006 cn these two batches was successful. These final results have been analysed
and, based on the results of the analysis, the batches are to be re-tested. However, there is a risk that these batches will be expensed

in the year ending 31 March 2007, in the event these further tests give similar anomalies.

The Company had no inventories.

59
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17 Trade and Other Receivabtles
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
£°000 £'000 £000 £°000

Amounts falling due within one year:

Trade recevables 2,926 2,289 - -
Less: Provision for impairment of receivables - - - -
Trade receivables ~ net 2,926 2,289 - -
Amounts owed by Group undertakings - - 16,848 12,944
Other receivables 845 304 146 -
Prepayments and accrued income 749 607 204 280

4,520 3,200 17,198 13,224

A significant proportion of the Group's revenue is generated by the sate of its CroFab™ and Digifab™ products into the US through its
distribution agreement with Fougera, a division of Altana Inc., which makes up the majority of the trade receivables. The carrying value
of this and other trade receivables has been determined by the Group's management based on prior experience and thair assessment
of the current economic environment. The average credit period taken on sales of goods is 20 days. The Directors consider that the
carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to their fair value.

18 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
£'000 £000 E'000 £°000

Cash at bank and in hand 934 879 222 461
Shert term pank deposits 24,504 6.361 8,295 6,391

25,438 7,270 8,517 6,852
Bank overdrafts (note 20} - (28) - -

25,438 7,242 8,517 6,852

Cash and cash equivalents comprise current accounts held by the Group with immediate access and short-term bank deposits with a
maturity of three months or less. Market rates of interest are earmed on such deposits. The credit risk on such funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies.
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19 Trade and Other Payables

Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
£'000 £000 £'000 £°000

Current liabslities:

Trade payables 5,227 2,675 738 770
Amounts owed to Group undertakings - - 4,423 4550
Other payables 673 642 - 2
Accruals 2,223 2193 1,01 610
Deferred income 7589 3,0M - -

15,722 8551 6,172 5,932

Non-current Habilities:
Deferred income 13,081 638 - -

Trade payables and accruals principally comprise amaounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit
taken for trade purchases is 49 days.

Included within deferred income are the following capital grants:

Group
2006 2005
£°000 £'000
Deferred income - falling due in less than one year (RN 63
Deferred income - falling due after more than one year 762 638
873 701

Curing the year, capital grants of £250,000 (2005: £10,000) were received and £78,000 (2005: £48,000) was relezsed to the income
staternant. As a resull of these grants, the Welsh Development Agency has & legal charge over certain buildings, plant and e¢quipment
securing grants received amounting to £33,000 and the Group is required to maintain certain employment levels at its Welsh
manufacturing facility.

The Campany had no deferred income.

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payabtes approximates to their fair value.
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20 Borrowings

Group
2006 2005
E'000 £'000
Bank averdrafts - 28
Bank loans:
Secured 201 a1
201 239
Note payable to South Australian Minister for Primary Industries 58 204
259 443
The basrowings are repayable as follows:
On demand or within one year 37 193
In the second year 25 56
In the third to fifth years inclusive 197 162
After tive years - 32
259 443
Amounts due for settlement within one year 37 193
Amounts due for settlernent atter one year 222 250
259 443
The Company has no borrowings.
Analysis of borrowings by currency:
Australian
Sterling US dollars dollars Total
Group £'000 £7000 £000 £'000
At 31 March 2006
Bank loans 32 169 - 201
Note payable to South Australian Minister for Primary Industries - - 58 58
32 169 58 259
At 31 March 2005
Bank overdrafts - - 28 28
Bank loans 53 158 - 2N
Note payable to South Australian Minister for Primary Industries - - 204 204
53 158 232 443
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The effective interest rates at the balance sheet dates were as follows:

2006 2005

% %
Bank averdrafts - 1.0
Sterking bank loans 8.0 80
US dollar bank loans 5.6 5.6
Note payable to South Australian Minister for Primary Industries 6.5 87

The Directors estimate the fair value of the Group's borrowings, by discounting the future cash flows at the market rate, to be as follows:

2006 2005

£'000 £:000

Bank overdrafts - 29
Sterling hank loans 34 53
US dollar bank loans 135 152
Note payable to South Australian Minister for Primary Industries 51 193
240 427

The Group had no undrawn committed borrowing facilities available at 31 March 2006 {2005: £2,000,000 expiring within one year
and all conditions precadent had been met at that date).

The other principal features of the Group's borrowings are as follows:

® Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand, The overdrafts at 31 March 2005 were unsecured.

e The Group's Sterling foan was obtained upon the acquisition of Enact Pharma PLC in June 2003. The loan was taken out by Enact
Pharma PLC in June 2002. Repayments commencead in March 2003 and will continue until August 2007, The loan is secured over
the assets of that company and its immediate subsidiaries. The Joan canries a fixed interest rate of 8% per 2nnum.

® The Group's US doliar denominated loan was taken out in August 2004. Repayments commenced in September 2004 and wilt

continue untii August 2002, when substantiatly all of the principal received on inception will become repayable. The loan is
secured by a charge over certain of the Group’s assets and carries an interest rate of 5.625%.

® The note payable to the South Australian Minister for Primary Industries (the “Minister™) is secured on buildings and equipment
of Protherics Australasia Pty Limited. Repayment. is in equal annual installments, with the final installment due in August 2007.
The interest rate is variable at the discretion of the Minister and is payatsle annually. The rate is currently inJine with market
interest rates.
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21 6% Convertible Unsecured Loan Notes

The 6% convertible unsecured loan notes, dencminated in Sterling, were issued on 19 June 2003 as part of the consideration to
acquire Enact Pharma PLC. Interest on the 8% convertible unsecured loan notes is payable twice annuaily in arrears. If not previously
repaid, converted or repurchased, the loan notes will be repaid at par on 19 June 2010. The loan notes are convertible at 25p per
ordinary share, at the holders option, from the earlier of 12 Decemnber 2004 or such date that the Company has received FDA
marketing approval for Voraxaze™ but in any event no earlier than 19 June 2004, The terms of the foan notes permit the Company

to repurchase the loan notes at any time by tender (available to all holders alike) or by privately negotiated transactions with individual
holders at any price.

In accordance with IFRS 1, First Time Adoption of Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standards, the Directors have elected not to restate
comparative information for the impact of 1AS 32, Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Information, and IAS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, but have anly adopted these standards to apply from 1 April 2005. Accordingly, the 6% convertible
unsecured loan notes are carried at their nominal value at 31 March 2005.

Upon adoption of 1AS 32 and IAS 39 at 1 April 2005, the net proceeds received from the issue of the 6% convertible unsecured loan
notes have been split between the liability element and an equity companent, reprasenting the fair value of the embedded option to
convert the liability into the equity of the Group, as follows:

Group and Company £'000
Neminal value of convertible loan notes issued 7196
Equity component at date of issue (711
Liability component at date of issue 6,485
2006 2005
Group and Company £'000 £:000
Liabifity component at 1 April 3,762 7,050
Adoption of IAS 32 and I1AS 39 {282} -
3,480 7,050
Interest charged 57 &1
Liability converted to equity (1,068}  (3.369)
Liability companent at 31 March 2,469 3,762

The Directors estimate the fair value of the lability component at 31 March 2006 to be approximately £2,424,000
{2005: £3,406,000).
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22 Obligations under Finance Leases

75

Minimum lease
payments
2006 2005
£'000 £'000

Present value of
minimum lease
payments
2006 2005
£°000 £'000

Croup
Amounts payable under finance leases:

Within one year 733 641 623 534
In the second to fifth years inctusive 1,392 1,425 1.216 1,246
2,125 2066 1.839 1,780

Less: Future finance charges

(286) {286)

Present valle of lecase obligations

Less: Amounts due for settlement within one year (shown within current liabilities)

1,829 1,780

1.839 1,780

(623) (534)

Amount due for settlement after one year

1.216 1,246

Company
Amounts payable under finance leases:

Within ane year 1 30 1 28
In the second 10 fifth years inclusive - 4 - 3
1 34 1 3
Less: Future tinance charges - (3)
Present value of lease obligations 1 31 1 31
Less: Amounts due for settlement within one year (shown within current liabilities} (1) (28)
- 3

Amount due for settlement after one year

It is the Graup's policy to lease certain of its plant and equipment under finance leases. The average lease term on inception is
3 to 5 years. For the year ended 31 March 2006, the average effective borrowing rate for the Group was 7.6% (2005: 7.8%) and
for the Company was 15.9% (2005: 8.8%). Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. Al leases are on a fixed repayment basis

and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments.

The fair value of the Group and Company’s lease obligations approximates to their carrying amount.

The denomination of the Group and Company’s lease obligations were as follows:

Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
£°000 £°000 £000 £'000
Sterling 1,754 1,631 1 31
Australian dollars 85 149 - -
1,839 1,780 1 k)

The abligations under hire purchase agreements for both the Group and the Company are secured by a charge over the leased assels.
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23 Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group utilises currency derivatives 1o hedge significant future transactions and cash flows. The Gioup is a party 1o a vatiety of
foreign currency forward contracts and options in the management of its exchange rate exposures. The instruments purchased are
primarily denominated in US daoliars, the currency of the Group's principal market.

In accordance with IFRS 1, First Time Adoption of International Financial Reparting Standards, the Directors have elected not to restate
comparative information for the impact of IAS 32, Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Information, and 1AS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, but have anly adopted these standards to apply from 1 April 2005,

At the balance sheet date, the fair market value of the derivative linancial instruments were:

Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000

Contracts with positive fair values:
Forward foreign exchange contracts - 75 - -

Total financial assets - 75 - -

Contracts with negative fair values:
Foreign exchange options 136 - 136 -

Derivative instrument liabilities 136 - 136 -

Changes in fair market vajue are recognised in the income staternent as they arise. The charge for the year ended 31 March 2006 was
£531,000.

All the contracts mature within one year of the balance sheet date.

24 Share Capital

Company Company
2006 2006 2005 2005

No. Shares £'000 No. Shares £000
Authorised
Ordinary shares of 2p each 350,000,000 7.000 317,100,000 6,342
Allotted, called-up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 2p each
At 1 April 242,204,350 4,844 207,750,086 4155
Aliotted under share opticn schemes 1,441,097 29 123,835 2
Cash placing and apen offer - - 20,773,088 415
Issued to AstraZeneca UK Limited under CytoFab™ outlicense agreement 10,990,621 220 - -
Settlement to former employees - - 81,205 2
Conversion of 6% unsecured convertible loan notes 4,650,960 93 13,476,176 270
At 31 March 259,287,068 5.186 242,204,390 4,844

Share warrants

Ar 31 March 2006 there were unexercised warrants for 212,500 ordinary shares (2005 212,500 ordinary shares) in Enact Pharma PLC,
a company acquired in June 2003, which expire between 12 March 2007 and 9 July 2012 and are exercisable at prices between

30p angt 60p per share. Should these be exercised, the Company is entitled to repurchase these shares by issuing £17.05 6%
convertible unsecured loan notes per 100 Enact Pharma PLC ordinary shares. The terms of these loan notes are disclosed in note 21
to the accounts,
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Share options
Details of outstanding share options are as follows:

77

AL 1 April Cancelled At 31 March Exercise
Date exercisable 2005 Granted Exercised  or expired 2006 price (p)
Individual unapproved
22 Dec 2002 to 21 Dec 2009 600,000 - - - 600,000 39.00
9 July 2002 to 8 July 2010 25,000 - - - 25,000 40.00
9 July 2002 to 8 July 2010 15,000 - - - 15,000 25.00
9 July 2002 to 31 May 2007 3,850 - - - 3,850 $6.00
1 Mar 2004 to 1 Jan 2006 70,000 - 70,000 - - 58.50
8 Oct 2004 to 1 Jan 2006 100,000 - 100,000 - - 23.25
Approved
25 July 1998 to 24 July 2005 52,955 - - 52,955 - 68.83
28 Jan 2003 to 27 Jan 2010 59,712 - 10,467 - 49,245 3750
28 Feb 2004 to 27 Feb 2011 328,000 - 15,625 20,375 292,000 43.50
16 Feb 2009 to 15 Feb 2016 - 25,401 - - 25,401 93,50
Unapproved
22 June 2001 to 21 june 2008 275,600 - 105,000 - 170,000 46.00
23 Dec 2001 to 22 Dec 2005 5,305 - 5,305 - - 45.00
22 Dec 2002 to 21 Dec 2009 525,000 - 40,000 - 485,000 39.00
27 Jan 2003 to 26 Jan 2010 87,509 - - 812 87,097 3750
2 Aug 2003 to 1 Aug 2010 2,508 - - - 2,908 28.50
22 Feb 2004 to 21 Feb 2011 1,370,000 - 225,000 - 1,145,000 4350
16 Jan 2005 to 15 Jan 2012 2,293.000 - 106,000 10,000 2,177,000 39.50
G July 2005 to 8 July 2012 500,000 - 150,000 - 350,000 25.00
14 fan 2006 to 13 Jan 2013 100,000 - 100,000 - - 21.00
20 Jun 2006 to 19 lun 2013 1,110,000 - 210,000 - 900,000 23.25
24 Jun 2006 to 23 Jun 2013 30,000 - - - 30,000 23.00
1 Mar 2007 to 28 Feb 2014 1,170,000 - 220,000 50,000 900,000 58.50
1 Mar 2009 to 28 Feb 2014 325,000 - - - 325,000 58.50
27 Sep 2007 to 26 Sep 2014 310,000 - - - 310,000 4950
28 Feb 2008 to 27 Feb 2015 741,669 - - 25,194 716,475 2,00
19 Jul 2008 to 18 Jul 2015°@ - 113,785 - - 113,785 2.00
7 Sep 2008 to & Sep 2015 - 115,000 - - 115,000 60.50
21 Dec 2008 to 20 Dec 2015'® - 775,887 - 12,222 763,665 2.00
21 Dec 2008 to 20 Dec 2015 - 85,000 - - 85,000 78.50
Savings related options
1 Apr 2005 to 31 Oct 2005 96,300 - 83,700 12,600 - 3750
1 Jan 2009 to 30 Jun 2009 - 270118 - - 27018 65.00
1 Jan 211 to 30 Jun 2011 - 401,738 - - 401,738 65.00
Protherics PLC option plan for Therapeutic

Antibodies Inc. employees
27 Jan 2000 to 29 june 2008 162,238 - - - 162,238 175.0
to 312.0
10,358,846 1,786,929 1,441,097 184,158 10,520,520

* Options issued under the Long-term Incentive Plan, approved by the shareholders on 27 January 2005, The price of a share at the date

of grant was (1) 54.75p. (2) 57.00p, and (3) 78.50p.

Therapeutic Antibodies former employees and consultants
In addition to the above, options over up to 391,929 shares (2005: 507,818) praviously held under the Therapeutic Antibodies 1990
Plan may be granted upon request by Therapeutic Antibodies former ernployees and consultants under the terms of the Merger
Agreement dated 20 May 1999. Opticn prices range from $5.16 to $6.99 per share and may be exercised at various dates from
26 April 2006 to 15 Decermber 2006. During the current year, options over 115,889 ordinary shares expired unexcrcised.
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25 Share Premium Account

Company
2006 2005
£°000 £000
At 1 April 77,868 66,027
Adoption of IAS 32 and 1AS 39 13 -
77,881 66,027
Premium arising on issue of eguity shares:
Allotted under share option schemes 520 49
Cash placing and open offer - 9,556
Issued to AstraZeneca UK Limited under CytoFab™ outlicense agreement 7.280 -
Settlement to former employees - 37
Conversion of 6% unsecured convertible lecan notes 1,089 3.100
Expenses on issue of equity shares - (901)
At 31 March 86,770 77868
26 Statement of Changes in Equity
Curnulative
Share Share  Merger Equity translation  Retained
capital premium  reserve  reserve  [eserve  earnings Total
Group £'000 £'000 E'000 E'Q00 £'000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 April 2004 4155 66,027 51,163 - - (106,329} 15,016
Currency translation adjustments - - - - {33} - (33)
Net expense recognised directly in equity - - - - {33} - (33)
Loss for the year - - - - - {1,781} (1,781)
Total recognised loss for the year - - - - (33 (1.78%) (1.814)
New share capital subscribed 49 9,642 - - - - 10,061
Conversion of convertible loan notes 270 3,100 - - - - 3,370
Expenses on issue of equily shares - (001} - - - - (901)
Employee share option scheme:
value of services provided - - - - - 237 237
Balance at 31 March 2005 4,844 77868 51163 - {33) {107,873) 25969
Adoption of 1AS 32 and 1AS 39 - 13 - 378 - 211 602
Balance at 1 April 2005 4844 77881 51,163 378 {33) (107.662) 26,571
Currency translation adjustments - - - - (158) - (158}
Net expense recognised directly in equity - - - - (158} - {158}
Loss for the year - - - - - (9.488) (9,488}
Total recognised loss for the year - - - - {158) (9,488} (9.646)
New share capital subscribed 249 7,800 - - - - 3,049
Conversion of convertible loan notes 93 1.089 - (msj - - 1067
Employee share aption scheme:
value of sensces provided - - - - - in an
Balance at 31 March 2006 5186 86,770 51,163 263 {191) (116.839) 26,352

The merger reserve atose upon a merger involving the Group in September 1999. The equity reserve arises from the 6% convertible

unsecured loan notes {see note 21).

Goodwill on acquisition written off in prior years arnounts to £7,909,000.
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Cumulative
Share Share Merger Equity translation  Retained
capital  premium reserve resenve reserve  earnings Tota!

Company £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'0C0 £'000 £000
Balance at 1 April 2004 4,155 66,027 - - - (8.018) 62,164
Loss for the year - - - - - (2,145) {2,145)
Total recagnised loss for the year - - - - - {2,145)  {2,145)
New share capital subscribed 4149 9,642 - - - - 10,061
Conversion of convertible loan notes 270 3,100 - - - - 3,370
Expenses on issue of equity shares - (901) - - - - {9om)
Employee share option scheme:;

value of services provided - - - - - 237 237
Balance at 31 March 2005 4,844 77,868 - - - {0,926) 712,786
Adoption of IAS 32 and 1AS 39 - 13 - 378 - 285 676
Balance at 1 April 2005 4844 77881 - 378 - (9.641) 73,462
Loss for the year - - - - - {3.315) (3.315)
Total recognised loss for the year - - - - - {3.315)  (3.315)
New share capital subscribed 249 7,800 - - - - 8,049
Conversion of convertible {oan notes 93 1,089 - (115) - - 1,067
Employee share option scheme:

value of services provided - - - - - 3in an
Balance at 31 March 2006 5186 86,770 - 263 - (12,645} 79,574

The equity reserve arises from the 6% convertible unsecured lean notes (see note 21},
Y
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27 QOperating Lease Commitments

Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
£000 £'000 £'000 £000

Minirnum lease payments under operating leases recognised in
income for the year 488 571 n 35

At the balance sheet date, the outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
tell due as tollows:

2006 2005
Vehicles, Vehicles,
plant and plant and
Property equipment Property  equipment
£000 £000 £'000 Q00
Group:

Within one year 431 16 462 10
In the second to fifth years inclusive 600 16 995 8
After five years 39 - 48 -
1,070 32 1,505 18

Company;
Within one year 45 - 45 1
In the second to fifth years inclusive 34 - 79 -
Alter five years - - - -
79 - 124 1

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for certain of its office properties, plant and equipment under non-canceilable
operating lease agreements. The leases have various terms and renewal rights.

28 Capital and Other Financial Commitments
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
£'000 £°000 £°000 £'000

Contracts placed for future capital expenditure not provided in
the financial statements 1,348 534 68 -
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29 Share-Based Payments

The Group has elecied to apply IFRS 2, Share-Based Payments to all share-based awards and options granted post 7 Novermnber 2002
that had not vested by 1 January 2005. These options have been issued under the Unapproved Share Cpticn Plan, individual option
arrangements, Executive Share Option Ptan (ESOP), the Long-term Incentive Plan {LTIF) and the Savings Related Share Option Plan.

Under the Unapproved Share Option Plan and the ESOP, the Remuneraticn Committee can grant options over shares in Lthe Company
to emplayees of the Group. Opticns are granted with a fixed exercise price equal to the market price of the shares under option at the
date of the grant. The vesting period is generally 3 years and subject to performance criteria. if the options remain unexercised after a
period of 10 years from the date of grant, the options expire. Furthermore, options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group
before the option vests.

Under the LTIP, the Remuneration Committee can grant equity-settled options over shares in the Company but these awards are
generally reserved for Directors and employees at senior managcer level. The options are granted at a fixed exercise price which is
generally equal to the nominal value of the shares under the award. As with the above plans, the vesting peried is generally 3 vears,
subject to performance criteria and, if the options remain unexercised after a period of 10 years from the date of grant, the options
expire. Furthermore, options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group before the aption vests.

Awards under the Savings Related Share Option Plan are made available to all employees who have been with the Company far more
than 6 months. Options under this plan are awarded at a discount of up to 20% of the market price of the shares under option at the
date of the invitation to enter the plan. The vesting period is either 3 or 5 years with a 6 month period to exercise after the vesting
period. There are no performance criteria attached to these options. The options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group during
the vesting period.

The share options granted have varying performance criteria required for the option to vest and these are considered in the method of
measuring the fair value. Where it is considered appropriate, the fair value is measured using the Black-Scholes model. Where complex
market performance criteria exist, a simulation model has been used, based on the same underlying methodology as the Black-Scholes
model, to establish the fair value on grant.

The fair values of the options granted, performance criteria, and the assumptions used in the calculation of fair value are as follows:

Awards under the Share Option Plans

14 Jan 20 Jun 24 jun 1 Mar 1 Mar 27 Sep 7 Sep 21 Dec 16 Feb

Grant date 2003 2003 2003 2004 2004 2004 2005 2005 2006
Share price at grant date (p) 21.00 23.25 23.00 58.50 58.50 49.50 60.50 78.50 93.50
Exercise price (p) 21.00 23.25 23.00 58.50 5850 49.50 £0.50 73.50 93.50
Nummber of employees 1 10 2 15 1 3 2 5 1
Shares under option at grant 100,000 1,250,000 30,000 1,240,000 325,000 310,000 115000 85000 25401
Fair value {p) 9.02 945 9.45 25.57 3397 19.3% 19.98 31.38 36.13
Dividends yield - - - - - - - - -
Vesting period {years} 3 3 3 3 5 3 3 3 3
Expected volatility 48.9% 46.2% 46.2% 47.0% 47.0% 45.3% 38.5% 41.0% 41.2%
Option life (years) 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
Expected life (years) 5 5 5 S 5 5 5 5 =S
Risk free rate 4.21% 3.75% 3.75% 4.64% 4.64% 4.74% 4.12% 4.68% 4.68%

Performance criteria {n (m (M (2) 3) (2} {4) {4 {4)
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Other awards

LTiP LTIP LTIP Share-save Share-save

28 Feb 1% Jul 21 Dec 11 Jan 11 Jan

Grant date 2005 2005 2005 2006 2006
Share price at grant date (D) 54.75 57.00 7850 86.00 86.00
Exercise price {p) 2.00 2.00 2.00 65.00 65.00
Number of employees 22 2 16 38 35
Shares under opticn at grant 741669 113,785 775887 270118 401,738
Fair value (p) 33.71 3822 60.86 37.20 44.09
Vesting period (years) 3 3 3 3 5
Dividend yield - - - - -
Expected volatility 41.8% 39.0% 41.0% N.2% 40.9%
Option life (years) 10 10 10 10 10
Expected life {years} 5 5 5 3 5
Risk free rate 4.68% 4.18% 4.68% 4.10% 4.10%
Performance critelia (4} (4) (4) None None

(1) To vest, the Company's share price is required to outperform the average price of shaies in the FTSE Ali Share Pharmaceutical
and Biotech Index in any three year period commencing on or after the date of grant of the option.

(2) Performance will be measured once only after three years from the date of grant of the option. If the lotal shareholder return
of the Company reaches the median of the FTSE All Share Pharmaceutical and Biotech Index, one third of the shares under
option become exercisable, rising on a sliding scale such that all the shares under option become exercisabie if the Company's
performance is at or above the upper quartile. The Remuneration Cemmittee must also be satisfied that there has been an
improvement in the Company’s underlying financial performance aver the period.

(3} As {2) except that performance is measured after five years.

(4) Provided the Remuneration Committee is satisfied that the Company has achieved sound underlying performance, awards will
vest based on the Company’s Total Shareholder Return (TSR). Performance will be measured aiter three years from grant by
measuring the TSR of the Company against a comparator group consisting af the primary listed compenents of the FTSE All Share
Pharmaceutical and Biotech Index but excluding those companies in the FTSE 100 (currently Alliance Unichern Plc. AstraZeneca
PLC, GlaxoSmithKline PLC and Shire plc). TSR will normally be averaged across a period of three months before the date of the
reward and three maonths before the date on which the performance period ends, although the Committee may determine that
a different averaging period is appropriate and properly reflective of management performance but in any event this will not be
more than six months or less than one month. No award will vest if the Company’s TSR is below the median of the comparator
graup, 30% will vest if the Company’s TSR is at the median position, 80% if the Company’s TSR is at the upper quartile and 100%
if at the upper decile. Awards will vest on a sliding scale between each step.

The expected volatility is based on histarical volatility over the expected life, being the average expected period to exercise, of the
option as at the date of grant. The fisk free rate of return is the yield on zero-coupon UK government bonds of a term consistent
with the expected life at the date of grant.
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A reconciliation of the option movements over the year to 31 March 2006 is shown below:

2006 2005
Weighted Weighted
average average
option option
price price
Number pence Number pence
Qutstanding at 1 April 10,866,664 60.96 10,245,846 71.37
Granted 1,786,929 34.30 1,221,668 19.03
Exercised {1,441,097) 38.05 {123,835} 4148
Cancelled or expired {300,047) 137.01 (477,016} 182.39
Qutstanding at 31 March 10,912,449 57.53 10,866,664 60.98
Exercisable at 31 March 5,956,267 76.64 6,483,695 79.18
2006 2005
Weighted
Weighted Weighted average average Weighted average

Range average remaining kife option remaining life
of exercise option price Number  Expected Contractuat price Number Expected  Contractual
prices pence of shares Years Years pence of shares Years Years
Below 20p 2.0 1,593,925 43 9.3 20 741,669 4.9 9.8
20p - 40p 35.0 4,696,250 0.9 5.6 340 5,519,829 1.7 6.5
40p - 60p 50.0 3,167,000 15 6.3 50.1 3933546 2.3 70
60p — 80p 65.5 871,856 4.1 5.6 68.8 52,955 - 0.3
80p - 100p 935 25,401 4.9 9.9 - - - -
Above 100p 434.7 558,017 - 0.7 441.0 618,665 - 1.6

The weighted average share price for options exercised over the year was 81.7p (2005: 55.5p). The total charge for the year relating to
employee share-based payment plans was £311,000 (2005: £211,000), all of which was related to equity-settled share-based payment
transactions.

30 Retirement Benefit Schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme for ail qualifying UK based employees. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Creup in funds under the contrel of the trustees. Where there are emplayses who
leave the schemes pricr to the contributions made by the Group fully vesting, the contributions payable by the Group are reduced by
the amount of the forfeited contributions.

Eligible empleyees of the Group's overseas subsidiaries are members of externally operated defined contribution schemes. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to these schemes is t¢ make the specified contributions,
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31 Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statements

32

33

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash flow from operating activities: Group Company

2006 2005 2006 2005
£°000 £'000 £'000 £000

Operating loss (9.533) {(1,658) (3.288) (1,865)
Adjustments for:
Change in fair value of derivatives 531 248 531 -
Deferred grant income {78} (18) - -
Non cash expensesf{revenues) - {110} - -
Share-based payment costs 3N 237 217 122
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,391 1.464 49 48
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets 114 1t - -
Loss on gisposal of property, plant and equipment 108 162 9 -
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital {7.156) 406 (2,482)  (1.695)
Decreasef(increase) in inventories 1,903 {3,032) - -
{Increase}{decrease in receivables {1135} 44 {3.880) {423)
Increasef(decrease} in payables 18,997 {472} 84 73
Net cash inflowf{outflow) from operating activities 12,609 {3,054} (6.278) (2,045}

The increase in payables for the year ended 31 March 2006 is primarily a result of the increase in deferred income arising from the
deferral of non-refundable up-front fees received under the Patent and License Know How agreement with AstraZeneca UK Ltd
(see note 3).

Additions Lo Group plant and equipment during the year amounting to £572,000, were financed by new finance leases. No finance
leases were entered into by the Company in the year.

Cash and cash equivalents {(which are presented as a single class of assets on the face of the balance sheet) comprise cash at bank
and other short-term highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less,

Contingent Liabilities

The Company has quaranteed certain operating leases, finance leases and hire purchase agreements entered into by
subsidiary companies.

Related Party Transactions

Croup

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are
not disclosed in this note.

Details of consultancy fees earned by Directors during the year and fees paid to third parties for Directors’ consultancy services are
included within the Directors’ Remuneration Report. No amounts were outstanding at 31 March 2006 (2005: £Nil}.

Company

During the year, the Company provided loans to subsidiary companies on which interest is not charged since the Directors consider
that such loans are equivalent ta equity. In addition, the Company made management charges on its subsidiaries amounting to
£1.302,000 (2005: £1,017.000) and levied charges for options grantad to employees af subsidiaries of £24,000 (2005: £115,000).
The outstanding batances due toffrom subsidiary companies are disclosed in notes 17 and 19.
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34 Explanation of Transition to {FRS

This is Lhe first year that the Group and the Company has presented its financial statements under IFRS. The following disclosures are
required in the year of transition. The last financial statements under UK GAAP were for the year ended 31 March 2005 and the date
of transition to IFRS's was therefore 1 April 2004.

Differences between IFRS and UK GAAP impacting on Protherics PLC
The principal etfects of IFRS on the financial statements of the Group are as follows:

o Presentation - 1AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements
The presentation format of IFRS is different from UK GAAP.

o Employee option and performance share schemes - [FRS 2, Share-based Payments
All transactions within the scope of IFRS 2 are valued based on the fair value of the eption or award at grant date and expensed
to the income statement over the vesting period of the scheme.

® Goodwill arising on acquisitions - IFRS 3, Business Combinations
IFRS 3 requires that goodwill arising upon acquisition of businesses is not amortised but is subject to Impairment reviews. As
indicated in note 2, the Group has applied the exemption not {0 restate business combinations prior {0 the date of transition,
and as a result, amertisation previously charged under UK GAAP has been reversed from 1 April 2004 onwards.

& Financial instruments - IAS 32, Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation and IAS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement
1AS 39 determines that the instruments held to hedge the Group's US dollar receivables are required to be valued at each period
end, with the movement in the fair value being reflected as an income or expense for the period, since these instruments do
not qualify for hedge accounting in accordance with 1FRS. As indicated in note 2, the Group has elected to adopt IAS 39 from
1 April 2005. Therefore the comparative financial information in respect of financial instruments is presented in accerdance with
UK GAAP.

& Convertible loan notes - |1AS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
The 6% convertible unsecured loan notes are detined as compound financial instruments under 1AS 39 and therelore, the
instrument is required to be split between its equity and debt components upon issue. In subsequent periods, the finance charge
of the Company will be increased to reflect the perceived discount on issue of the debt instrurment. As indicated in note 2, the
Group has elected to adopt 1AS 32 and 1AS 39 from 1 April 2005. Therefore the comparative financial information in respect of
financial instrurments is presented in accordance wilh UK GAAP.

e Capitalised interest — 1AS 23, Borrowing costs
IAS 23 provides the option of capitalising or expensing barrowing cost incurred on assets in the course of constsuction and the
oplicn chosen should be adopted consistently. The cormpany has adopted a policy Lo expense such costs as incurred and as a
result, all interest capitalised under UK GAAP has been expensed.

e Hedging instruments - IAS 21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
IAS 21 determines thal the balance sheet of a foreign operation should be translated at the closing exchange rate of the foreign
operation’s functional currency, Prior t0 the adoption of I1AS 32 and 1AS 39, on 1 April 2005, the Group used forward foreign
exchange centracts to hedge against specific US dollar denominated assets and such assets were retranslated at the hedged rate.
Compliance with 1AS 21 has required the effects of the hedging instrument, being the difference between the closing and hedged
rate of exchange for these items, to be carried separately as a financial asset on the balance sheets of 31 March 2004 and
31 March 2005.
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Reconciliation of Consolidated UK GAAP balance sheet to the Consolidated IFRS balance sheet as at 1 April 2004

UK GAAP  Eifect of
in [FRS  transition
format to IFRS IFRS
Notes £000 £'000 £°000

Non-current assets

Coodwill 9,199 - 9,199
Other intangible assets 639 - 639
Property, plant and equipment (a) 7473 (81 7392
Deferred tax asset 444 - 444

17,755 {81) 17,674

Current assets

Inventories 9,745 - 9,745
Financial assets {b) - 323 323
Tax receivables 307 - 307
Trade and other receivables () 3432 (269) 3,163
Cash and cash equivaients (d) 3,307 {54} 3,253
16,791 - 16,79
Total assets 34,546 {81} 34,965
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables (e} 8721 196 8,917
Current tax fabilities 127 - 127
Financial liabilities
Obligations under finance leases 456 - 456
Bank overdrafts, loans and other borrowings 500 - 500
4,304 196 10,000

Nen-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Berrowings 262 - 262
Convertible loan notes 7,050 - 7,050
Obligations under finance leases 1,458 - 1,459
Other non-current liabilities 678 - 678
9,449 - 9,449
Total liabilities 19,253 196 19,449
Net assets 15,293 {(277) 15,016
Equity
Share capital 4,155 - 4,155
Share premium account 66,027 - 66,027
Merger reserve 51,163 - 51,363

Equity reserve - - -
Cumulative translation reserve - - -
Retained earnings (106,052) (277 {106,329)

Total equity 15,293 (277) 15,016
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Reconciliation of Consolidated UK GAAP balance sheet to the Consolidated [FRS balance sheet at 31 March 2005

UK GAAP  Eftect of
in IFRS  transition
format to IFRS IFRS
Notes £'000 £'000 £'000
Non-current assets
Goodwill (it 8,201 998 9,199
Cther intangible assets 1,081 - 1,081
Praperty, plant and equipment (a) 7034 (35) 6,999
Deferred tax asset 432 - 432
16,748 963 17,711
Current assets
inventories 12,752 - 12,752
Financial assets {b) - 75 75
Tax receivables 344 - 344
Trade and other receivables (c} 3,270 (70) 3,200
Cash and cash equivalents (d) 7275 {5) 7,270
23,641 - 23,641
Total assets 40,389 963 41,352
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables {) 8329 222 8,551
Current tax liabilities 209 - 209
Financial liabilities
Obligations under finance leases 534 - 534
Banrk overdrafts, loans and other borrowings 193 - 193
9.265 222 9487
Non-current liabilities
Trade and ather payables 638 - 638
Financiat liabilities
Borrowings 250 - 250
Convertible ioan notes 3,762 - 3,762
Obligations under finance leases 1,246 - 1,246
5,896 - 5.896
Total liabilities 15,161 222 15,383
Net assets 25,228 41 25,969
Equity
Share capital 4844 - 4,844
Share premium account 77868 - 77,868
Merger reseive 51,163 - 51,163
Equity reserve - - -
Cumulative translation reserve {f - {33} (33)
Retained earnings (108,647) 774 [107.873)
Total equity 25,228 41 25,969
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Reconciliation of the Consolidated UK GAAP profit and loss account to the Consolidated IFRS income statement for the

year ended 31 March 2005

UK GAAP  Effect of
in IFRS  transition

format to RS IFRS
Notes £°000 £'000 £000

Revenue 18,839 - 18,839
Cost of sales (g} (8.801) 57 (8,724)
Gross profit 10,038 57 10,095
Administrative expenses

Research and development {n (4,533} (42) (4,575)

General & administrative {i) (7.969) 791 (7178)
Total administrative expenses (12.502) 749 (11,753)
Operating (loss)/profit (2.464) 806 (1.658)
Finance costs (119) - {(419)
{Loss)/profit before tax (2.883) 806 {2,077)
Tax 296 - 296
{Loss)/profit for the year (2.587) 806 (1.781)
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Reconciliatian of Company UK GAAP balance sheet to the Company IFRS balance sheet as at 1 April 2004

UK GAAP  Effect of
in IFRS  transition
tormat to IFRS IFRS
Notes £'G00 E'G00 £'000

Non-current assets

Property, p'ant and equipment 269 - 269
Investrmeants in subsidiaries 62.357 - 62,357
62,626 - 62,626

Current assets

Trade and other receivables {c) 12,674 13 12,687
12,674 13 12,687
Total assets 75,300 13 75,313

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables (e) 5,811 77 5,888
Curtent tax fiabilities 147 - 147

Financial liabilities
Obligations under finance leases 25 - 25
Bank overdrafts, loans and other borrowings 9 - 9
5,862 77 6,069

Non-current liabilities
Financial Kabilities

Convertible loan notes 7,050 - 7,050
Obligations under finance leases 31 - 31
7081 - 7,081
Total liabilities 13,073 77 13,150
Net assets 62,227 64y 62,163
Equity
Share capital 4,155 - 4,155
Share premiurm account 66,027 - 66,027
Retained earnings (7.955) (64) {8.019)

Total equity 62,227 (64} 62,163
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for the year ended 31 March 2006

Reconciliation of Company UK GAAP balance sheet to the Company IFRS balance sheet at 31 March 2005

UK GAAP  Effect of
in {FRS  transition
format to IFRS IFRS
Notes £'000 £'000 £'000

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 242 - 242
Investment in subsidiaries 62,357 - 62.357
62,599 - 62599

Current assets

Trade and other receivables (c} 13,140 34 13,224
Cash and cash equivalents 6,852 - 6.852

19,992 84 20,076
Total assets 82.591 84 82,675

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables (e) 5.868 64 5.832
Current tax liabilities 164 - 164

Financiat liabiiities
Obligations under finance leases 28 - 28
6,060 64 6,124

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Convertible loan notes 3,762 - 3,762
Obligations under finance leases 3 - 3
3,765 - 3,765
Total liabilities 9,825 64 9,889
Net assets 72,766 20 72,786
Equity
Share capital 4,844 - 4,844
Share premium account 77868 - 77868
Retained earnings (9.946) 20 (9,926)

Total equity 72,766 20 72,786
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for the year ended 31 March 2006
Reconciliation of the Company UK GAAP profit and loss account to the Company IFRS income statement for the year
ended 31 March 2005
UK CAAP  Effect of
in IFRS  transition
farmat to IFRS IFRS
Notes £'000 £'000 £000
Revenue 1,017 - 1,007
Cost of sales - - -
Cross profit 1.017 - 1.7
Administrative expenses
Research and development (17) - {(17)
GCeneral & administrative iy (2,711) (154} (2,865)
Total administrative expenses (2,728) (154} (2,882}
Operating loss {1,711} {154)  {1.865}
Finance costs {280) - {280)
Loss before tax (1,991) {(154)  (2,145)
Tax - - -
Loss for the year {1,991} (154)  (2,145)
{a) Property, plant and equipment
Croup Company
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2004 2005 2004 2005
£000 £'000 £000 £'000
IAS 23 — Borrowing costs 81 (35) - -
Total decrease in property, plant and equipment (81) (35} - -
{b} Financial assets
Croup Company
31 March 31 March 3% March 31 March
2004 2005 2004 2005
£:000 £000 £°000 £:000
IAS 21 = The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates 323 75 - -
Total increase in financial assets 323 75 - -
{c) Trade and other receivables
Group Company
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2004 2005 2004 2005
£7000 £000 £7000 £000
IAS 21 — The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates {269) (70) - -
IFRS 2 - Share-based payments - - 13 84
Total {decrease}fincrease in trade and other receivables (269) {70} 13 84
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for the year ended 31 March 2006

(d) Cash and cash equivalents

Group Campany
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2004 2005 2004 2005
£000 £000 £000 £000
1AS 21 - The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates (54) {5) - -
Total decrease in cash and cash equivalents (54) (5) - -
(e} Trade and other payables
Group Company
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2004 2005 2004 2005
£'000 E'G00 £'600 £'000
IFRS 2 - Share-based payments 85 105 67 38
Other 111 17 10 26
Total increase in trade and other payables 196 222 77 64
{f) Cumulative translation reserve
Group Company
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2004 2005 2004 2005
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cumulative translation reserve - (33) - -
(g) Cost of sales
Group Company
Year Year
ended ended
31 March 31 March
2005 2005
£'000 £000
IFRS 2 - Share-based payments (2 -
IAS 23 ~ Borrowing costs 44 -
Other 15 -
Total decrease in cost of sales 57 -
{(h} Research and development
Group  Company
Year Year
ended ended
31 March 31 March
2005 2005
£°000 £'000
IFRS 2 - Share-based payments {an -

Other

{n

Totat increase in research and development

(42)
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tor the year ended 31 March 2006

(i) General & administrative
Group Company
Year Year
ended ended
31 March 31 March

2005 2005

£'000 £'000

IFRS 2 — Share-based payments (189) {138}

IAS 23 - Borrowing costs 3 -

IFRS 3 - Business combinations 998 -

Other (21) (1€)

Total decrease/(increase) in general & administrative N {154}

il Goodwill

Croup Company

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2004 2005 2004 2005

£°000 £'000 £000 £°000

tFRS 3 - Business combinations - 998 - -

Total increase in goodwiil - 998 - -




94

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 March 2006

Reconciliation of Consolidated UK GAAP and Consolidated IFRS cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2005

UK GAAP as
previcusly IFRS
reported  Adjustment  as restated
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from cperations (3.103) 49 (3,054)
Incorne tax paid (79) - {79}
Income tax received 332 - 332
Net cash {used in)/from operating activities {2,350 49 (2.801}
Investing activities
Interest received 236 - 236
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 35 - 35
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (1,001} - {1,001}
Purchases of ather intangible non-current assets (191) - (197}
Capital grants received 10 - 10
Net cash used in investing activities {an) - (911}
Financing activities
Interest paid {494) - {494}
Interest paid on finance leases (131) - (131}
Repayment of barrowings {3306) - (339)
Repayments of finance leases {490) - {490)
Issue of shares 9,161 - 9,161
Net cash from financing activities 7.710 - 7710
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,949 49 3,998
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 3,307 (54 3,253
Eifect of foreign exchange rate changes 9 - )]
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 7,247 {5} 7242
Operating (foss)/profit (2.464) 806 (1.658)
Adjustrments for:
Change in fair value of derivatives - 248 248
Deterred grant income (48) - (48)
Non-cash revenues (110} - (110}
Share-based payment costs - 237 237
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,510 (46) 1,464
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets 1,109 (998) m
toss on dispesal of property, plant and eguipment 162 - 162
QOperating cash flows before movements in working capital 159 247 406
Increase in inventories (3.032) - (3.032)
Decreasef{increase) in receivables 267 (223) 44
(Decrease)fincrease in payables (497) 25 {472}
Net cash flows (used in)j/from operating activities (3.103) 49 (3.054)

Under I1AS 21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, cash balances denominated in non-reporting currencies have been
retransiated at the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date whereas these were ietranslated at hedged rates where appropriate
under UK GAAFR.

UK GAAP cash and cash equivalents includes overdrafts of ENil and £28,000 at 1 April 2004 and 31 March 2005 respectively.

There are no material adjustments to the Company cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2005.
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for the year ended 31 March 2006

Reconciliation of the Consolidated and Company IFRS balance sheets at 1 April 2005

The Group and the Company took the exemption not to restate its comparative infoermation for 1AS 32, Financia! Instruments: Disclosure
and Presentaticn, and IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. It therefore adopted 1AS 32 and AS 39 at 1 April
2005. The fallowing note explains the adjustments made at 1 April 2005 to the Group's balance sheet at 31 March 2005 to reflect the
adoption of 1AS 32 and 1AS 39,

Effect of
IFRS adoption IFRS
31 March of IAS 32 1 April
2005  and IAS 39 2005
Group £'000 £000 £000
Non-current assefs
Coodwill 9,199 - 9,169
Other intangible assets 1,081 - 1,081
Property, plant and equipment 6,999 - 6,999
Deferred tax asset 432 - 432
17,71 - 1771
Current assets
Inventories 12,752 - 12,752
Financial assels 75 320 395
Tax receivables 344 - 344
Trade and other receivables 3,200 - 3,200
Cash and cash equivalents 7270 - 7270
23,641 320 23,96t
Total assets 41,352 320 41,672
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 8,591 - 8,551
Current tax liabllities 209 - 209
Financial liabilities
Obligations under finance leases 534 - 534
Bank overdralts, loans and other borrowings 193 - 193
2,487 - 9487
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 250 - 250
Convertible loan notes 3,762 (282) 3,480
Obligations under finance leases 1.246 - 1,246
Other non-current liabilities 633 - 638
5,896 (282) 5,614
Total liabilities 15,383 (282) 15,101
Net assets 25,969 602 26571
Equity
Share capital 4,844 - 4844
Share premium account 77868 13 77881
Merger reserve 51,163 - 51163
Equity reserve - 378 378
Cumulative translation reserve (33) - {33}
Retained earnings {107.873) 211 (107,662}

Total equity 25,969 602 26,571
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Share
Financial Convertible prermium Equity Retained
assets  loan notes account TESETVE earnings
Croup £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
IFRS at 31 March 2005 75 3,762 77868 - {107.873)
Recognition at fair vatue of previously derecognised receivables 320 - - - 320
Compound financial instrurments - (282) 13 378 (109)
IFRS at 1 April 2005 395 3,480 77,881 378 {107.5662)
Effect of
IFRS adoption IFRS
31 March of 1AS 32 1 April
2005  and IAS 39 2005
Company £000 £'000 £'000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 242 - 242
Investment in subsidiaries 62,357 - 62,357
62,599 - 62,599
Current assets
Financial assets - 394 394
Trade and other receivables 13,224 - 13,224
Cash and cash equivalents 6,852 - 6,852
20,076 394 20,470
Total assets 82.675 394 83,069
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 5832 - 5.932
Current tax liabilities 164 - 164
Financial liabilities
Obligations under finance leases 28 - 28
6,124 - 6,124
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Canvertible loan notes 3,762 (282} 3,480
Cbligations under finance ieases 3 - 3
3,765 (282) 3483
Total liabilities 9,889 {282} 9,607
Net assets 72,786 676 73,462
Equity
Share capital 4,844 - 4,844
Share premium account 77868 13 77881
Equity reserve - 378 378
Retained earnings (9,926) 285 (9,641)

Total equity 72,786 676 73,452
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2006

Financial Equity Retained
assets reseqve garnings
Company £'000 £000 £:000
IFRS at 31 March 2005 - - (8,926)
Recognition at fair value of previously derecognised receivables 394 - 304
Compound financial instrurnents - 178 (109}
IFRS at 1 April 2005 394 378 {9,641}
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of Protherics PLC

We have audited the Group and parent Company financial statements (the “financial statements™) of Protherics PLC for the year ended

31 March 2006 which comprise the Group and parent Company income statements, the Group and parent Company balance sheets,

the Group and parent Company cash flow statements, the Group and parent Company statements of recognised income and expense,
the statement of accounting policies and the retated notes. These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies
set gut therein, We have also audited the information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that is described as having been audited.

Respective responsibilities of Directers and Auditors

The Directors' responsibifities for preparing the annual report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the financial statements in
accerdance with applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union are set
out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities.

Qur responsibility is to audit the financial staterments and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited in accordance with
relevant legal and regulatory requirernents and international Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland). This report, including the opinicn, has
been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no
other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume respensibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom
this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

We report {0 you our opinion as L6 whether the financial stalements give a true and fair view and whether the {inancial statements and
the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985
and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. We report to you whether in cur opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent
with the financial statements. The information given in the Directors” Report includes that specific information presented in the Business
Review that is cross referred from the Business Review section of the Directors’ Report. We alsg report to you if, in our opinion, the
Company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit,
or if information specified by law regarding Directors’ remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects the Company's compliance with the nine provisions of the 2003 FRC
Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Autharity, and we report if it does not, We are
not required to consider whether the Board's statements on internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an gpinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

We read other information contained in the annual report and consider whether it is consistent with the audited financial statements.
The other infermation comprises only the Directors’ Report, the unaudited part of the Directors’ Rernuneration Report, the Business
Review, Social, Ethical and Environmental Policies and the Corporate Governance Statement. We consider the implications for our report
if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or matenal inconsistencies with the financial statements. Qur responsibilitics do not
extend to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board.
An audit includes exarnination, on a test basis, of evidence selevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and the
part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements
fnade by the Direclors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
Creup's and Company’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit 5o as to obtain al! the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to
provide us with sufticient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements and the part of the Girectors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited are free from maternial misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irreqularity or error. In forming our opinion
we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial staterments and the part of the Birectors'
Remuneration Report to be audited.

Opinion

In our opinion:

e the financial staternents give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRS's as adopted for use by the European Union, of the state of
the Group's and the parent Company’s affairs as at 31 March 2006 and of the Group's and the parent Company’s loss and cash flows
for the year then ended;

e the financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared in accerdance
with the Cempanies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the JAS Regulation; and

& the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the financial statements.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Manchester

7 June 2006
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in Respect of the Annual Report,
the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Repert, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

The Directors are responsible for preparing financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view, in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group and of the loss of the Company and Group
for that period. In preparing those financial statements, the Directors are required to:

® select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
® make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
e state whether the financial statements comply with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union.

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial statements,

The Birectors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and the Group and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements and the Directors’ Remuneration
Report comply with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the Company's
website. Legislation in the United Kingdom govesning the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

1 A Vickers
Company Secretary
7 June 2006
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of Protherics PLC will be held at the offices of Ashurst, Broadwalk House,
5 Appold Street, Lendon EC2A 2HA, on 18 July 2006 at 12.00 noon, for the following purposes:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To receive the accounts for the financial year ended 31 March 2006, together with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon,

2. To re-elect Stuart Michael Wallis as a Director.

3. To re-elect Andrew John William Heath as a Direclor.

4. Tore-elect lames Campbell Christie as a Director.

5. To efect Bryan Geoffrey Morton as a Director.

6. To re-elect Barrington Marshall Riley as a Director.

7. To reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as Auditors of the Company,

8. To authorise the Directors to set the remuneration of the Auditors.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

Te consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions of which numbers 9, 10 and 13 will be proposed as ordinary resolutions
and numbers, 12, 13 and 14 will be proposed as special resolutions:

9. To approve the Directors' Remuneration Report for the financial year ended 31 March 2006.

10. To increase the existing authorised share capital of the Company from L£7,000,000.00 to £7.400,000.00 by the creation of 20,000,000
ordinary shares of 2 pence each.

11. That the Directors be and are hereby generally and unconditionally authorised for the purposes of section 80 of the Companies Act
1985 (the “AcL”), to exercise all the powers of the Company to allot relevant securities (within the meaning ot section 80(2) of the Act)
up to an aggregate nominal amount of £1,735,303, this authority 1o expire at the canclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held in 2007 {save that the Company may before such expiry make any offer or agreement which would or might
require relevant securities to be allotted atter such expiry and the Directors may allot selevant securities in pursuance of any such offer
or agreement as if the authority conferred hereby had not expired).

12. Subject to the passing of resolution 11 above, that the Directors be and are hereby empowered pursuant to section 95(1) of the
Companies Act 1985 (the “Act”) to allat equity securities (as defined in section 94 of the Act} for cash pursuant to the authority
conferred by resolution 11 above as if section §9(1} of the Act did not apply to any such allotment:

Provided that such power shall be limited to the allotment of equity securities:

{i) in connection with a rights issue, open offer or any other pro-rata offer in favour of ordinary shareholders where the equity
securities are proportionate (as nearly as practicable) to the respective number of ordinary shares held by such holders but
subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors may deem necessary or desirable in relation to fractional
entitlements, treasury shares or legal or practical problems arising in, or pursuant to, the laws of any territary or the requirements
of any regulatery body or stock exchange in any territory; and

(it otherwise than pursuant to paragraph {i) of this resolution, up to an aggregate normninal amount of £520,591,

and this power shall expire at the conclusion of the Annuat General Meeting of the Company te be held in 2007, save that the
Company may, at any time before the expiry of such power make any offer or enter into any agreement which would or might
require equity securities to be allotted, or treasury shares to be sold, after the expiry ot such power and the Directors may ailot equity
securities or sell treasury shares in pursuance of any such offer or agreement as if such power conferred hareby had not expired.
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13. Subject to resolution 12 above not having been passed, that the Directors be and are hereby empowered pursuant to section 9501} of
the Companies Act 1285 (the “Act”) to allot securities (as defined in section 94 of the Act) for cash pursuant to the authority conferred
by resolution 11 above as if section 89(1) of the Act did not 2pply to any such aliotment:

Provided that such power shall be limited to the allotment of equity securities:

(i} in connection with a rights issue, apen offer or any other pro-rata offer in favour of ordinary sharcholders where the equity
securities are proportionate {as nearly as practicable) to the respective number of ordinary shares held by such holders but subject
to such exclusions or other arrangerments as the Directors may deem necessary or desirable in relation teo fractional entitlements,
treasury shares or other legal or practical problems arising in, or pursuant to, the laws of any territory or the requirements of any
regulatory body or stack exchange in any territory; and

{i} otherwise than pursuant to paragraph (i) of this resolution, up to an aggregate nominal amount of £260,295,

and this power shall expire at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2007, save that the
Company may, at any time before the expiry of such power make any offer or enter into any agreement which would or might
require equity securities to be allolled, or treasury share to be sold, after the expiry of such power and the Bireclors may allol equity
securities or sell treasury shares in pursuance of any such offer or agreement as if such power conferred heraby had not expired,

14, That the revised Articles of Asscciation of the Company presented to the Meeting be adopted as the new Articles of Association
of the Company in substitution for all previous Articles of Association of the Company.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

1 A Vickers ACIS
Secretary

13 June 2006

Registered Office:

The Heath Business and Technical Park
Runcern

Cheshire WA7 40X

NOTES

Proxies

1. Only holders of ordinary shares are entitled to attend and vote at this meeting. A member entitled to attend and vole may appoint a proxy or proxies
who need not be a member of the Company to attend {and on a poll to vote) instead of him or her. Farims of proxy need to be deposited with the
Company's registrar, Neville Registrars Limited, Neville House, 18 Laurel Lane, Halesowen, West Midlands BG3 3DA, not later than -8 hours before the
time of the Meeting. Completion of a form of proxy wilt not preclude 3 member attending and voting in person at the Meeting.

Documents on display

2. The register of Directors’ interests in the share capital and debentures of the Company, together with copies of service agreements under which
Directors of the Company are employed, and copics of the terms and conditions of appointment of Non-executive Directors are ava 'able for inspection
at the Company’s registered office during normal business hours from the date of this notice until the date of the Annual General Meeling and will be
available tor inspection at the place of the Annual General Meeting for at least 15 minutes prior to and during the Meeting.

Right to attend and vote

3, Purscant to regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001 {SI 2001 No 3755), the Campany specifies that in order to have the right
to attend and vote at the Meeting (and also for the purpose of calculating how many votes 2 person entitled to attend and vote may cast), @ person
must be entered on the register of holders of the ordinary shares of the Company by no later than 12.00 noon on 16 July 2006, being 48 hours before
the time fixed for the Meeting. Changes to entries on the register after this time shall be disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend
or vate at the meeting,

Inspection of proposed Articles of Association

4. The proposed Articles of Association of the Company referred 1o in resolution 14 are available for inspection at the Company's 1egistered office during
normal business houwrs from the date of this netice until the date of the Annual General Meeting and will be available for inspection at the place of the
Annual General Meeting tor at least 15 minutes prior to and during the Meeting.
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Explanatory Notes to the Notice of Annual Ceneral Meeting

Resalution 1

The Directors are required to present the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2006, together with the reports of the
Directors and Auditors, to the Annual General Meeting.

Resolutions 2. 3,4, % and 6

in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association and the principles of the Combined Code, Directors offer themselves for
re-election after three years. Accordingly, Stuart Wallis, Andrew Heath, James Christie and Barry Riley will retire at the Annual Genesal
Meeting and offer themsetves for re-election.

Bryan Morton was appointed to the Board on 1 August 2005 as a Non-executive Director, Under the Articles of Association, he is offering
himself for election at the Annual General Meeting, which will be the first Annual General Meeting following his appointment.

Biographical details of the Directors are given on page 26 of the Annual Report.

Following the recommendation of the Nomination Committee, the Board recommends the re-election or lection of these Directors.
The Board confirms that in making this recommendation, the Nomination Committee has given careful consideration to the Board’s
balance of skills, knowledge and experience. The Commitiee are satisfied that the Non-executive Directors putting themselves torward
for election or re-glection have sufficient time to discharge their duties effectively, taking inte account their other commitments.

Resolutions 7 and 8

The Auditors of the Company must be re-appointed at each general meeting at which accounts are presented. Resolution 7 proposes
the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCeopers LLP until the next such meeting. Resclution 8 gives authority to the Directors to set the
Auditors’ remuneration.

Resolution 9

This resolution is to approve the Directors” Remuneration Report for the financial year ended on 31 March 2006. You can find the report
on pages 32 to 41 of the annual report and accounts for the year ended 31 March 2006.

Resolution 10

This resolution, to increase the existing authorised share capital of the Caompany from £7,000,000.0C to £7,.400,000.00 (an increase of
5.7 per cent.), is necessary to provide sufficient authorised but unissued shares to satisfy the exercise of options under the Company’s
share opticn arrangements, the exercise of warrants, the conversion of the 6 per cent. unsecured convertible loan notes, the issue of
shares in connection with the agreement with Covaccine BV, and upon the exercise of any authority given by resolution 11,

Resolution 11

Your Directors may only allot shares or grant rights over shares if authorised to do so by shareholders, The authority granted at the 2005
Annual General Meeting is due to expire at this vear's Annual General Meeting. Resolution 11 will be proposed as an ordinary resolution

to grant a new authority te allot enissued share capital up to an aggregate nominal value of £1,735,303, representing 33.3 per cent. o}
the total issued ordinary share capital of the Company as at the date of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting, 13 June 2006. If given,
this authority will expire at the Annual General Meeting to be held in 2007, Cther than in respect of the Company's obligations under its
employee share schemes and pursuant to the conversion of the 6% unsecured convertible loan notes the exercise of existing warrants,
and shares to be issued in connection with the agreement with CoVaccine BV, the Directers have no present intention of issuing any of
the authorised but unissued share capital of the Company.

Resolution 12

Your Directors also require additional authority from shareholders to allot shares or grant rights over shares where they propose to

do so far cash and otherwise than to existing shareholders pro rata to their holdings. The authority granted at the last Annual General
Meeting is due to expire at this year's Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, resolution 12 will be proposed as a special resalution to
grant such authority.
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Whilst your Company does not have any immediate need to carry out an equity fundraising, we may wish to do so at some stage in

the future, At the last Annual General Meeting, shareholders supported the resolution to disapply pre-emption rights (which would
enable the Company to carry out a cash placing) in respect of up te 10 per cent. of the Company’s issued share capital. Having carelully
considered the recommendations contained in the Myner's Report on pre-emption rights published in February 2005 and the statement
issued by the Pre-Emption Group in April 2006, your Directors believe it is appropriate to seek to renew this greater flexibility to issue
shares without further recourse to shareholders. Accordingly we are seeking authority to issue up to 10 per cent. of the current issued
share capital of Protherics for cash without having first to offer the shares to shareholders pro-rata to their existing shareholdings.

Based on the guidance published by the Pre-Emption Group as to the information likely to be required by shareholders in assessing
proposals for disapplication of pre-emption rights at higher levels than 5 per cent. of current issued share capital, the Directors request
sharehalders to cansider the foliowing:

{f) Business case i
The strategy of the Company as discussed in the Business Review section of the Annual Report for 2006 sets out an intention
to strengthen the business in a considered and controlled manner. This could be accomplished by a series of praducl acquisitions
in niche market areas, which may be small individually. However, to allow the Company to move quickly, sufficient cash reserves are
required {o best manage these opportunities. The ability to rapidly access funds up to 10 per cent of the existing share capital
would greatly enhance the Company’s ability to exploit these situations.

(ii} Stage of development of the Company
Existing resources will be reserved to develop the current pipeline of CytoFab™, Voraxaze™, Prolarix™ and Angiotensin Vaccine.
The Directors believe that the Company’s capacity t¢ generate funds internally in the near future may not be sufficient to expand
in a controlled manner without placing undue risk on this current development portiolio.

{iii) Stewardship and governance
The Directors believe that the total shareholder return produced by the Company against its peer group over the last three years is
testimony to its performance over this period. This is demonstrated by the graphs on Page 36 included in the Directors” Remuneration
Report section of the Annuat Report for 2006.

(iv) Financing options
it is likely that opportunities which are considered will need some period of development before they are cash generating, Debt

financing is therelore unlikely to be the preferred option, given the relatively early stage of development. of potential cpportunities.

(v

Level of dilution of value and control for existing shareholders

The Board had the authority to issue up to 10 per cent. of the issued share capital non pre-emptively last year, The full amount was
not used. However the disapplication provision was last used in December 2005 in cannection with the licensing of CytoFab™ to
AstraZeneca. in which shares were issued to AstraZeneca at a 30 per cent. premium to the average share price over the 3 months
prior to the announcement of the agreement. Shares totalling 4.3 per cent. of the share capital at that time were issued tor a
consideration of £7.5 million. Prior to this, shares representing 5 per cent. of the share capital were issued on a non pre-emptive

basis in connection with a cash placing and open offer of up to 10 per cent. of the issued share capital at the time of the acquisition
of Enact Pharma PLC in June 2003. £1.5 million was raised on a non pre-emptive basis at a price of 16 pence per ordinary share, a

5.7 per cent. discount to the share price immediately before the announcement. The Directors believe Lhat both of these Lransactions
have added significant value for shareholders, as evidenced by the subsequent increases in share price since these transactions,

{vi) Proposed process following approval
The Company would seek to engage shareholders in dialogue at the earliest practical opportunity, so that major shareholders have the
opportunity to exprass an opinion on the proposed transaction wherever possible, bearing in mind the potential tegal and regulatory
issues which may be involved.

{vii)Contingency plans
Shaould the request not be granted, the Company wauld rely on the lower 5 per cent. level sought under resolution 13. The Company
may also seek to raise turther funds by approaching all shareholders on a pre-emptive basis although this would entail higher
transaction costs and introduce time delays which may make the strategy more difficult to deliver.
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For these reasgns the Directors request that shareholders support sesolution 12, which would give authority to issue up to
10 per cent. of the current issued share capitat for cash without having first to offer the new shares to sharehclders pro-rata
1o their existing shareholdings.

Apait from rights issues, open offers or any other pro-rata offer as mentioned, the authority will be limited to the issue of shares and
sales of treasury shares for cash up to an aggregate nominal value of £520,591 (being 10 per cent. of the issued ordinary share capital
of the Company as at the date of the notice of the Annual General Meeting, 13 June 2006). If given, this authority will expire at the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held in 2007.

Resolutian 13.

Your Directors are aware that the authority sought by paragraph {if) of resolution 12 is higher than normalty sought, if shareholders

are not willing to authorise the Directors to issue up to 10 per cent, of the current issued share capital of Protherics other than pursuant
10 a pro rata offer, your board would still want to have authority to make such an issue up to the more usual 5 per cent. level. Accordingly,
resoluticn 13 is being proposed as a speciat resolution in the event that resolution 12 is not passed.

Apart from rights issues, open offers or any other pro rata offer as menticned, the authority would be Emited to Lhe issue of shares and
sales of treasury shares for cash up ta an aggregate norninal value of £260,295 (being 5 per cent. of the issued ordinary share capital of
the Company as at 13 lune 2006). If given, this authority will expire at the conclusion of the Annuai General Meeting to be held in 2007,

EVEN IF YOU SUPPORT THE PASSING OF RESOLUTION 12, THE DIRECTORS URGE YOU TO ALSC VOTE IN FAVOUR OF RESOLUTION 13.
However, if resolution 12 is passed at the Annual General Meeting, resolution 13 will be withdrawn.

Resolution 14.

This resclution is to approve the adaption of new Articles of Association of the Company in substitution of all previous Articles of
Association so as to update the Articles to cover changes in practice and to include more comprehensive provisions in relation to
trading in uncertificated shares. Throughout the Articles, certain references to subsidiaries have also been aftered so as to cover
subsidiary undertakings. The proposed Articles are standard for a public company which has a listing on the Cificial List of the
Financial Services Authority.

The most significant amendments to the existing Articles are summarised below:

Article 12. A new article has been included to provide greater clarification with regard to uncertificated shares, and throughout the
Articles, changes relating to CREST and uncertificated shares have been made.

Article 35. This article is new, and provides that, where a share has been surrendered or forfeited, a statutory declaration made by
the Directors shall be conclusive evidence of the facts contained therein against anyone claiming to be entitled to that share. As a result,
the persan to whom the share is sold takes that share with good title,

Article 40. This article is new, and provides that the Directors must give notice to the transferee of refusal to register the transfer
of shares in the Company.

Article 65. This article grants the Directors the power to postpone a general meeting where they consider it impractical or unreasonable
to hold the meeting on the date or at the time specified in the notice calling the meeting.

Article 69, The quorum at general meetings is now two members present in person or by proxy rather than three under the existing
Articles.

Article 72. New provisions have been added to assist the Company manage meetings. These provisions relate to the postponemnent
of general meetings, arrangements for simultaneous attendance, security and orderly conduct and the rights of persons to atlend and
speak at meetings.
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Article 76, This article is new, and provides that if an amendment is proposed ta a fesclution at a general meeting but it is in good faith
ruled out of order by the Chairman, then proceedings on the substantive resolution shall not be invalidated by any error in such ruling.

Article 86. This article updates the existing Articles in selation to the ability of members suffering from mental discrders to vote at
meetings of the Company. Such a member may vote by his receiver, curator bonis or other authorised persaon, provided that evidence to
the satisfaction of the Directors of the autherity of the person ¢laiming to exercise the right to vote has been delivered to the Company’s
registered office within a specified time period.

Article 107 This provides that the Directors’ powers are 10 be exercised subject to directions given by special resolution, rather than
ordinary resolution as previously was the case.

Article 109. Asticle 109 is an additian to the existing Articles. This article relates to the ability of the Directors to purchase and maintain
insurance for the benefit of Directors, officers and employees of group and connected companies.

Article 110. The rules relating to Directors” entitlement to vote have been modified to conform more with the Listing Rules.

Article 120. The Directors' borrowing powers have been amended (i) so that shares which have been underwritten or otherwise agreed
to be subscribed shall be taken to have been paid up for the purposes of calculation of the adjusted capital and rescrves; (i) reference

to subsidiaries has been changed to “subsidiary undertaking” throughout; (ifi) adjusted capital and reserves has been defined to include
reserves, whether or not distributable: (iv) provisions have been added relating to borrowings in foreign currencies and Auditors’ reports on
borrowings. Amendments have also been made to the Article to counter fluctuations caused to adjusted capital and reserves and moneys
borrowed as a result of adopting new International Accounting Standards. These amendments relate to the treatment of pensions, 1air
valuing and deferred tax.

Article 127. Formerly Article 114, this provision has been amended so that the period within which a notice proposing the appaintment
of a new director not recormmended by the Directors needs to be lodged at the Company, has been extended so that notices may be
submitted up to 42 days prior to the general meeting.

Article 137. This article has been included to reflect the tact that it is now standard practice to adopt an articte to make it clear that a
committee of the board of Directors can agree executive and non-executive directors’ fees or salary. The article alse permits the Board to
co-opt persons ather than Directors to committees af the Board; the restrictions relating to co-opted Directors have been deleted as they
are ne longer a Listing Rule requirement.

Article 153. This article replaces provisions in the existing Articles dealing with the procedure by which dividends are paid. The Articles
have been amencded so that the Company may pay any dividend or other monies payable in cash by direct debit, bank or other funds
transfer systern, or by ¢heque, dividend warrant or money order. The amended article also provides that any one of two or more joint
hotders of any share, or any one of two or more persons entitled jointly to a share in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of the
holder ar otherwise by operation of law, may give effectual receipts for any dividends or other manies payable or property distributable
on or in respect of the share.

Article 164. Provisions have been included explicitly allowing the Company to execute deeds in future without using the common

seal but rather by having two Directors or a Director and the Company Secretary signing and complying with certain procedures.

The Company previously relied upon the rights conferred by the Companies Act 1985 in this regard. The amended article also allows for
the affixing of signatures te certificates and instruments by mechanical or electronic means.

Article 184, This article replaces provisions in the existing Articles dealing with the giving of indemnities to Directors and other officers of
the company. This article has been dratted in line with the Comganies {Audit, Investigations and Community Enterprise) Act 2004 which
came into force on 6 April 2005, which allows companies to provide Directors and Officers with more protection from potential liabilities
and the cost of defending proceedings. Please note that the Company's Auditors have been excluded from this indemnily power due to
institutional resistance to such provisions,
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Form of Proxy

PROTHERICS PLC
2006 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING, 18 JULY 2006 AT 12.00 NOON

Please read the notes below before completing this form.

Any amendments to this form should be initiatled by the signatory.

IfWe (namefs) in full)

of (address(es)}
being (a) member(s) of the above-named Company, hereby appoint the Chairman of the meeting, or {ailing him

as myfour proxy to vote for mejfus en myfour behalf as directed below at the 200€ Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at the
offices of Ashurst, Broadwalk House, 5 Appold Street, London EC2A 2HA, on 18 July 2006 at 12.00 noon and at any adjournment thereof.

Please indicate in the boxes below how you wish your votes {o be cast.

For Against [ Vote Withheld
Resolution 1 To receive the accounts and reports of the Directors and
Auditors for the year ended 31 March 2006.
Resolution 2 To re-elect Stuart Michael Wallis as a director.
Resolution 3 To re-elect Ardrew John William Heath as a director.
Resolution 4 To re-elect James Campbell Christie as a director.
Resolution 5 To elect Bryan Geoffrey Morton as a director.
Resolution 6 To re-elect Barrington Marshall Riley as a director.
Resolution 7 To re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as Auditors of
the Company.
Resolution 8 To authorise the Directors to set the remuneration of
the Auditors.
Resolution 9 To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year
ended 31 March 2006.
Resolution 10 Te increase the existing authorised share capital of the Company
from £7,000,000.00 to £7,400,000.00
Resolution 11 To authorise the Directors to allot shares pursuant to
section 80 of the Companies Act 1985.
Resolution 12 To authorise the Directors to dis-apply pre-emption rights
pursuant to section 95 of the Companies Act 1985 (10%).
Resolution 13 To authotise the Directors o dis-apply pre-emption rights
pursuant to section 95 of the Companies Act 1985 (5%).
Resolution 14 To adopt new Articles of Association of the Company,
Signature ...

Notes 1o the Form of Proxy

1. Youmay appoint one or more proxics of your Gwn choice, if you are unable to attend the mesling bl would like to vote. I such an appointment 1 made, delete the words “the Chawman af the

menting” and insert the namefs) of the person of penons appointad & Brxyjproacs in the space provided. A prosy need not e o member of the Company. If no name s ente.ed, e return of this

fon duty signed will authevise the Chaimian of e meeting to act 25 your proxy.

In e cav® 6f # Ceporanion, this form af proey mast be exccuted under its common seal of tnder the hand of a duly autharised olticer ar attomey.

3. Worder that this fovm of proxy shall be vatid, it must be deposited {logather with any power of attorney o olher ulhority undet which s signed or 3 nolanally cerlified copy of siueh power or a <oy
certifiad in accordance with Lhe Powars of Atimey At 1571 ¢ in some other manner approved by the Directars). ot the Company's ragriiars Nevile Registiars Limiled, hew.’e House, 18 taurel tane,
Halesowen, West Millands B&3 30A, not later than 48 hours befare the nme appantad for the rmeeting. The corplation and return of a form of prosy wil nol, hawaver, preclude shareholders from
attending and voting in person at the meeting or at any adjoumment thereot, should they wish to do so.

4. M two or more persons Jre jointty entitied $5 2 share conferming the right ta vote, any one of them may vote at the meeting =ithar 31 persan of by preay, Dut (F mor than one ont hobder i pretent at the
meeting Lither in person o by proey, the une whise name slands st in thy registes of members in respect of Bhe 10int holding shall aloai be entitled to vote n1espect thereol, I any event, the names
of 2 joint holders should be stated on the form of praxy.

5. The “vote withheld® option is provicit 1o enable viu 10 INStRct your prody not to vate an any particular resohition, however, it shoukd be noted that a ™vore withhels!™ in this way i not 2 vat2 in law and
wilt not be counted in the calcutation of Lhe propartion of votes “for™ and “against”™ a resolution.

P
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